CITY OF OWOSSO
REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL
MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 29, 2014
7:00 P.M.

Meeting to be held at City Hall
301 West Main Street

AGENDA

OPENING PRAYER:

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:
ROLL CALL:

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA:

ADDRESSING THE CITY COUNCIL

1. Your comments shall be made during times set aside for that purpose.

2. Stand or raise a hand to indicate that you wish to speak.

3. When recognized, give your name and address and direct your comments and/or questions to any City
official in attendance.

4. Each person wishing to address the City Council and/or attending officials shall be afforded one opportunity
of up to four (4) minutes duration during the first occasion for citizen comments and questions. Each person
shall also be afforded one opportunity of up to three (3) minutes duration during the last occasion provided
for citizen comments and questions and one opportunity of up to three (3) minutes duration during each
public hearing. Comments made during public hearings shall be relevant to the subject for which the public
hearings are held.

5. In addition to the opportunities described above, a citizen may respond to questions posed to him or her by
the Mayor or members of the Council, provided members have been granted the floor to pose such
guestions.

CITIZEN COMMENTS AND QUESTIONS

ITEMS OF BUSINESS

Street program tax levy
Osburn Lakes Subdivision issues

NEXT MEETING

Monday, October 06, 2014

BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS OPENINGS

None.

ADJOURNMENT

The City of Owosso will provide necessary reasonable auxiliary aids and services, such as signers for the
hearing impaired and audio tapes of printed materials being considered at the meeting, to individuals with
disabilities at the meeting/hearing upon seventy-two (72) hours notice to the City of Owosso. Individuals with
disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services should contact the City of Owosso by writing or calling the
following: Amy K. Kirkland, City Clerk, 301 West Main Street, Owosso, MI 48867 or at (989) 725-0500. The
City of Owosso Website address is www.Ci.OWw0SS0.mi.us.



http://www.ci.owosso.mi.us/

Date: September 25, 2014

To:  City council

From: City manager

Re:  September 29, 2014 work session

For the Monday, September 29, 2014-work session the agenda contains two items: (1) the street
program tax levy and (2) Osburn Lakes issues.

1. Street program tax levy--The question has been placed on the November 4, 2014 ballot to
levy a two-year millage for street improvements. Information is included on the projects
proposed from the revenues to be raised by the millage. A second document shows those
projects which are projected if the millage is renewed in November, 2016.

The task before the city council is how to inform the voters as to the purpose of the proposed
millage. Make a decision or decisions on what efforts to take to inform the voters:
presentations, press conferences, mailings, etc.

Attachments: Five year pay-as-you-go program

Information put out by other communities

2. Osburn Lakes issues--The first issue is whether or not the master deed should be amended
to modify the architectural standards contained in Article VIII RESTRICTIONS AND
STANDARDS.

The second issue is whether to modify the BYLAWS OF THE ASSOCIATION.

The third issue is whether to modify the RULES AND REGULATIONS OF THE
ASSOCIATION.

The fourth issue is whether a developer can be found to develop the unsold lots in Phase |
that belong to the city.

The fifth issue is how to market the unsold lots in Phase I. Should the city issue a request for
proposals for engaging an exclusive realtor to market the unsold lots?

The sixth issue is what, if anything, to do with the undeveloped property known as
Phase II.

Attachments: Master deed with amendment including condominium bylaws
Michigan Condominium Act (Act 59 of 1978)






PROJECT SITE

2015-16 Project Locations:

W. Stewart Street: Cedar to Shiawassee
W. Jennett Street; Shiawassee to Water
N. Saginaw Street: Oliver to Goodhue

N. Water Street: Oliver to King

W. Shady Lane Drive: Meadow to Buckley
S. Walnut Street: Grace Street to Stewart
S. Woodlawn Ave: Aburndale to Corunna
E, Farr Ave: Broadway to Glenwood

N. Elm Street; Main to River

TOTAL PROJECT COST 2015-16

2016-17 Project Locations:

E. Monroe Street: Gould to City limits

S. Washington Street; Stewart to Corunna
N. Chipman: Main to Beehler

TOTAL PROJECT COST 2016-17

2017-21 projects assuming a renewal in 2016

S. Cedar Street: Stewart to Main

N & E North Street: Shiawassee to Hickory
S. Gould Street: Corunna to Main

N. Park Street: Goodhue to King

W. Henry Street: Kenwood to Chipman
N. Seventh Street: Oliver to King

E. Oliver Street: Washington to Gould
S. Cedar Street: South to Stewart

S. Chestnut Street: South to Stewart

E. Howard St: Washington to Park

W. King Street: Seventh to Shiawassee

Because of the timing of tax collections and special assessments many projects are likely to be delayed until the spring of the second year.

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

“ P H D

PP PR P EAHPDDPH PP

Budget

Amount

125,400.00
68,700.00
20,100.00
65,500.00
71,500.00
71,300.00

125,400.00
98,900.00

136,200.00

783,000.00

348,500.00
334,000.00
100,500.00
783,000.00

288,800.00
252,700.00
382,400.00

55,400.00

34,100.00
164,800.00
521,400.00
471,200.00
730,400.00

89,300.00
450,000.00

PAY AS YOU GO
PROJECT LIST
AUGUST, 2014

Type

Work

Resurface
Resurface
Resurface
Resurface
Resurface
Resurface
Resurface
Resurface
Reconstruction

Reconstruction
Rehabilitation
Resurface

Resurface
Resurface
Resurface
Resurface
Resurface
Rehabilitation
Rehabilitation
Reconstruction
Reconstruct/Widen
Reconstruction
Reconstruction

Average
Daily Traffic

<5,000
<1,000
<1,000
<2,000
<1,000
<1,000
<1,000
<1,000
<1,000

<3,000
<10,000
<7,000

<2,000
<4,000
<10,000
<2,000
<1,000
<3,000
<6,000
<2,000
<2,000
<1000
<6000

The above schedule assumes that approximately 50% of each project will be special assessed against adjacent property owners.
The above schedule assumes no contributions from federal or state programs or cost sharing with an adjacent township.

CLASS

MAJOR
LOCAL
LOCAL
LOCAL
LOCAL
LOCAL
LOCAL
LOCAL
LOCAL

MAJOR
MAJOR
MAJOR

MAJOR
MAJOR
MAJOR
LOCAL

LOCAL

MAJOR
MAJOR
MAJOR
MAJOR
MAIJOR
MAJOR




Norton Shores Street Millage Ballot Proposal

FREQUENTLY ASKED QUESTIONS ABOUT THE PROPOSED STREET MILLAGE

‘Why is a street millage being proposed?

A street millage is being proposed because approximately 70% of the City’s streets are in need of
some level of improvement and the current State funding resources for streets are grossly
inadequate to address these needs. As time goes on the streets will continue to deteriorate and
will be even more costly to repair.

How much will the millage cost me?

The proposed millage of 1.5 mills is equivalent to $1.50 per $1000 of taxable value of the
property. As an example, if your home is valued at $150,000 with a taxable value of $75,000,
the millage would cost you $112.50 for one year. Every spring a notice of the taxable value of
your property is mailed to you.

How much money will the millage generate annually?
It is projected that the millage will generate $1,450,000 in the first year.

‘What happens if the millage proposal fails?

If the street millage fails, City Council will consider special assessments on properties abutting
streets to be improved on an annual basis. The cost of the entire improvement would be spread
among the property owners along the improved streets based on foot frontage. At this time, the
estimated cost is $95 per front foot for a reconstruction project and $25 per front foot for a mill
and resurface project.

Where is all the tax money going that the City already gets to maintain the streets?
Currently, the only funds the City receives for street maintenance comes through the State as a
pass through of the motor fuel (gas) tax. Norton Shores receives approximately $24,000 per mile
of major street and $5,000 per mile of local street per year. These funds are barely enough to
cover general maintenance such as snow plowing and pothole patching. No money collected
from property taxes for general operating goes to the street fund, however, some of the 2 mills
that are collected for capital improvements can and has been used for street improvements. If the
millage passes, the gas tax money will continue to fund street maintenance needs.

To put these amounts in perspective, even if we were able to save the $5,000 per mile we get for
a local street for 100 years, it would equal $500,000 which would only pay for 0.63 mile of street
reconstruction.

Why are some streets repaved when they are in good condition while others in worse
condition are not?

The streets that are in worse condition typically require total reconstruction of the street which
will cost upwards of four times as much as a mill and resurfacing project. This being said, often
times streets that aren’t in the worst condition receive rehabilitative work to lengthen the life of
the street.




What is the difference between reconstruction, milling and resurfacing and micro-
surfacing?

When a street undergoes a reconstruction it refers to the removal and replacement of the gravel
base and asphalt pavement. This becomes necessary when the pavement reaches a level of
deterioration that does not allow the pavement structure to be rehabilitated. A milling and
resurfacing is a rehabilitation method whereby the top layer of pavement is ground off and a new
pavement surface is applied. Micro-surfacing is a surface treatment that consists of a thin layer
of an asphalt based material used as a maintenance measure to seal the street surface to keep
moisture out of the pavement structure. Moisture in the pavement structure causes failure and is
most visible in the winter and spring in the form of potholes.

How will the streets to be improved be determined?

A couple years ago the City implemented a program (PASER) to rate the quality of the street
system, which over time will help City Administration determine the rate of deterioration of the
streets and enable the City to target improvements at optimum times. In the meantime, the
PASER ratings are utilized to help the City determine the level of improvements needed. This
rating, along with other factors such as traffic volumes and patterns, infrastructure needs,
accident history, available grant funding (for major streets), and frequency of maintenance needs
will be utilized to determine which streets will be improved in a given year.

My street is fairly new; why should I vote for the millage?

Although your street is currently in good condition, eventually it will need to be repaired. We all
drive on streets other than the one that is in front of our property so it is important that these
streets are maintained. Streets in poor condition can contribute to a higher rate of wear and tear
on your vehicle leading to higher repair/maintenance costs. Additionally, good streets contribute
to the quality of life in the City and help maintain of property values.

Why is asphalt used for streets instead of concrete?

The initial cost of asphalt has traditionally been more affordable than concrete. With the recent
increase in oil prices the cost of asphalt is being directly impacted and the gap of the initial cost
between asphalt and concrete is closing. The City is committed to watching the costs of these
products and will respond by using the paving method that we feel is the best choice for our
streets considering available funding resources.

What is the average life of a street?

A typical street constructed of asphalt has an average life of 20 years, often with some level of
restorative work performed at about 12 years. The vast majority of our streets, particularly local
streets, were constructed in the early 1980°s so they are 25+ years old.

What is the difference between a Major street and a Local street and who makes the
determination on the classification?

A Major street as defined by the State is one that provides an extension to a State Route or a
County Primary Road to facilitate through traffic; one that provides an integral network to
service traffic demands created by industrial, commercial, educational or other traffic generating
centers; streets that provide circulation in and around the central business district; streets that are
designated truck routes; OR streets that collect traffic from an area served by an extensive




network of local streets. All other public streets within the City are classified as a Local street.
Major streets must meet certain design criteria and are recommended for designation by the City,
but they must be approved by the Michigan Department of Transportation.

Are there any grant funds available to improve our streets?

There are no grant funds available for Local streets. There are some grants available for Major
streets but not enough to satisfy all of the needed improvements. The grants that are received
typically require a 20% match from the City.

How can I be guaranteed that this money won’t be used for anything but street
improvements?

The City Council has committed and included in the proposed Charter amendment that a Street
Improvement Fund will be established to be used exclusively for street reconstruction and
restoration.

Will any of this money be used for routine maintenance?
The street millage funds will not be used for routine maintenance. Money currently received
through the State motor fuel (gas) tax will continue to be used for this work.

Overall, I think the City streets are in good condition, why is it felt that they need to be
redone?

The recent rating of the streets, the method of which is recognized as acceptable by the Michigan
Department of Transportation, indicates that approximately 70% of our streets are rated at or
below a 5 on a 10 scale which is indicative of the need for restoration or reconstruction.

What will happen in 20 years when the millage expires?
In 20 years the millage will expire unless there is a vote of the people to renew the millage upon
expiration.

The Mayor’s message in the newsletter referred to pay as you go; what does this mean?

In essence, pay as you go means the amount of street repairs completed in a year will not exceed
what has been collected from the millage. No money will be borrowed in advance (e.g.
bonding); therefore no interest will be paid.

I don’t have water or sewer in my street, is new infrastructure included in this millage?

No, new infrastructure is not included in this millage. However, it is the City’s practice to have
all underground infrastructure in good condition prior to improving a street. If water and/or
sanitary sewer are not in place, then this infrastructure will need to be installed prior to any street
improvement. The installation of water and sewer will be completed through a special
assessment to the property owners abutting the improvement, separate from the street millage.




Q el
Q' i 9
43L1snﬂ° ot

Mayor Dale Scrace

City Council Members

Christopher Boettcher
Donald Parthum Jr.
John Stempfle
Andrew Turnbull
Christopher Walsh
Jean Weipert

City Personnel

¢ Peter Dame
City Manager
e Julie Arthurs
Asst. City Manager/Clerk
e Kimberly Kleinow
Finance Director
e Stephen Poloni
Public Safety Director
e Gary Huvaere
Public Service Director
e Frank Schulte
Public Service Supervisor
* Pete Randazzo
Public Service Supervisor
e Christopher Hardenbrook
Recreation Director

Municipal Judge
e Russell Ethridge

Phone Numbers
City Hall

Public Safety
Municipal Court
Neff Park Office

885-5800
886-3200
343-5262
343-5257

= GR(]SSE PINTE

v.@ TTTeeeeeeoreer %‘.»'

Grosse Pointe NOW

GROSSE POINTE CITY ROAD IMPROVEMENT MILLAGE
AUGUST 5 BALLOT

On the August 5 ballot, City of Grosse Pointe residents will be asked whether to support a tax
levy dedicated to local road improvements. If approved, up to 2.5 mills annually could be
assessed by the City for no longer than 15 years solely to fund a capital improvement plan
to fix the City’s local streets.

The City's annual street condition reports since 2006 show steady deterioration of the City's
road system by only allocating approximately $250,000 toward roads each year. Faced with
the projected depletion of the Capital Projects Fund from which road projects are already in-
adequately funded, the City Council voted unanimously to present the road improvement
millage question to citizens. Without allocation of additional revenues for road repairs, even
more of the City's roads will fall into poor condition with an even greater cost to fix.

By dedicating a significant new source of funds, the City would be able to institute a compre-
hensive pavement management plan. Instead of just putting what little funds are available for
road repairs into fixing the worst roads, the City would have the ability to fund a capital
preventive maintenance program to keep roads from getting to the point where they require
total reconstruction. Each year, after the City-wide road condition report, using nationally
accepted asset management principles, the City's Engineers would prioritize the needs and
apply a mix of fixes to the roads. The goal of the plan would be to raise the average condition
of the City's roads significantly over the course of the plan (see the projected rating
improvement chart below).

If voters approve the road improvement millage, it would appear as a separate item on the
tax bills starting in 2015. The approximately $825,000 raised each year by a 2.5 mill levy
would be placed in the City's Highway Fund where it will be tracked and can only be used for
the approved purpose. 2.5 mills equals $250 per year for a house with a $100,000 taxable
value (which typi-
cally is half of its .
market value of 2'5 MIIIS
$200,000).  The

average single

family residence  70.0% -
in Grosse Pointe

has a taxable value

of $132,123 (with ~ s50.0%
a market value of
$264,246) which
would equate to
road taxes of $330  ,;0x -
for the average
single family
dwelling. 0.0%

Millage Proposal

Good/Fair/Poor Over 15 Years

Good
Falr

w Poor

10.0%

T
Current 2020 2025 2030

Continued on page 2




Road Improvement Millage article continued...

NEED MORE INFORMATION?

If you would like more information about the proposed road improvement millage, the City will hold an informational session on
Tuesday, July 29, at 7:00 p.m. in the City Council Chambers. The City Engineer and City officials will make an educational presen-
tation and answer questions. The presentation and other background materials are online at www.grossepointcity.org. If you cannot
attend the meeting or if you would prefer, please feel free to contact any of your elected officials or the City Manager for information

at city@grossepointcity.org or 885-5800.

HOW TO ESTIMATE YOUR STREET IMPROVEMENT MILLAGE AMOUNT

Take a look at the recently mailed 2014 Summer Tax bill. Look for the column labeled
“Taxable Value”. Take the Taxable Value (not State Equalized Value) of your property
and multiply it by .0025. If you do not have your 2014 Summer Tax bill handy, you
may also look up your taxable value online at the City’s website www.erossepointecity.org
under Finance Department’s Tax and Assessing information and search for your
address. Or if you need help, please contact the Finance Department at 885-5800.

DID YOU KNOW?

— Certain major streets are eligible for federal aid from federal gas taxes. Since 2006,
the City has received competitive grant funds to help fix every major street that
is eligible for funding, including Kercheval, Cadieux, St. Clair, Waterloo, and Fisher
Road.

— The City receives state funds from sales and motor fuel tax receipts for maintenance
of its local roads by formula under Act 51. This year’s estimated allocation of
$317,000 funds routine maintenance such as traffic signal upkeep, pot hole filling and
crack sealing. This is more than a quarter of a million dollars short of what is needed
to pay everyday needs, which is made up for by an allocation from the General Fund
levy of $253,644 in this year’s budget.

— Since 2006, the City has conducted a road condition survey annually. Notwithstand-
ing the City’s success in obtaining federal grant funds for roads, the average condition
of the City’s roads has declined over the last eight years with the percentage of roads
in poor condition increasing from 16% to 29% in 2013.

— The City has 20 miles of public roads: 16 miles of asphalt/composite streets and
4 miles of concrete streets.

AUGUST 5 BALLOT LANGUAGE

City of Grosse Pointe Charter
Authorized Proposal to Electors

“Shall the City of Grosse Pointe, Mich=-
igan be authorized to levy a new addi-
tional millage on the taxable property
within the City not to exceed the annual
rate of 2.5 mills ($2.50  per. thousand
dollars of taxable value) for a period
not to exceed 15 years; commencing in
2015, for the purpose of reconstruction,
resurfacing; repairing and  otherwise
improving ‘City streets? The estimated
amount of revenue that will be collect-
ed in the first year that the millage is
authorized and levied is $823,911.”

— If the road improvement millage is approved, the
total property taxes collected by the City is still

i Items to Remember
estimated to be less than the total property taxes —

collected in the peak year of 2008. * Camp Norbert P. Neff - Friday, August 1 and Satu

Registration began July 7 at Neff Park. .
- - * Shop for Sidewalk Sale deals in The Village on July 25.
Upcoming Meetings * Primary Election - Tuesday, August 5, 2014. See page 4.

Council Chambers
17145 Maumee Ave.

July 21 City Council 7:00 pm
August 18 City Council 7:00 pm
September 15 City Council 7:00 pm

Summer Taxes payable without penalty through August 10, 2014,

All Pointes Outdoor Movie held at Grosse Pointe South Football

Field - Saturday, August 16, 2014 from 9:00 - 11:00 pm.

 City Offices closed on Monday, September 1 for the Labor Day
id

n some end of summer fun at “VillageFest” held
- 7, 2014, in The Village on Kercheval Avenue
x and Neff Road




PROPOSED MARQUETTE TOWNSHIP ROAD MILLAGE - PRESS RELEASE [t
August 29, 2014 |

On Tuesday, August 4, 2014, the Marquette Township Board unanimously approved a Township Local Roads Rehabilitation
Millage question to be included on the November 4 State General Election ballot for Marquette Township residents to consider.
The proposed millage would amount to a 1.5 mill tax levy (after expiration of the current .85 mill tax levy) for a period of fifteen (15)
years. If the millage is passed, ALL local roads in the Township are proposed to be repaired within the first three years of
the millage period (2015-2017).

Through community surveys, planning work sessions and comments received at Township Board meetings, Township
residents have consistently stated that the poor surface condition of the local road system is a top priority to address
within the community.

The Charter Township of Marquette does not own or maintain roads located within our boundary. The roads within
Marquette Township are owned and controlled by the Marquette County Road Commission (MCRC).

Sufficient funding is not being generated to support the MCRC maintaining or repairing the Marquette County
infrastructure system. Currently, costs to maintain the road system significantly exceeds the available revenues, and the
need continues to increase.

The expiring .85 mil, road millage was approved by the residents to rebuild Werner St., with any remaining balance of the
funding being applied to rehabilitate Brookton Rd. This current road millage will expire December 31, 2014.

Effective January 1, 2075 there will be no local property tax monies going to roads, and state transportation funding has
increased only once since 1984. The last increase was in 1997. Legislative inaction makes a state funding increase
uncertain in the foreseeable future.

Marquette Township is proposing an increase of 1.5 mils per year for fifteen years to improve and maintain local streets
and roads. The millage will provide approximately $500,000.00 annually. The cost to taxpayers is $150.00 per
$100,000.00 of taxable value. In as much as the current .85 mil expires on December 31, 2014 and the proposed 1.5
mils would become effective on January 1, 2015, the net effect upon residential taxes will be a .65 mil increase over
current, or $65.00 per $100,000.00 of taxable value.

Currently, less than 20% of roads in Marquette Township are rated as "good". I approved, the funds generated by the
2015 millage would improve that rating to 80% "good” within the next 3 years.

The Marquette Township Asset Management plan will guide spending of the millage funds. Asset Management,
according to Public Act 199 of 2007, means: an “ongoing process of maintaining, upgrading and operating physical
assets cost-effectively, based on a continuous physical inventory and condition assessment.” The implementation of an
asset management decision process allows Marquette Township to make informed decisions for the transportation
network with the most accurate information. The process enables stewardship, transparent decision processes and
measurable performance.

The overall plan is focused on improvements that will benefit all Township residents and will also include street lighting,
walkability/bikability and stormwater runoff concerns; funded from other resources and not funded by the proposed
millage.

The Marquette Township Board, Road Committee, and staff have prioritized projects based on P.A.S.E.R. (road surface
condition) ratings, safety, traffic volumes, road function, school bus routing, emergency routing and non-motorized
transportation opportunities.




« Roads not considered for repair by this millage are all of County Road 550. Co. Rd. 550 is currently undergoing
extensive rehabilitation, in preparation for Eagle Mine trucking. County Road 492, from the Township's west border to
Commerce Drive is currently scheduled for completion in 2016 by the MCRC. Wright Street, from the city limits to the
Target intersection is not being considered as part of this millage effort. Finally, Ontario Street, from Werner to Wright
Streets is currently scheduled for reconstruction in 2017 by the MCRC and is therefore not being considered as part of
this Township rehabilitation program.

o Adetailed project list and project map has been created and is available for review on the Marquette Township website
(marquettetownship.org) or at the Township Hall. The current list of projects calls for work on 15 miles of the 34 miles of
local township roads in 2015. 2016 will see reconstruction and rehabilitation on another 15 miles of local Township
roads, with the remaining 4 miles being completed in 2017.

Road Millage Workshops

To be transparent and informative, residents of the Township are invited to a series of work sessions prior to the election on
Tuesday, November 4th. Township staff and Road Committee members will be available to answer questions and provide
additional information, as needed. The meeting dates and times are also located on the enclosed September calendar and are
also denoted below. At your convenience, please take the time to come to the Marquette Township Hall at 7000 Commerce Drive
to have your questions answered, to find the cost to you, to find out the road repair schedule, and to become informed about the
proposed project.

September Road Millage Workshops:

Monday, September 8® 12-1PM
Wednesday, September 109 6-7 PM
Monday, September 15t 12-1PM
Wednesday, September 179 6-7 PM
Monday, September 22m 12-1PM
Wednesday, September 249 6-7 PM
Monday, September 29® 12-1PM

October Road Millage Workshops:

Wednesday, October 1t 6-7 PM

Monday, October 6t 12-1 PM
Wednesday, October 8% 6-7 PM
Monday, October 13 12-1 PM
Wednesday, October 15%  6-7 PM
Monday, October 20t 12-1 PM
Wednesday, October 227 6-7 PM
Monday, October 27t 12-1 PM

Wednesday, October 290 6-7 PM

We look forward to meeting with our residents in order to answer their questions and provide them with the information they need
to make an informed decision regarding the proposed Marquette Township Local Roads Rehabilitation Millage.

Jason McCarthy
Township Planner
Marquette Charter Township




Neighborhood Street
Improvement Program \
Renewal Millage Proposition

With voter approval in 1987, 1991, 1996, 2001
and 2006 the residents of Alma have supported
improvements to our street system through
dedicated millage programs. With the
completion of street work on Virginia, Ferris and
Golfside this summer, the City will have
performed improvements to the streets identified
in the adjacent map with the support of the five
approved millage programs. These projects
reflect a geographically balanced effort resulting
in 15.8 miles of upgraded streets. For the last 25
years, the dedicated millage programs have
been the main funding source for street
improvements throughout the community. The
renewal millage will enable the City to
reconstruct the streets needing repair. Many of
Alma’s 48 miles of streets need rehabilitation. A
typical city street is designed to last 25-30 years.
The goal of the City should be to perform major
street repairs to 1.6 miles every year. The
dedicated voter-approved street millage will fund
approximately 3/8 of a mile of street reconstruction each year.

ol T
f' . EJ}&_‘ Red = proposed streets
[

Green = completed streets

1y
o

Every year, the engineering department inspects all the streets. The department also tracks the conditions of the water
and sewer lines. Using water and sewer funds, the City tries to replace sewer and water mains at the same time the
streets are rehabilitated. Streets are selected on a formula based on street condition, water main condition and sewer line
condition. The City Commission has authorized the placement of a 2.5 Mill Neighborhood Street Improvement Renewal
Proposition on the November 8, 2011 ballot. The renewal proposition will provide dedicated funding to systematically
upgrade a portion of our streets to an improved status. All funds raised must be used for street projects. The
proposition is a renewal; therefore passage will not represent a new tax in the upcoming year. Additional information

including a list of streets being proposed for reconstruction can be found on the City’s website located at
www.ci.alma.mi.usfl

CITY OF ALMA
RENEWAL MILLAGE PROPOSITION

Shall the limitation on the amount of taxes which may be assessed against all property in the City of
Alma, County of Gratiot, State of Michigan, be increased by 2.5 mills ($2.50 on each $1,000.00) on
state taxable value for a period of five years, 2012 through 20186, inclusive, for the rehabilitation,

repair and maintenance of public streets and ancillary public infrastructure within the corporate limits
of the City of Aima?

The following chart identifies the maximum respective annual cost of the renewal issue on sample state taxable values for
properties located in the City of Alma:

Property Market Value 2.5 Mill Street Improvement
$ 20,000.00 $ 25.00
$ 40,000.00 $ 50.00
$ 60,000.00 $ 75.00
$ 80,000.00 $100.00
$100,000.00 $125.00
$120,000.00 $150.00
$140,000.00 $175.00
$160,000.00 $200.00

The Neighborhood Street Renewal Millage Proposition is the last issue on the ballot. The City Commission encourages
all registered electors to cast their vote on this important local proposition. Polls will be open from 7:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m.
and Dial-A-Ride will be offering free transportation to and from the polls. Call 463-6016 to arrange for a ride.




Voters residing in the City of Alma will have the opportunity to consider a 2.5 Mill Neighborhood Street
Improvement Renewal Proposition in the General Election on Tuesday, November 8, 2011. This display is
intended to provide you with some background information in order for you to make an informed decision on
the proposal. The City Commission encourages you to review this information and exercise your right to
vote on Tuesday, November 8. Polls will be open from 7:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. Dial-A-Ride will be offering
free transportation to and from the polls on Election Day. Call 463-6016 to arrange for a ride.

Neighborhood Street Improvement Program 2012-2016

Year 1(2012) Year 2 (2013)

Grove Hickory to King Park Hill Street Park Dr. to S. State Street

Rosedale Grover to Pleasant S. Court Ave McCann to Ely Street
McCann S. Court Ave to Valley

Year 3 (2014) Year 4 (2015)

Moyer Ave Elizabeth to Hillcrest Hannah Ave Michigan to Ferris

W. Elizabeth Park Dr. to S. State Pleasant Ave Rosedale to Eastward

Argyle Rd Falkirk to Glencoe Orchard St Garfield to Wright

Orchard Charles to Argyle Garfield Orchard to lowa

Slater Grafton to S. Court

Year 5 (2016)

2nd Ave W. End to Elwell

Ely St S. State to Moyer

Hayes Marquette to Michigan

City of Alma

PO Box 278 Presort Standard

Alma, MT 48801 U.S. Postage Paid
Alma, Michigan
Permit No. 3

Resident
Alma, MI 48801




On Tuesday, August 5, voters in Char-
lotte will be asked to consider a City
ballot proposal. This proposal, if
passed, would permit the City to levy
up to 2.35 additional mills to fund
street improvements. The following
information has been prepared in an
effort to address questions that voters
might have regarding these two pro-

posals.

Q1. Who would pay the millage in
Charlotte?

Al. Like other property taxes, this
millage would be paid by all owners of
real and personal property located
within the City limits. This would in-
clude businesses and industries as well
as residents. Properties currently ex-
empt from property taxes, such as
schools, churches and government
buildings, would also be exempt from
this tax.

Q2. What exactly is a millage?

A2. A millage is a tax on property. One
mill is equal to one dollar in taxes for
every one thousand dollars of taxable
value. Taxable value cannot be more
than one-half of the market value of
the property. The proposal, if passed,
would increase taxes up to $2.35 for
every $1,000 in taxable value.

Q3. So how much would this new millage
cost the average residential property
owner?

A3. Based on an average taxable value of
$42,000, the millage would add $99 to the
property tax bill in the first year. Due to
projected increases in property values, we
estimated that this amount could increase
to $107 in the fifth year of the millage.

Q4. | do not have an average house. How
much will it cost me?

A4, You can calculate your own tax if you
know the taxable value of your property.
This amount can be found on a property
tax bill, an assessment change notice, or
on the “Assessing” tab of the City’s web-
site www.charlottemi.org. If you cannot
find your taxable value, use half the mar-
ket value of your house. The easiest way
to estimate your tax is to divide the taxa-
ble value by 1,000 and multiply by 2.35.

Q5. Could the City levy fewer than 2.35

mills?

A5. It is possible. Each year the City Coun-
cil sets tax rates when it adopts the budg-
et. If Council determines that it is not nec-
essary to levy the full amount, it could set
a lower millage rate. Council could never
set a rate higher than 2.35 mills without
approval of the voters.

Q6. Why is the City Council asking voters
to approve a millage increase.

A6. The City Council looked at several
different options to come up with addi-
tional revenue to be used to pay for street
maintenance and reconstruction. In 2013,
a City income tax was proposed but reject-
ed by voters. Some of those who opposed
an income tax expressed support for a
dedicated millage.

Q7. How much revenue would the
millage generate

A7. If Council were to levy the entire 2.35
mills, it is estimated to generate almost
$500,000 per year for street reconstruc-
tion.

Q8. Would all the revenue generated by
millage be used to repair streets?

A8. Not quite. State law provides that the
Downtown Development Authority cap-
tures a portion of the millage revenue
paid by the owners of properties within its
boundaries. It is estimated that $1,738
would be captured in the first year and
not be used for streets. The remaining
$487,680 would be available for street re-
pairs and reconstruction and could not be
used for any other purpose.

FAST FACT: It costs $2 million to
completely reconstruct 1 mile
of a City street.

Q9. Is Eaton County also requesting a
millage for roads?

A9. Yes, but this question will not be on
the ballot until the November 2014
election. The County is requesting 1.5
mills to be levied over a 12 year period
of time. If approved, a portion of the
revenue the County collects will be re-
ceived by the City to use in repairing
and resurfacing City streets. This
amount would be about 2/3 of the
amount the City needs for street recon-
struction each year.

Q10. What happens if both the City
and County ballot proposals pass?

A10. The City Council could choose not
to levy the 2.35 mills approved by City
voters or it could choose to levy only a
portion of that amount to make up the
difference between what is received
from the County and the amount re-
quired to repair City streets.

FAST FACT: More than 70% of
Charlotte city streets are in

poor or fair condition.




Q11. The City gets a share of the tax
on gasoline. Why does it need addi-
tional money?

A11l. The City receives about $480,000
each year from the state as its share of
the tax on gasoline and of registration
fees. These funds are used primarily
for street maintenance activities such
as snow removal, street sweeping, and
patching potholes. Some funds are al-
so used to match grant funds available
to rebuild a few designated streets.
There are not sufficient funds available
from state sources to repair the major-
ity of city streets.

Q12. Why can’t the City just reduce
costs elsewhere in the budget to find
the money it needs to repair streets?

A12. The City has made budget cuts
over the last several years by elimi-
nating jobs, freezing wages, cutting
employee benefits and through a vari-
ety of other measures. Like many cities
in Michigan, Charlotte has seen its rev-
enues reduced by cuts that state gov-
ernment has been making in the City’s
share of the sales tax. Since 2001,
state revenue sharing has declined by
nearly 30%, a loss of $300,000 annual-
ly. Further, the City expects to see rev-
enues reduced by declining property
values and as a result of state law
changing the way business machinery
and equipment is taxed. The City
Council has determined

that the budget cannot be reduced more
without affecting essential services such as
police and fire protection.

Q13. Do other cities in Michigan have
street millages?

A13. Yes. Alma levies 2.5 mills for street
reconstruction. Big Rapids levies 1 mill. In
2013, Sturgis voters approved 3 mills for
streets and St. Johns voters approved 4
mills for this purpose. These are provided
as examples; it is not known exactly how
many cities have dedicated street millages.

Q14. The millage would be levied for five
years. Would all the streets be repaired
by then?

A14. No. City staff estimates at least
$500,000 would need to be spent each
and every year for a very long time—
maybe forever—just to address the ongo-
ing deterioration of streets that occurs due
to use and weather. At the end of five
years, there will be much street work still
to be completed. It is possible voters
would be asked to renew this millage for
an additional period so this work could be
completed. This would be a decision City
Council would have to make at that time.
Whether a renewal of the millage would
be requested could be affected by the
City’s fiscal condition and actions that
might have been taken by the State of
Michigan.

2014 Ballot Proposal
City of Charlotte Road Improvement
Millage Proposal

Shall the City of Charlotte impose an addi-
tional millage up to 2.35 mills ($2.35 per
$1000 of taxable value) for a five year pe-
riod only, which funds shall be used for
the sole purpose of acquiring, extending,
altering, constructing or repairing of public
streets and highways within the City of
Charlotte, which will raise an estimated
$487,680 for the general fund and $1,738
for the Downtown Development Authority
the first year the millage is levied?

YES
NO

Do you know the condition
rating of your street? Each year
the City hires a consultant to
evaluate the condition of each
City street. This is information
we use to plan street work we
will undertake. You can learn
how your street was rated by
visiting http://wp.me/P1yHGc-
Lh (Note: case sensitive)

FIRST-CLASS MAIL
U.S. POSTAGE PAID

CHARLOTTE, MI

PERMIT #12

City of Charlotte

111 E. Lawrence Avenue

Charlotte, MI[ 48813

Ballot Proposal Information




0/'7 /)‘ v ?&

007-67+ 400~ 003000 300)) WW

o0 - €8 - oo 0085 . s o O
050-596 00000 (acca-z0e3) (PO )
O%o -5¢o -~ 800 - Go> (3003)

MASTER DEED
OSBURN LAKES RESIDENTIAL SITE CONDOMINIUM

I et

Kays Orubba = Ghiswasess Co.

/999-2003
128375

THIS MASTER DEED has been executed as of October 20, 2004, by Woodside
West, LLC, a Michigan domestic limited liability company, whose address Is 5232 South
Morrish Road, Swarlz Creek, Michigan 48473 (the "Developer"), pursuant to the
provisions of the Michigan Condominium Act, as amended.

RECITALS:
A Woodside West, LLC desires to establish the real property described in

Avrticle Il below, and all appurtenances to it, together with all improvements at any time
located upon that property, as a condominium project under the Act.

[1aY
N~
g: B. Woodside West, LLC entered into an exclusive option to purchase real
3 property dated August 27, 2004 with the City of Owosso wherein the City of Owosso
— granted Woodside West, LLC the right to purchase condominium units.
N\ T
x X C. Woodside West, LLC has prepared and executed this Master Deed,
,J\‘f v together with the Condominium Bylaws attached hereto as Exhibit A and the
* > ¥ Condominium Subdivision Plan attached hereto as Exhibit B, to accomplish this purpose.
]
RN *ri ARTICLE |
A¥) Q >
RIS DEFINITIONS .
Yo =
When used in any of the Condominium Documents, or in any other instrument &
Ny pertaining to the Condominium Project or the creation or transfer of any interest in it, the 2
g following terms shall camy the definitions which follow them unless the context clearly M
indicates to the contrary: e
(S )
(a "Act” means the Michigan Condominium Act, belng Act 59 of the “?‘
Public Acts of 1978, as amended. .
E

(b)  "Association" means Osbumn Lakes Condominium Association, a
not-for-profit corporation organized under the laws of the State of Michigan, of which all
co-owners shall be members and which shall administer, operate, manage, and maintain




the Condominium Project. Any action required of or permitted by the Association shall be
exercisable by its Board of Directors unless explicitly reserved to the members by the
Condominium Documents or the laws of the State of Michigan, and any reference to the
Association shall, where appropriate, also constitute a refarence to its Board of Directors.

{c)  "Association Bylaws" means the corporate Bylaws of the
Association.

(d)  "Common elements,” where used without moadification, means both
the general and limited common elements, as defined in Article V hereof,

(e)  "Condominium Bylaws" means Exhibit A hereto, the Bylaws for the
Condominium_ Project.

( "Caondominium Documents™ means and Includes this Master Deed,
Exhibits A and B hereto, and the Articles of Incorporation, Bylaws and the Rules and
Regulations, if any, of the Association.

(g “Condominium Premises” means and includes the land described in
Article (Il hereof, and all easements, rights and appurtenances belonging to the
Condominium Project, as described below.

(h)  "Condominium Preject’ means Osbum Lakes Residential Site
Condominjum, which Is a condominium project established pursuant to the Act.

)] "Condominium Subdivision Plan" means Exhibit B hereto.,

M) "Condominium unit” or "unit” each means that portion of the
Condominium Project designed and intended for separate ownership and use, as
described in Article VI hereof and on Exhibit B hereto.

(k) "Co-owner,” "owner" or "member" each means a person, firm,
corporation, parinership, association, trust or other legal entlty or any combination thereof
who owns legal or equitable title to a condominium unit (including land contract vendees
not in default under the terms of their land contracts) within the Condominium Project,
and is, therefore, a member of the Association,

{ "Developer" means Woodside West, LLC, and its successors and
assigns. The Developer of the Condominium controls an option to purchase the real
property dedicated to the Condominium and will develop the Condominium.

(m) "Frontage Area" shall mean the area between the boundary of a unit

and the paved portion of the road right-of-way, as shown on the Condominium
Subdivision Plan attached hereto as Exhibit B.

T .

Kiys Orudba - Shianasyes Cq, L P lé




o o MRS . | ¢ ol SEENEENSANLLL | |

{n)  "Master Deed" means this Master Deed, including Exhibits A and B
hereto, both of which are incorporated by reference and made a part hereof,

Terms not deflned herein, but defined in the Act, shall carry the meanings given
them in the Act unless the context clearly indicates to the contrary. Whenever any
reference is made to one gender, the same shall include a reference to any and all .
genders where such a reference would be appropriate; similarly, whenever a reference is
made to the singular, a reference shall also be included to the plural where such a
reference would be appropriate, and vice versa.

ARTICLE Il
DEDICATION

By executing and recording this Master Deed, the Developer establishes Osburn
Lakes Residential Site Condominium as a condominium project under the Act, Once
established, the Condominium Project shall be held, conveyed, encumbered, leased,
occupied, improved and in every manner utilized, subject to {i) the provisions of this
Master Deed, and (i) the Act. The provisions of this Master Deed shall run with the land
included In the Condominium Project and bind the Developer, and all persons acquiring
or owning an interest in the Condominium Project, or in the real estate dedicated to the
Condominium Project, and their grantees, successors, assigns, heirs and personal
representatives. The remainder of this Master Deed has been set forth in furtherance of
the establishment of the Condominium Project,

ARTICLE Il
LEGAL DESCRIPTION

The land which is dedicated to the Condominium Project established hereby is
legally described as follows:

PART OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 18 AND ALSO PART OF
THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 7, TTIN-R3E, CITY OF OWOsSso,
SHIAWASSEE COUNTY, MICHIGAN DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:
BEGINNING AT A POINT ON THE NORTH AND SOUTH 1/4 LINE OF
SAID SECTION 18, WHICH IS S 01°03'40" W 574.96 FEET FROM THE
NORTH 1/4 CORNER OF SAID SECTION 18, SAID POINT ALSO BEING
THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SHIAWASSEE COUNTY
SUBDIVISION PLAN NO. 8, WOODLAND TRAILS CONDOMINIUM, AS
RECORDED IN LIBER 1057, PAGE 8, SHIAWASSEE COUNTY,
MICHIGAN RECORDS; THENCE ALONG SAID CONDOMINIUM S
89°01'21" E 870.02 FEET AND N 00°25'59" W 625.15 FEET AND

N 89°01'21" W 100,03 FEET; THENCE N 00°25'59" W 383,70 FEET;
THENCE S 89°12'50" E 1231.,17 FEET; THENCE S 00°30'20" E 437.83
FEET TO THE NORTH LINE OF SECTION 18; THENCE S 01°17'56" w

e RNRMNIN -

T TNND




1098.05 FEET; THENCE S 81°30'01" W 836.77 FEET; THENCE

N 90°00'00" W 167.13 FEET; THENCE N 01°03'40" E 313.94 FEET:
THENCE N 88°56'20" W 125.00 FEET; THENCE S 01°03'40" W 25.00
FEET; THENCE N 88°56'20" W 60,00 FEET; THENCE N 01°03'40" E
44.41 FEET; THENCE N 88°56'20" W 240.00 FEET; THENCE

S 01°03'40" W 35.00 FEET; THENCE N 88°56'20" W 60.00 FEET;
THENCE N 01°03'40" E 25.00 FEET; THENCE N 88°56'20" W 120.00
FEET;, THENCE S 01°03'40" W 450.00 FEET; THENCE N 88°56'20" W
120.00 FEET; THENCE S 01°03'40" W 48.46 FEET; THENCE

N 88°56'20" W 60.00 FEET; THENCE N 01°03'40" E 25,00 FEET;
THENCE N 88°56'20" W 205,00 FEET TO SAID NORTH AND SOUTH
1/4 LINE OF SECTION 18; THENCE N 01°03'40" E, ALONG SAID
NORTH AND SOUTH 1/4 LINE, 812,36 FEET TO THE PLACE OF

Together with and subject to easements, restrictions and govemmental limitations of
record, and easements set forth or the Condominium Subdivision Plan attached as
Exhibit B hereto or as declared and reserved In Article VIl below.
ARTICLE IV
TITLE AND NATURE

The Condominium Project shall be known as Osbum Lakes Residential Site
Condominium, Shiawassee County Subdivision Plan No, /A . Such architectural
plans and specifications as may exist for the Condominium Project will be filed with the
Register of Deeds, Shiawassee County, Michigan. The improvements contained in the

Condominium Project, including the number, boundaries, dimensions and area of each
unit, are set forth in the Condominium Subdivision Plan attached hereto as ExhibitB, The

ARTICLE V
COMMON ELEMENTS

A, General Common Elements. The general common elements are;

I

MMM 35 .-

T LT




+ oMLY o & AU o «

(1) The real property described in Article Itl hereo, excludipg those
portions within the boundaries of any Condominium unit as described In Article V. A.
hereof and shown on Exhibit B hereto, but including easement interests of the
Condominium in the property within the boundaries of any unit;

(2) Al utility rights-of-way as indicaled on the Condominium Subdivision
Plan ("Right-of-Way"). Each co-owner shall have the right to build a driveway and place a
mailbox upon Frontage Area adjoining his unit and when built, subject, howsver, to
Developer’s ability to arrange for front door delivery of mall, the portion of the driveway,
but not the ground beneath it, buiit upon the Frontage Area, shall be as provided in
subsection B below, a limited common element;

(3)  The main electrical distribution system throughout the Condominium
Project located within the Right-of-Way or Easement Area (excluding facilities which
serve individual units);

(4)  The telephone wiring system throughout the Condominium Project
located within the Right-of-Way or Easement Area (excluding facilities which serve
individual units);

(5)  The gas distribution network throughout the Condominium Project
located within the Right-of-Way or Easement Area (excluding facilities which serve
individual units);

(6)  Any cable television wiring throughout the Condominium Project
located within the Right-of-Way or Easement Area (excluding facilities which serve
individual units);

(7)  The buffer strip located along the outer edge of the Condominium
Project, as depicted on the Condominium Subdivision Plan;

(8)  Any perimeter fenca to be placed upon units or common elements
along the exterior and Interior boundaries of the Condominium Premises and Expansion
Property, as defined hersin;

(9)  The walking trail depicted on the Gould Engineering site plan of
August 12, 2004; and

(10)  Such other elements of the Condominium Project not herein
designated as common elemenits which are not enclosed within the boundaries of a unit
and which are intended for common use or necessary to the existence, upkeep and
safety of the Condominium Project as a whole.

Some or all of the utility lines, systems and equipment described above may be
own_ed by the logal public authority or by the company that is providing the pertinent
service. Accordingly, such utility lines, systems and equipment shall be general common

QL s

Page: B of WD
= Ghiawatses Co,

- 0

ST iR ) “Ve—— | R

L




PSR o & AR -

elements only to the extent of the co-owners' interest therein, if any, and Developer
makes no warranty whatever with respect to the nature or extent of such interest. Each
co-owner will be responsible for connecting the utilities for his unit to the distribution lines
lying within the Right-of-Way or Easement Area at his sole expense.

B. Limited Common Elements. The limited common elements are those common
elements limited in use to the owners of the unit they abut or to which they appertain.

C. Upkeep of Common Elements, The respective responsibilities for the
maintenance, decoration, repair and replacement of the common elements are as
follows:

(1)  The Association shall bear the cost of decorating, maintaining,
repairing and replacing all general common elements oxcept (a) to the extent of
maintenance, repair or replacement due to the acts or neglects of a co-owner or his
agent, guest or invites, for which such co-owner shall be wholly responsible, unless, and
to the extent, any such loss or damage is covered by insurance maintained by the
Association; and (b) as provided in subsection (2) of this section.

(2)  Each co-owner shall bear the cost of installing and maintaining
landscaping within the Frontage Area adjolning his untt; installing, maintaining, repairing
and replacing the portion of the driveway built upon the Frontage Area; and of installing,
decorating, maintaining, repairing and replacing the mailbox located within the Frontage
Area,

(3)  Except to the extent of maintenance, repair or replacement due to
the act or neglect of another ca-owner or his agent, guest or invitee, for which such co-
owner shall be wholly responsible, the cost of decorating, maintaining, repairing and
replacing all improvements, including landscaping, within the boundaries of a unit, and the
cost of meeting the obligations set forth in subsection {2) of this section, will be borne by
the co-owner of the unit. The appearance of all buildings, garages, patios, decks,
porches (whether open or screened), landscaping and all other Improvements within a
unit or the Frontage Area appurtenant to it, will, at all times, be subject to the approval of
the Association, except that the Association may not disapprove the appearance of an
improvement maintained as constructed with the approval of the Developer or the
Association.

Any maintenance, repair or replacement obligation to be borne by a co-owner
may, if not performed by the co-owner, be performed by or under the direction of the
Assaciation, with the cost assessed against the responsible co-owner. The Association
shall not, in such case, be responsible for incidental damage to the unit or the Frontage
Area, or any improvement or property located within the boundaries of the unit or
Frontage Area, of the co-owner who failed to fulfill his obllgations.

D. Residual Damage to Units, Unless provided otherwise in this Master Deed or
in the Condominium Bylaws, damage to a unit, or any improvement or property located

PRI e

{
IR o

L [




oI i L AR

within the boundaries of the unit, caused by the repair, replacement or maintenance
activities of the Association of those common elements whic_h must be maintained by the
Association shall be repaired at the expense of the Association.

E. Use of Units and Common Elements.

(1) No co-owner shall use his unit or the common elemer:ts in any .
manner (i) inconsistent with the purposes of the Condominium Project or (ii) which will
unreasanably interfere with or Impair the rights of any other co-owner in the use and
enjoyment of his unit or the common elements.

(2)  No co-owner shall be exempt from contributing toward Expenses of
Administration (as defined in the Condominium Bylaws) or from the payment of
assessments against his unit by reason of nonuse ar waiver of use of the common
elements or by the abandonment of his unit.

ARTICLE VI
UNIT DESCRIPTION AND PERCENTAGES OF VALUE

A. Description. A description of each unit, with elevations therein referenced ta an
official benchmark of the United States Geological Survey sufficient to relocats accurately
the space enclosed by the description without reference to the unit itself, is set forth in the
Condominium Subdivision Plan, Each unit shall consist of all that space within the unit
boundaries, as shown on the Condominium Subdivision Plan and delineated in heavy
outlines, but not any common elements contained therein. The dimensions shown on the
Condominium Subdivision Plan for each unit have been calculated by Gould Engineering
in its contro! plan and site plan.

B. Percentages of Value. The total value of the project Is 100 percent (1 00%). All
units are hereby assigned an equal percentagse of value because all units are expscted to
have equal allocable expenses of maintenance. The Developer may contract the
Condominium by removing existing units in the Contraction Property (as defined in Article
IX hereof) or expand the Condominium Project by creating additional units in the
Expansion Property (as defined in Article X hereof). Such contraction or expansion will
result in a changs In the actual percentage of value attributable to each unit in Phase 1.
The percentages of value of all Phase | units would, however, remain equal to each other.

A unit's percentage of value shall be determinative of its proportionate share of the
common proceeds and Expenses of Administration, the value of its vote at certain
meetings of the Association of co-owners and of its undivided interest in the common
elements.

INRTAACHARIIRNN 55

TH=F (B




+ MM ot 1 ..,

ARTICLE VIl
EASEMENTS

A. Easements for Maintenance and Related Matters. There shall be an easement
over and across the Condominium Premises and Expansion Property, as defined herein,
for a perimeter fence along or within a reasonable distance of the boundaries of the
Condominium Premises and Expansion Property. If all or any portion of a common
element encroaches upon a unit due to survey errors, construction deviations,
reconstruction, replacement, renovation or repair, an easement shall exist for the
maintenance of the encroachment for so long as the encroachment exists, and for
maintenance thereof after rebuilding in the event of any destruction. Perpetual
easements shall also exist to, through, over, under and across the Condominium
Premises, including all units, for the maintenance, repair or replacement of common
elements, which easements shall be administered by the Association, and as may be
appropriate, for the installation, inspection, maintenance, repair and replacement by the
responsible govemmental entity or utility company of all utilities in the Condominium
Project, including, but not necessarily limited to, light, heat, power and communications,
The Association may grant such easements, licenses and rights-of-way over, under and
across the Condominium Premises for utility purposes, access purposes or other lawful
purposes as may be necessary for connecting a unit to a utility, or for the benefit of the
Condominium Project, subject, however, to the approval of the Developer so long as the
Developer holds any unit available for sale or 50 long as any additional unit may be
created in the Condominium.

B. Easements Retained by Developer.

(1) Easements. In addition to all other rights reserved to it hereunder,
the Developer reserves for the benefit of itself, and lts agents, employees, guests,
invitees, independent contractors, successors and assigns, a perpetual easement for the
unrestricted use of any and all rights-of-way, roads and streets now or hereafter located in
the Condominium Praect for the purpose of (a) ingress to and egress from all or any
portion of (i) the Condominium Premises, including any property hersafter contracted out
of the Condominium; (i) the Expansion Property, as defined herein, whether or not it is
added to the Condominium Premises; and (iii) any other land in the vicinity of the
Condominium Project now owned or hereafter acquired by the Developer, (b) complying
with any govemmental regulation, or installing and servicing the roads, utilities, drains or
perimeter fence, as shown on the Condominium Subdivision Plan attached hereto as
Exhibit B, or (c) for any other lawful purpose,

(2)  Use of Facilities. The Developer, and its duly authorized agents,
representatives and employees, may maintain offices and other facilities on the
Condominium Premises and engage in any acts reasonably necessary to facilitate the
development and sale of units in the Condominium Project. In connection therewith, the
Developer shall have full and free access to all common elements and unsold units,

st

RNRRTARE IR 575

! ! “TTTEDNENE © ¢ S— )




+ L. ot ) RN

(3)  Easements to Be Clear. No structures will be erected within any Unit
which will interfere with the rights of ingress and egress provided above, Any fences,
paving or plantings which interfere with the rights of ingress and egress provided 9bove
may be removed as necessary when Installing or servicing the roads, utllities: drains or
perimeter fence, and neither Developer nor Developer's agents will have liability for such
removal.

(4)  Drainage. No changes will be made in the grading of any areas
used as drainage swales which would alter surface run-off drainage patterns without the
prior written consent of Developer.

(5)  Hook-Up of Utilities, The Developer reserves for the benefit of itself,
and its agents, employees, independent contractors, successors and assigns, and for the
benefit of any appropriate governmental entity or utility company, perpetual easements to
enter upon and cross the Condominium Premises and lay pipes and cables and do all
other things reasonably necessary to utilize, tap and tie into, and to construct, extend and
enlarge, all utility services or systems now or hereafter located on the property described
in Article Ill hereof to service all or any portion of the Condominium Premises, including
any property hereafter contracted out of the Condominium; Expansion Property as
defined herein, whether or not it is added to the Condominium Premises; or any other
property in the vicinity of the Condominium Project now owned or hereafter acquired by
the Developer in furtherance of any lawful purpose,

(6)  Utility Lines. All electrical service, cable television and telephone
lines will be placed underground.

C. Termination of Easements, The Developer reserves the right to terminate and
revoke any utllity or other easement granted in this Master Deed at such time as the
particular easement has become unnecessary. This may occur, by way of example but
not limitation, when a utility easement Is relocated to coordinate further and future
development of the Condominium Project or other projects located in the viclnity of the
Condominium Project. No easement for a utility may be terminated or revoked unless
and until all units served by it are adequately served by an appropriate substitute or
replacement utllity on a shared maintenance basls. Any termination or revocation of any
such easement shall be effected by the recordation of an appropriate amendment to this
Master Deed in accordance with the requirements of the Act.

D. Financisl Support of Easements. The Assoclation shall financially support all
easements described in this Article VIl or otherwise pertaining to the Condominium
Project, regardless of the rights of others to utllize such easements.

T

Il |l -y




il

¥e Qrubba - Shiawassss Co.

+ R o .4 S ... .

ARTICLE Vil
RESTRICTIONS AND STANDARDS
INTRODUCTION

On July 7, 2004, Woodside West, LLC and the City of Owosso entered into a
"Second Purchase Agreement", The terms of that agreement are to remain an obligation
of the co-owners of the condominium project. The terms of this ARTICLE VI,
RESTRICTIONS AND STANDARDS, cannot be amended without theprior approval of
the City of Owosso.

A.  The minimum size of a dwelling unit shall be 1078 sGuare feet, except that
unit size for Lots 24 through 55 shall be a minimum of 1500 sqyére feet,

8. The minimum roof pitch shall be 7/12.

C.  The architectural concept of the homes shallbe described in Exhibit C to
this Master Deed and shall reflect the features of home hat are characteristic of
Owosso's historic neighborhoods or the concept demoistrated in Developer's Heritage
Viliage project at Bristol Road in Swartz Creek,

D. Every dwelling unit shall have a usabfe front porch with & minimum square
footage of 96 square feet,

E. Within Developer's architectural Quidelines outdoor lighting on private lots
shall be shielded and avold direct or indirect reflected light visible from beyond the
boundary of a residential lot. This provision’shall not apply to lamps less than 1200
lumens or flood lights less than 900 lumerfs provided that the floodlight does not provide
direct glare to traffic or is not directly a7 d at adjolning residential buildings.

0

F. Mutual easement provisfons for the walking trail shall be as mapped with
the condominium unit adjoining the roperty on the north side. The trail location and
construction plans are subject to a State of Michigan wetlands permit. The Osbum Lakes
Residentlal Site Condominium Aséoclation shall maintain and insure all of the trail
including those portions of the tréll off the premises,

G.  Unless specified in the canstruction plans at 15 feet, underground gas
and/or electric utilities easements shall be permitted within a 10 foot zone adjacent to the
street right-of-ways,

H. Lakefront/wetland units are to maintain a 25 foot setback from the wetland
boundary subject to the/terms of the MDEQ wetlands permit, Permit #03-78-0013-P
issued on April 20, 2004. Prior to the sale of any unit or commencement of any
construction on any unit, the boundary of the wetland areas shall be protected by the
placement of a perthanent marker, sign, stake, flagging or structure that is clearly visible

ORI 2.

TUTHTONTING] - C—




Y/xo /2005
FIRST AMENDMENT OF : ‘ ‘
MASTER DEED Libev 1079 q{?@?ﬁ
OSBURN LAKES RESIDENTIAL SITE CONDOMINIUM oUs
(adding Architectural Standards) 701

(Dedicated pursuant to the provisions of the Michigan Condominium Act, being
Act 59, Public Acts of 1978, as amended, MCL 559,101 et seq).

Know all by these presents that Woodside West, LLC, of 5232 South Morrish
Road, Swartz Creek, Michigan 48457, being the Developer, pursuant to Section 90 of
Act 59, Public Acts of 1978, as amended (MCL 559.190), and the City of Owosso, 301
West Main Street, Owosso, Michigan 48887, amend the Master Deed of Osburn Lakes
Residential Site Condominium, said Master Deed having been recorded in Liber 1069,
page 159, in the office of the Shiawassee County Register of Deeds on October 22,
2004, as Shiawassee County Condominium Subdivision Plan No. 12, regarding the
premises situated in the City of Owosso, County of Shiawassee and State of Michigan,
legally described as:

SEE ATTACHED LEGAL DESCRIPTION

as follows:

ARTICLE Vil RESTRICTIONS AND STANDARDS of the Master Deed, filed in
the office of the Shiawassee County Register of Deeds at Liber 1069, page 159, is
deleted in its entirety and replaced with AMENDED ARTICLE VIII, which is attached
hereto and made a part hereof. AMENDED ARTICLE VI consists of three (3) pages
numbered Amended 10, Amended 11 and Amended 11a.

The sole purpose of the FIRST AMENDMENT OF MASTER DEED is to add
architectural standards to meet the requirements of the City of Owosso.

This condominium document is being amended pursuant to ARTICLE XII
AMENDMENT, without the consent of co-owners or mortgagees as it does not
materially alter or change rights of a co-owner or mortgagee. The purpose of the
amendments set forth herein is the modification of types and sizes of unsold units and
their appurtenant common elements.




The signature of the City of Owosso on this instrument is notice that this
amendment has its prior approval.

All other provisions of the Master Deed of Osburn Lakes Residential Site
Condominium not amended herein shall remain in full force and effect.

Dated: January (24’, 2005

SIGNED:

Woodside/vzy
by: / //L

Merk A. Nemer
its Member

STATE OF MICHIGAN )
:8S
COUNTY OF GENESEE)

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this 1% day of January,
2005, by Mark A. Nemer, a Member of Woodside West, LLC, a Michigan domestic limited
liability company, on behalf of said firm.

Phootle A Merdodd

PHYLLIS A. MURDOCK Phylli€' Murdock, Notary Public
Notary Public, Genesee (muné\r.2 h&‘m Genesee County, Michigan
My Commission Expires Jul. 16, My Commission Expires: 07/16/06

THE CITY OF OWO0SSO

Johfi C. M. Davis
its Mayor

(signatures continued on following page)




THIS FIRST AMENDMENT TO

THE MASTER DEED WAS
PREPARED BY:

ROBERT M. CHIMOVITZ (P11841)
ATTORNEY AT LAW

512 W. COURT STREET

FLINT, Ml 48503

810-238-9615

NEMER\OSBURN LAKES 1ST AMENDED MASTER DEED

ATTEST:

vyt ot LT

Gall L. Schultz
its City Clerk d

RETURN TO:

WOODSIDE WEST, LLC
ATTN:. MARK A. NEMER
5232 MORRISH ROAD
SWARTZ CREEK, M| 48473




AMENDED
ARTICLE vill

RESTRICTIONS AND STANDARDS
INTRODUCTION

On July 7, 2004, Woodside West, LLC and the City of Owosso entered into a
‘Second Purchase Agreement”. The terms of that agreement are to remain an obligation
of the co-owners of the condominium project. The terms of this ARTICLE Vi,
RESTRICTIONS AND STANDARDS, cannot be amended without the prior approval of the
City of Owosso.

A, The minimum size of a dwelling unit shall be 1078 square feet, except that
unit size for Units 24 through 55 shall be a minimum of 1500 square feet.

B. The minimum roof pitch shall be 7/12,

C. The architectural concept of the homes shall be described in Exhibit E to thig
Master Deed and shall reflect the features of homes that are characteristic of Owosso's
historic neighborhoods or the concept demonstrated in Developer's Heritage Village
project at Bristol Road in Swartz Creek. For home designs which are not described
herein, architectural compliance review shall be completed before a purchase agreement
may be signed.

For homes wider than fifty (50) feet, the following architectural standards for
. condominium units 24 through 55 apply: '

i, Windows facing the street shall be equipped with mullion or grille
pattern dividers;

ii. A large roof expanse facing the street shall be broken with dormers
and/or gable projections;

i The allowable garage projection in front of the home (to be measured
with furthest roof projection of living space or covered porch to the
front wall of the garage) shall be:

(a)  Front loaded garage - six feet (6); and
(b)  Side yard loaded garage - fourteen feet (14');

iv. The garage door on a front loaded garage shall be of a decorative
design, e.g. raised panel and/or window section;

Amended 10




V. All home designs not included in Exhibit B-1 to the Development
Agreement may be subject to added architectural features such as
dormers, roof eyebrows, shutters, specialty windows (octagon, oval),
columns, dentals, porch railings, flower boxes, filigree, fret work;

vi. On a side yard loaded garage, the street facing wall shall have a
window wall area no less than ten percent (10%) of the entire wall, in
addition to other architectural features such as gable vents or
windows, and herizontal division accents in the siding;

vii.  On the street facing wall of the structure, thirty-five percent (35%) of
that wall shall be faced with a superior finish such as stone - brick
architectural siding (fish scale, dog eared, wood shake); and

vili.  Nothing herein shall prohibit the homes described in Exhibit B-1 to
the Development Agreement from being constructed on Units 24
through 55.

D. Every dwelling unit shall have a usable front porch with a minimum square
footage of 96 square feet.

E. Within Developer’s architectural guidelines outdoor lighting on private lots
shall be shielded and avoid direct or indirectly reflected light visible from beyond the
boundary of a residential lot. This provision shall not apply to lamps less than 1200
lumens or flood lights less than 900 lumens provided that the floodlight does not provide
direct glare to traffic or is not directly aimed at adjoining residential buildings.

F. Mutual easement provisions for the walking trail shall be as mapped with the
condominium unit adjoining the property on the north side. The trail location and
construction plans are subject to a State of Michigan wetlands permit. The Osburn Lakes
Residential Site Condominium Association shall maintain and insure all of the trail
including those portions of the tralil off the premises.

G. Unless specified in the construction plans at 15 feet, underground gas
and/or electric utilities easements shall be permitted within a 10 foot zone adjacent to the
street right-of-ways.

H. Lakefront/wetland units are to maintain a 25 foot setback from the wetland
boundary subject to the terms of the MDEQ wetlands permit, Permit #03-78-0013-P
issued on April 20, 2004, Prior to the sale of any unit or commencement of any
construction on any unit, the boundary of the wetland areas shall be protected by the
placement of a permanent marker, sign, stake, flagging or structure that is clearly visible
and has an obvious purpose to protect the wetland area on the units. The permanent sign
detail from the Gould Engineering July 11, 2003 wetland permit application is an
acceptable minimum standard for compliance with this provision.

Amended 11




l. From the date of excavation of a dwelling unit, the structure and landscaping
must be completed within 12 months according to the approved building plans.

J. Except for a one week driveway permit from the homeowner's association
for recreational vehicles, no recreational vehicles or trailers are to be stored outdoors
either in the yard areas or driveways.

K. Developer shall make the maximum feasible effort to arrange for front door
delivery of mail,

L. The development of individual lots shall preserve to the maximum feasible
extent landmark hardwood trees that are 8" in diameter or greater as measured 4’ off the
ground.

M. Developer agrees to contract with a third party land manager for the areas
defined in a conservation easement zone for the benefit of the occupants of the site
condominium and duplex condominium development adjoining the north line of the site
condominium. With exception to the trail development to be constructed and maintained
by the Developer and eventually the homeowner's association, the purpose of the third
party agreement is to preserve and improve the natural character of the conservation
zone, to decide on proposed alterations to those areas and to protect native plant and
animal species. The third party manager shall be a non-profit corporation organized under
the laws of the State of Michigan and established for the purpose of conservation land
management. The City of Owosso shall retain the right of review and approval of the
selected land management firm, or their successors from time to time, to assure the above
standard is achieved.

N. Refuse collection shall be restricted to one refuse company serving the
development on one day per week designated under City ordinance. Developer and
eventually the homeowner's association shall have the authority to select the service
provider, level of service and the term of service. Burning barrels are prohibited.

O. A 15 preserve for a wildlife corridor shall be established for Units 36 through
48. Except for plantings of local vegetation species suitable for a nature area, this corridor
cannot be occupied for yard use and must remain without obstructions such as fences or
walls.

P. Sidewalks are to be installed at the time the driveways of the dwelling units
are constructed. At a time it elects to do so, the City of Owosso shall reserve the right to
complete sidewalk construction in front of the site condominium units without dwelling units
and apply special assessments to recover the costs of the installation.

Amended 11a




ORMAMRRETI b 4 JINEENERGE .

and has an obvious purpose to protect the wetland area on the unit's. Thg permanent
sign detail from the Gould Engineering July 11, 2003 wetland permit application is an
acceptable minimum standard for compliance with this provision,

e/fstructure and
the approved building

L From the date of excavation of a dwelling unit, t
landscaping must be completed within 12 months according
plans.

J. Except for a one week driveway permit froph the homeowner's association
for recreational vehicles, no recreational vehicles or t ers are to be stored outdoors
either in the yard areas or driveways.

K. Developer shall make the maximum féasible effort to arrange for front door
delivery of mail,

L. The development of individual lot shall preserve to the maximum feasible

extent landmark hardwood trees that are 8" i diameter or greater as measured 4 off the
ground.

animal species, The third party maghager shall be a non-profit corporation organized

under the laws of the State of Mic igan and established for the purpose of conservation
land management. The City of
selected land management firm /or their successors from time to time, to assure the
above standard is achieved.

shall be restricted to one refuge company serving the
wesk designated under City ordinance., Developer and
eventually the homeowner's/association shall have the authority to select the service
provider, level of service anid the term of service. Buming barrels are prohibited,

P. Sidewdlks are to be Installed at the time the driveways of the dwelling units

ed. Af/a time it elects to do 50, the Clty of Owosso shall reserve the right to
complete sidewalk/construction in front of the site condominium units without dwelling
units and apply s ecial assessments to recover the costs of the installation,

RN e

8 {1 of
~ Shiavazetes Co, oxA
! ' : ' YT . —— -

18/32 AM“!lP
L-jges Pgsd 11




ARTICLE IX
ALTERATIONS

A. Boundary Relacations.

(1) Aslong as the Developer holds any unit available for sale in the
Condominium Project, it may, in its discretion, modify the dimensions of any such unit or
units, the general common elements, and any limited common element appurtenant to
such unit or units, by enlargement, combination, division, or reduction in size or relocation
of boundaries between units, even if such action will resuit in the elimination of a unit from
the Condominium Project, However, no such modifications may be performed which
would unreasonably impair or diminish the appearance of the Project or the view, privacy
or other significant attribute or amenity of any unit owned by a non-Developer co-owner
which adjoins or is proximate to the modified unit. All space in the Condominium Project,
since it is or could be affected by such a modification, is hereby designated as
“convertible area," whether or not so designated on the Condominium Subdivision Pian,
Such space may be converied, in the Developer's sole discretion, into portions of a unit,
general common elements or limited common elements, or any combination of these, and
the responsibility for maintenance, repair and replacement therefor may be assigned by
an amendment to this Master Deed effected solely by Developer without the consent of
any other person,

(2)  If non-Developer co-owners owning adjoining units, or a non-
Developer co-owner and Developer owning adjoining units, desire to relocate the
boundaries between those units, then the Board of Directors of the Assoclation shall,
upon written application of the co-owners, accompanied by the written approval of all
mortgagees of record of the adjolning units, forthwith prepare or cause to be prepared an
amendment to this Master Deed duly relocating the boundaries.

B. Convertible Area. Not used,

C. Master Deed Amendment. No unit modified and no land removed in
accordance with the provisions of this section shall be conveyed until an amendment to
this Master Deed effectuating such modification or removal is recorded. The Developer
or Association may, in connection with any such amendment, readjust percentages of
value for all units in a manner which gives recognition to such unit or common element
modifications and the method of determination of percentages of value for the
Condominium Project described In Article VI, B. above. All of the co-owners and
mortgagees of units and other persons Iinterested or to become interested In the
Condominium Project from time to time shall be deemed to have unanimously consented
to an amendment or amendments to this Master Deed to effectuate the foregoing,
including, subject to the limitations set forth herein, the proportionate reallocation of the
percentages of value assigned to each unit if there Is a change in the number of units. All
such interested persons irrevocably appoint Developer and the Association as their agent

LT T

Page: 12 of @0
& = Ghiauaesse Co.
1 K CUCTITEMSET  awmwsm 00




and attoney for the purpose of executing such amendment or amendments to the
Condominium Documents necessary to effectuate the foregoing.

ARTICLE X

Not used.

ARTICLE XI
ENLARGEMENT OF CONDOMINIUM

A. Right to Expand. The Condominium Project is an expandable pondominjum
project, as that term Is defined In the Act. The first phase of the Condominium Project
established pursuant to this Initial Master Deed consists of eighty-three (83) units. Other
phases may be added later. The Condominium Project will contain in its entirety no more
than 178 units.

The Developer, for itself and its successors and assigns, hereby explicitly reserves
the right to expand the Condominium Project without the consent of any of the co-owners.
This right may be exercised without any limitations whatsoever, except as expressly
provided in this Article XI. The additional fand, all or any portion of which may be added
to the Condominium Project, is described as follows:

PART OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 18, T7N-R3E, CITY OF
OWOSSO, SHIAWASSEE COUNTY, MICHIGAN, DESCRIBED AS
FOLLOWS: BEGINNING AT A POINT ON THE NORTH AND SOUTH 1/4
LINE OF SAID SECTION 18, WHICH IS S 01°03'40" W 1387.32 FEET
FROM THE NORTH 1/4 CORNER OF SAID SECTION; THENCE

S 88°56'20" E 205.00 FEET; THENCE S 01°03'40" W 25,00 FEET;
THENCE S 88°56'20" E 60,00 FEET; THENCE N 01°03'40" E 48.46
FEET, THENCE S 88°56'20" E 120.00 FEET; THENCE N 01°03'40" E
450.00 FEET; THENCE S 88°56'20" E 120.00 FEET; THENCE

S 01°03'40" W 25,00 FEET; THENCE S 88°56'20" E 60.00 FEET;
THENCE N 01°03'40" E 35,00 FEET; THENCE S 88°66'20" E 240.00
FEET; THENCE S 01°03'40" W 44.41 FEET, THENCE S 88°56'20" E
60.00 FEET; THENCE N 01°03'40" E 25.00 FEET; THENCE

S 88°56'20" E 125.00 FEET; THENCE S 01°03'40" W 313.94 FEET;
THENCE S 90°00'00" E 167.13 FEET; THENCE N 81°30'01" E 836.77
FEET; THENCE S 01°17'56" W 1547.80 FEET TO THE EAST AND
WEST 1/4 LINE OF SAID SECTION; THENCE S 89°41'34" W, ALONG
SAID EAST AND WEST 1/4 LINE, 1976.39 FEET TO THE INTERIOR 1/4
CORNER OF SAID SECTION 18; THENCE N 01°03'40" E, ALONG THE
NORTH AND SOUTH 1/4 LINE, 1302.80 FEET TO THE PLACE OF
BEGINNING, CONTAINING 69.45 GROSS ACRES OF LAND, MORE OR
LESS, BEING SUBJECT TO THAT PART NOW USED AS GOULD

RAHROR AN 53

" . : Vite




STREET, SO-CALLED, AND BEING SUBJECT TO ANY RECORDED OR
UNRECORDED EASEMENTS OF BENEFIT OR BURDEN.

(herein referred to as the "Expansion Property”).

B. Restrictlon upon Expanslon. Expansion of the Condominium Project shall
occur without restriction under the following conditions:

(1) Theright to elect to expand the Project shall expire six (6) years from
the date hereof.

(2)  Allor any portion of the Expansion Property may be added, but none
of it must be added.

(3)  There is no limitation as to what portion of the Expansion Property
may be added, and any portions added may or may not be contiguous to each other or to
the Condominium Project as it exists at the time of any expansion,

(4)  Portions of the Expansion Property may be added to the
Condominium Project at different times.

(8)  The order In which portions of the Expansion Property may be added
is not restricted, nor are there any restrictions fixing the boundaries of those portions of
the Expansion Property that may be added.

(6)  There is no restriction as to the location of any improvements that
may be made on any portions of the Expansion Property.

(7)  There is no restriction upon the number of condominium units that
may be placed on any particular portion of the Expansion Property.

(8)  While the Developer presently intends that any expansion will be
reasonably compatible with units In Phase I of the Condominium Project, the nature,
appearance and location of all additional units, if any, placed upon the Expansion
Property, and any structures to be built thereln, will be as may be determined by the
Developer In its sole judgment without any restrictions whatsoever,

(9)  There are no restrictions as to what improvements may be made on
the Expansion Property.

{(10)  There are no restrictions as to the types of condominium units that
may be created on the Expansion Property, except that all units in the Condominium
Project must be residential condominium units,

(11)  The Developer reserves the right, in its sole discretion, to create
convertible and contractible area and limited common elements within any portion of the

TS

Paga: 14 of g0

t " i o e




L

Kave Orubbe »

Expansion Property added to the Condominium Projsct and to designate general
common elements which may subsequently be assigned as limited common elements.

(12)  The Condominium Project shall be expanded, if it is expanqed, by
one or a series of successive amendments to this initial Master Deed, each adding
additional land to the Condominium Project as then constituted.

(13)  All expansion must be carried out in accordance with the provisions
of the Act.

C. Procedure for Expansion. Pursuant to this Article X, and any other provisions
of this Master Deed to the contrary notwithstanding, the number of units and the amount
of real property in the Condominium Project may, at the sole option of the Developer, or
its successors and assigns, from time to time, within a period ending no later than six (6)
years from the date hereof, be increased by the addition to this Condominium Project of
all or any portion of the Expansion Property and the creation of residential units thereon,
Such increase in the size of this Condominium Project shall be given effact by an
appropriate amendment or amendments to this Master Deed in the manner provided by
law, which amendment or amendments shall be prepared by and at the discretion of the
Developer or its successors or assigns.

(1) The percentages of value set forth in Article VI hereof shall be
adjusted proportionately in the event of such expansion in order to preserve a total value
of 100 percent (100%) for the entire project resulting from such amendment or
amendments to this Master Deed. The precise determination of the readjustments in
percentages of value shall be made within the sole Judgment of Developer. Such
readjustments, however, shall reflect a continulng reasonable relationship among the
percentages of value and each unit's anticipated allocable expenses of administration,

(2)  Such amendment or amendments to the Master Deed shall also
contain such further definitions or redefinitions of general or limited common elements as
may be necessary to adequately describs the common elements added to the
Condominium Project by such amendment, Such amendment or amendments to the
Master Deed shall also contain such modifications of general or limited common elements
as may be necessary o adequately service the additional units being added to the
Condominium Project by such amendment.

(3)  Allof the co-owners and mortgagees of units and other persons
interested or to become interested In the Condominium Project from time to time shall be
deemed to have Irrevocably and unanimously consented to such amendment or
amendments of this Master Deed to effectuate the foregoing and, subject to the
limitations set forth herein, to any proportionate reallocation of percentages of value of
existing units which Developer may determine to be necessary in conjunction with such
amendment or amendments. All such interested persons Irrevocably appoint Developer
as agent and attorney for the purpose of execution of such amendment or amendments
to the Master Deed and all other documents necessary to effectuate the foregoing.

T

» ---!’um bl gy 0o




L

= ML, . oo-t LA L .

Such amendments may be effacted without the necessity of rerecording an entire
Master Deed or the Exhibits thereto and may Incorporate by reference all or any pertinent
portions of this Master Deed and the Exhibits hereto; PROVIDED, HOWEVER, that a
Consolidating Master Deed, when recorded, shall supersede the previously recorded
Master Deed and all amendments thereto. Nothing herein contained, however, shall in
any way obligate Developer to enlarge the Condominium Project beyond the phase
established by this Master Deed, and Developer may, in its discretion, establish all or a
portion of sald Expansion Property as a rental development, a separate condominium
project (or projects), or any other form of development.

ARTICLE X
AMENDMENT

Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Master Deed, the Condominium
Project shall not be terminated, vacated, revoked or abandoned except as provided in the
Act, nor may any of the provisions of this Master Deed, including Exhibits A and B, or any
other Condominium Document, be amended, except as follows, or as provided in the
Condominium Document sought to be amended.

A. Methods and Conditions.

(1} The Condominium Documents may be amended without the consent
of co-owners or mortgagees for any purpose If the amendment does not materially after
or change the rights of a co-owner or mortgagee. The Developer, for ltself and for the
Association of co-owners (and the Board, to the extent pemitted by the Condominium or
Association Bylaws), hereby expressly reserves the right to amend the Condominium
Documents for such a purpose. Amendments which do not materially alter or change the
rights of a co-owner or mortgagee include, but are not limited to, amendments modifying
the types and sizes of unsold units and their appurtenant common elements, correcting
survey or other errors made in the Condominium Documents, or for the purpose of
facilitating morigage loan financing for existing or prospective co-owners and to enable
the purchase of insurance of such mortgage loans by any institutional participant in the
secondary mortgage market which purchases or insures mortgages.

(2)  This Master Deed, the Condominium Bylaws (subject to the
restrictions set forth in Article XI thereon, and the Condominium Subdivision Plan may be
amerded, even if the amendment will materially alter or change the rights of the co-
owners or their mortgagees, either pursuant to subsection (7) below or by an affirmative
vote of two-thirds (2/3) of the votes of the co-owners and two-thirds (2/3) of the first
mortgagees. A co-owner will have one vote for each unit owned, including, as to the
Developer, all units created by the Master Deed but not yet conveyed. A morigagee shall
have one vote for each first mortgage held. The required votes may be achieved by
written consents or by votes at any regular annual meeting or a special meeting called for
such purpose, or a combination of votes and consents.

MR .

« Shiawasses Co.
o © AT T — L = TN




. o il ARG . s | IR i, -

(3)  The method or formula used to detarmine the percentage of value of
units in the Project for other than voting purposes, and any provisions relating tg the
ability or terms under which a co-owner may rent a unit, may not be modified without the
consent of each affected co-owner and mortgagee. A co-owner's condominium unit
dimensions or appurtenant limited common elements, if any, may not be modified without
the co-owner's consent.

(4)  Inno case, unless (i) all of the first mortigagees, (ii) all co-owners
(other than the Developer), and (jii) the Developer (if at the time it owns any units) have
given their prior written approval, shall the Association be entitled by any act or omission
to seek to abandon or terminate the Condominium Project.

(5)  The restrictions contained in this Article Xl on Amendments shall not
in any way affect the rights of the Developer as set forth elsewhere in this Master Desd.

(6) Co-owners and mortgagees of record shall be notified in writing at
their addresses reflected on the Condominium records of proposed amendments not less
than ten (10) days before the amendment is recorded.

(7)  Notwithstanding any contrary provision of the Condominium
Documents, Developer reserves the right to amend materlally this Master Deed or any of
its exhibits for any of the following purposes:

(a)  Toamend the Condominium Bylaws, subject to any
restrictions on amendments stated therein;

(b)  To comect arithmetic emrors, typographical errors, survey or
plan errors, deviations in construction or any similar errors in the Master Deed,
Condominium Subdivision Plan or Condominium Bylaws, or to correct errors in the
boundaries or locations of improvements;

(c)  To clarify or explain the provisions of this Master Deed or its
exhibits;

) (d)  To comply with the Act or rules promulgated thereunder or
with any requirements of any govemmental or quasi-governmental agency or any
financing institution providing mortgages on units in the Condominium Premises;

. (e)  To create, grant, make, define or limit easements affecting the
Condominium Premiises;

) To record an “as built" Condominium Subdivision Plap and/or
f:onsolldatlng Master Deed and/or to designate any improvements shown on the Plan as
'must be built," subject to any limitations or obligations imposed by the Act:

RN 555

» - IO T T




(@  Toteminate or eliminate reference to any right which
Developer has reserved to itself herein: and

(h)  To make alterations described in Article VIII above, even if the
number of units in the Condominium Project would thereby be reduced.

Amendments of the type described in this subsection (7) may be made by the
Developer without the consent of co-owners or montgagees, and any co-owner or
mortgagee having an interest in a unit affected by such an amendment shall join with the
Developer in amending this Master Deed.

(8)  The rights reserved to Developer in this Master Deed or in the
Condominium Bylaws attached hereto as Exhibit A may not be amended except by or
with the consent of the Developer.

B. Recording.

(1) An amendment to this Master Deed shall not be effective until the
amendment is recorded.

(2) A copy of the recorded amendment shall be delivered to each co-
owner.

C. Costs. A person causing or requesting an amendment to the Condominium
Documents shall be responsible for the costs and expenses of the amendment, except
for amendments based upon a vote of a prescribed majority of co-owners, based upon
the Advisory Committee's decision or based upon Article X, Section 4, of the
Condominium Bylaws, the costs of which shall be deemed expenses of administration.

ARTICLE Xili
CONTROLLING LAW
The provislons of the Act, and of the other laws of the State of Michigan and of the
United States, shall be applicable to and govem this Master Deed and all activities related
hereto.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executed this Master Deed as of
the date first written above.

(signature on following page)

i,
i

I

suatnes Co

AT




v AR - o4+ SN GRAL) |

Woodside West, LLC

by:

ark A. Nemer
its Member

STATE OF MICHIGAN )
‘88
COUNTY OF GENESEE)

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this 20th day of October,
2004, by Mark A. Nemer, a Member of Woodside West, LLC, a Michigan domestic limited

liability company, on behalf of said firm.

Robert M. Chimovitz, Notary Public
Genesee County, Michigan
My Commission Expires: 10/17/05

THIS MASTER DEED WAS PREPARED BY:
ROBERT M. CHIMOVITZ (P1 1841)
ATTORNEY AT LAW

512 W. COURT STREET

FLINT, MI 48503

810-238-9615

NEMERVOSBURN LAKES MASTER DEED 10-20-04

MR 53

. " -
T T




¢ " kNS . ¢+ o+ | RN il -

EXHIBIT A

CONDOMINIUM BYLAWS
OF
OSBURN LAKES RESIDENTIAL SITE CONDOMINIUM

ARTICLE |
ASSOCIATION OF CO-OWNERS

Section 1. Organization. Osbum Lakes Residential Site Condominium, a
residential site condominium project located in the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County,
Michigan (the "Condominium"), shall be administered by an assoclation of co-owners (the
"Association") which shall be organized as a not-for-proflt corporation under the laws of
the State of Michigan. The Assaciation will be responsible for the management,
maintenance, operation and administration of the common elements, easements and
affairs of the Condominium in accordance with the Master Deed and Bylaws of the
Condominium, the Articles of Incorporation, Bylaws, Rules and Regulations of the
Association, and the laws of the State of Michigan.

Section 2. Compliance. All present and future co-owners, mortgagees, lessees
and all other persons who may in any manner use, enter upon or acquire any interest in
the Condominium Premises, or any unit in the Condominium, shall be subject to and
comply with the provisions of the Michigan Condominium Act (Act 59, of the Public Acts
of 1978, as amended), and the Condominium Documents including, but not necessarily
limited to, any provision thereof pertaining to the use and operation of the Condominium
Premises and the property of the Condominium. The acceptance of a deed or
conveyance, the taking of a mortgage, the execution of a lease or the act of occupancy of
a unit, or presence, in the Condominium shall constitute an acceptance of the provisions
of these instruments and an agreement to comply therewith,

Section 3. Purpose of Bylaws. These Bylaws govern the general operation,
malintenance, administration, use and occupancy of the Condominium, and all such
activities shall be performed in accordance with the provisions hereof,

ARTICLE Il
MEMBERSHIP AND VOTING

Section 1. Membership, Each co-owner of a unit in the Condominium, present

and future, shall be a member of the Association during the term of such ownership, and

no other person or entity shall be entitled to membership. Neither membership in the
Association nor the share of a member in the funds and assets of the Association shall be

MR e

Shlaussiea Co Lo

' " : “TUTCNIERRNT I




L

1

assigned, pledged or transferred in any manner, except as an appurtenance 1o a unit in
the Condominium.

Section 2. Voling Rights. Except as otherwise provided in the Master Deed and in
these Bylaws, the co-owners of each unit shall collectively be entitled to one vote when
voting by number and one vote, the value of which shall equal the total percentage
assigned to the unit or units owned by them in Article VI.B. of the Master Deed, when
voting by value. Voting when required or permitted herein, or elsewhere In the
Condominium Documents, shall be by value, except in those instances where voting is
specifically required to be both in value and in number, and no cumulative votes shall be
permitted.

Section 3. Persons Entitled to Vote. For each unit, the co-owners shall file a
written certificate designating one Individual representative entitled to cast the vote for the
unit and to receive all notices and other communications from the Assaciation. The
certificate shall be signed by all of the record owners of the unit and filed with the
Secretary of the Association. Such certificate shall state the name and address of the
individual representative designated, the number or numbers of the unit or units owned,
the name and address of the person or persons, firm, corporation, partnership,
assoclation, trust or other legal entity who is the co-owner thereof, and shall be signed
and dated by the co-owners of record. Al certificates shall be valid until revoked, until
superseded by a subsequent certificate, or until a change occurs in the record ownership
of the unit concemed. The Developer shall, at any meeting, be entitled to cast a vote on
behalf of each unit it owns without submitting any proof of ownership.

Section 4. Method of Voting. Votes on a specific issue may be cast in person. In
addition, any person entitled to vote at any meeting may also appear and vote via
telecommunications equipment, as provided in Article I, Section 6 of the Association
Bylaws, or appear and vote (either specifically on an issue or by the general designation
of a person to cast a vote) by written proxy. Proxies shall be valid only for the particular
meeting designated, and any adjournment thereof, and must be filed with the Association
before the appointed time of the meeting.

Section 5, Majority. At any meeting of the members at which a quorum js present,
fifty-one percent (51%) in value of the co-owners voting, whether in person, by
telecommunications or by proxy, on any particular matter, shall constitute a malority for
Lhelapprova! of such matter, except as otherwise required herein, by the Master Deed, or

y law,

ARTICLE It
MEETINGS AND QUORUM
Sectlon 1. First Meeting of Members. The first meeting of the members of the

Assaciation may be convened only by the Board of Directors and may be called at any
time upon ten (10) days' written notice to all members. In no event, however, shall the

AN

o ' 219:'9‘00“" 2
asees Co, L-lﬁfP-lSé

T : T




first meeting be held later than (a) one hundred twenty (120) days after legal or equitable
titte to forty-five (45) Condominium units has been convayed to non-Developer co-owners;
or {b) fifty-four (54) months after the first conveyance of legal or equitable title to a
Condominium unit to a non-Developer co-owner, whichever first occurs. The Board of
Directors may call meetings of members of the Association for informational or other
appropriate purposes prior to the first meeting of members, but no such meeting shall be
construed as the first meeting of members. Prior to the first annual meeting, the
Developer shall appoint all directors.

Section 2. Advisory Committee, The Developer shall establish an Advisory
Committee of non-Developer members upon the passage of () one hundred twenty
(120) days after legal or equitable title to twenty-four (24) Condominium units has been
conveyed to non-Developer co-owners; or (b) one (1) year after the initial conveyance of
fegal or equitable title to a Condominium unit to a non-Developer co-owner, whichever
first occurs. The Advisory Committee shall meet with the Board of Directors from time to
time to facilitate communication with the non-Developer members and to aid in
transferring control from the Developer to non-Developer members. The Advisory
Committee shall be composed of not less than 3 nor more than 4 non-Developer
members, who shall be appointed by the Developer in any manner it selects, and who
shall serve at the pleasure of the Developer. The Advisory Committee shall automatically
dissolve following the election of a majority of the Board of Directors by non-Developer
co-owners. Reasonable notice of such meetings shall be provided to all members of the
Committee, and such meetings may be open or closed, In the discretion of the Board of
Directors.

Section 3. Annual Meetings of Members, Following the first meeting of members,
an annual meeting of the members shall be held each year at the time and place
specified in the Association Bylaws. At least ten (10) days prior to the date of an annual
meeting, written notice of the time, place and purpose of such meeting shall be sent by
first-class mail, postage prepaid, to each person entitled to vote at the meeting.

Section 4. Special Meetings of Members, It shall be the duty of the President to
call a special meeting of the co-owners upon a pstition signed by six (6), In number, of the
co-owners and presented to the Secretary of the Association. Notice of any special
meeting shall state the time and place of such meeting and purposes thereof and shall be
given at least five (5) days prior to the date of such meeting. No business shall be
transacted at a special meeting except as stated in the notice.

Section 5. Quorum of Members. Unless otherwise provided herein, the presencs,
in person or by proxy, of a majority in value of the co-owners entitled to vote shall
constitute a quorum of members. If a quorum shall not be present at any meeting, the
members present may adjourn the meeting for not more than six (6) days.

s

wn l u w3

LR




i

Kaya Orubba -

i

L

N o MRS oo v o+ NN Di L .

ARTICLE IV
ADMINISTRATION

Section 1. Board of Directors. The business, property and affairs of the
Association shall be managed by a Board of Directors consisting of three Directors;
provided that the Board of Directors shall be expanded to five (5) directors when lega} or
equitable title to fifty (50) units has been conveyed to non-Developer ca-owners. Until the
initial meeting of members as provided in Article Ill, Section 1, hereof, the Directors
designated by the Incorporator, or their appointed successors, shall serve, The entire
Board of Directors shall be elected or appolinted at the first meeting of the Association,
each annual meeting of the Association and at any meeting of the Association called by
the Board of Directors for the particular purpose of electing directors, in the following
manner;

(a) If legal or equitable title to at least twenty-one (21) units (twenty-five
percent (25%) of the units that may be created) has been conveyed to non-Developer co-
owners, the non-Developer co-owners shall be entitled to elect one (1) of thres (3)
directors; provided that if fifty-four (54) months after the first conveyance of legal or
equitable title, title to fewer than fifty (50) units has been conveyed, the non-Developer co-
owners shall be entitled to elect two (2) of three (3) directors,

(b) if legal or equitable title to at least sixty-three (63) units has been
conveyed to non-Developer co-owners, the non-Developer co-owners shall be entitled to
elect three (3) of the five (5) directors.

(c) !flegal or equitable title to at least sixty-three (63) units (seventy-five
percent (75%) of the units that may be created) has been conveyed to non-Developer co-
owners, the non-Developer co-owners shall be entitled to elect four (4) of the five (5)
directors.

(d) If legal or equitable title to at least seventy-five (75) units (ninety percent
(90%) of the units that may be created) has been conveyed to hon-Developer co-owners,
the non-Developer co-owners shall be entitled to elect all of the directors.

) (e) If the number of units that may be created is changed, the number of
units stated in subsections (a), (c) and (d) shall be changed to maintain the percentages
set forth in those subsections,

) (f) Al the directors not elected by the non-Developer co-owners pursuant to
subsections (a) through (d) inclusive of this Section shall be designated by the Developer.

Whenever the non-Developer members become entitled to elect one or more
additional directors pursuant to the above formula, the Board of Directors shal| provide
due notice of a meeting at which an election of ali the directors shall take place, The
Board of Directors shall schedule such meeting to occur no later than one hundred twenty

3134988

NN -

Page: 23 of 82




) < o ik .. o | SPNRTERERAL AR

(120) days after the non-Developer members become so entitled or, if such meeting
would be the first meeting of the Association, as provided in Article Ill, Section 1, above.
A Board of Directors elected pursuant to these provisions shall serve until the earlier of
the next annual meeting of the Association or such time as it has been replaced in
accordance with the provisions of these Condominium Bylaws and the Association
Bylaws.

Section 2. Powers and Dutles. The Association shall have all powers and duties
necessary for the administration of the affairs of the Condominium and may do all things
which are not prohibited by law or the Condominium Documents or required thereby to be
done by the co-owners. The powers and duties to be exercised by the Association
through the Board shall include, but shall not be limited to, the power and duty:

(a) To manage and administer the affairs of and to maintain the
Condominium, all appurtenances thereto and the common elements, property and
easements thereof,

(b) To levy and collect assessments against and from the members of the
Assoclation and to use the praceeds therefrom for the purposes of the Association, and
to enforce assessments through liens and foreclosure proceedings where, in the
Judgment of the Diractors, appropriate;

(c) To carry insurance and to collect and allocate the proceeds thereof;

(d) To restore, repair or rebuild the common elements of the Condominium,
or any portion thereof, and any improvements located thereon, after the occurrence of a
casualty and to negotiate on behalf of co-owners in connection with the taking of the
Condominiurn, or any portion thereof, by eminent domain;

(e) To contract for and employ, supervise, and discharge, persons or
business entities to assist in the management, operation, maintenance and administration
of the Condominium;

() To make and amend reasonable rules and regulations conslstent with
the Michigan Condominium Act, the Master Deed and these Condominium Bylaws
affecting co-owners and their tenants, guests, employees and invitees conceming the use
and enjoyment of the Condominium and to enforce such regulations by all legal methods,
including, but not limited to, the imposition of fines and late payment charges, eviction
proceedings or legal proceedings (copies of all such regulations and amendments thereto
shall be furnished to all members and shall become effective ten (10) days after mailing
or delivery thereof o the designated voting representative, as provided for in Article |l
Section 3 above, of each member, and any such regulation or amendment may be
revoked at any time at any duly convened meeting of the Association by the affirmative
vote of more than 50 percent (50%) of all members in number and in value, except that
the members may not revoke any regulation or amendment prior to the first meeting of
the Association);

JRTATRTRIOUM IR 5 -

' ' N ) 4 T




D

ays Qrukba -

(9) To own, maintain and Improve, and to buy, sell, convey, assign,
mortgage, license, rent or lease (as landlord or tenant) any real or person‘al'property,
including, but not limited to, any common elements or unit in the Condominium, .
easements, rights-of-way or licenses or any other real property, whether or not contiguous
to the Condominium, for the purpose of generating revenues, providing benefit to the
members of the Association or in furtherance of any other appropriate purposes of the
Association;

{h) To borrow money and issue evidences of indebtedness in furtherance
of any and all of the purposes of the business of the Association, and to secure the same
by mortgage, pledge or other lien on property owned by the Association; provided,
however, that any such action shall first be approved by the affirmative vote of two-thirds
(2/3) of all of the members of the Association in value at a maesting of the members duly
called;

(i) To establish such committess as it deems necessary, convenient or
desirable and to appoint persons thereto, for the purpose of implementing the
administration of the Condominium and to delegate to such committees any functions or
responsibilities which are not by law or the Condominium Documents required to be
performed by the Board:;

() To enforce the provisions of the Master Deed and Bylaws of the
Condominium, and the Articles of Incorporation and such Bylaws, rules and regulations of
the Association as may hereafter be adopted, and to sue on behalf of the Condominium
or the members and to assert, defend or setile claims on behalf of the members with
respect to the Condominium;

(k) To do anything required of or permilted by it as administrator of said
Condominium by the Condominium Master Deed or Bylaws or the Michigan
Condominium Act, as amended:

{l) To provide services to Co-owners; |

(m) In general, to enter into any kind of activity; to make and perform any
contract and to exercise all powers necessary, incidental or convenient to the .
administration, management, maintenance, repair, replacement and operation of the
Condominium and to the accomplishment of any of the purposes thereof not forbidden, '
?ﬂnd with all powers conferred upon nonprofit corporations by the laws of the State of :
ichigan.

Provided, however, that, except in the case of licenses, leases or rental
arrangements having a duration of one (1) year or less, neither the Board nor the
Assoclation shall, by act or omission, abandon, partition, subdivide, encumber, sell or
transfer the common elements, or any of them, unless at least two-thirds (2/3) of the first
mortgages (based upon one (1) vote for each mortgage owned) and two-thirds (2/3) of

Il St

of e o 6
)

|

LU




the members in number and value have consented thereto. The Board may, however,
grant easements for public utilities or other public purposes consistent with the intended
use of the common elements by the Condominium, and no such grant shall be deemed a
transfer for the purposes hereof.

Sectlon 3, Managing Agent. The Board may employ, at a compensation
established by it, a professional management agent for the Condominium to perform such
duties and services as the Board shall authorize, including, but not limited to, the powers
and duties set forth in Section 2 of this Article. A "professional management agent" shall
mean a person or organization having proven expertise, either from prior experience or by
education, in the operation and management of real property. Prior to the transitional
control date, the Developer, or any related person or entity, may serve as professional
managing agent if so appointed. In no event shall the Board be authorized to enter into
any contract with a professional management agent, or any contract providing for
services by the Developer or its affiliates, in which the maximum term is greater than
three (3) years or which is not terminable by the Association upon the transitional control
date or within ninety (30) days thereafter and upon thirty (30) days' written notice for
cause, Upon the transitional control date, or within ninety (90) days thereafter, the Board
of Directors may terminate a service or management contract with the Developer or its
affiliates. In addition, the Board of Directors may terminate any management contract
which extends beyond one (1) year after the transitional control date by providing notice
of termination to the management agent at least thirty (30) days before the expiration of
the one (1) year.

Section 4. Officers. The Association Bylaws shall provide the designation,
number, terms of office, qualifications, manner of election, duties, removal and
replacement of the officers of the Association and may contain any other provisions
perinent to affalrs of the Assoclation not inconsistent herewith. Officers may be
compensated, but only upon the prior affirmative vote of two-thirds (2/3) of the members.

Section 5. Actions Prior to First Meeting. Subject to the provisions of Section 3 of
this Article IV, all of the actions (including, without limitation, the adoption of these Bylaws,
the Association Bylaws, any Rules and Regulations for the Assoclation, and any
undertakings or contracts entered Into with others on behalf of the Association) of the first
Board of Directors of the Assoclation designated by its Incorporator, or their appointed
successors, before the first meeting of members, shall be binding upon the Assoclation in
the same manner as though such actions had been authorized by a Board of Directors

. duly elected by the members of the Association at the first or any subsequent meeting of
members so long as such actions are within the scope of the powers and duties which
may be exercised by any Board of Directors as provided in the Condominium Documents.

Section 6. Indemnification of Officers and Directors. The Association shall
indemnify every Assoclation director and officer against all expenses (including attomeys'
fees), judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement actually and reasonably incurred
by him as a consequence of his being made a party to or being threatened to be made a
party to any threatened, pending or contemplated action, suit or proceeding, whether civil,

N 2

s = Shiswasses Co.

I

v . " - TEITEENT KL CITI

Il

ve




i

Kaye Ory

criminal, administrative or investigative, by reason of his being or having been a director
or officer of the Association, except in such cases wherein he is adjudged guilty of willful
and wanton misconduct or gross negligence in the performance of his duties or adjudged
to have not acted in good faith and in a manner he reasonably believed to be in or not
opposed to the best interests of the Association and its members, and with respact to_any
criminal action or proceeding, he is adjudged to have had no reasonable cause to believe
that his conduct was unlawful; provided that, if a director or officer claims reimbursement
or indemnification hereunder based upon his settlement of a matter, he shall be
indemnified only if the Board of Directors (with any director seeking reimbursement
abstaining) approves such settiement and reimbursement as being in the best interests of
the Association and, if a majority of the members request it, such approval is based on an
opinlon of independent counsel supporting the propriety of such indemnification and
reimbursement. The foregoing right of indemnification shall be in addition to and not
exclusive of all other rights such director or officer may have. The Board of Directors shall
notify all members that it has approved an indemnification payment at least ten (10) days
prior to making such payment.

ARTICLE V
OPERATION OF THE PROPERTY

Section 1. Personal Property. The Assoclation shall be assessed as the person
or entity in possession of any tangible personal property of the Condominium owned or
possessed in common by the co-owners, and personal property taxes based thereon
shall be treated as expenses of administration,

Section 2. Costs and Recelpts to Be Common. Al costs incurred by the
Association in satisfaction of any liability arising within, or caused by or in connection with,
the common elements or the administration of the Condominium shall be Expenses of
Administration (as defined in subsection 4 below). All sums received as proceeds of, or
pursuant to, any policy of insurance carried by the Assoclation securing the interests of
the co-owners against liabilities or losses arising within, caused by or connected with the
general common elements or the administration of the Condominium shall be receipts of
administration.

Sectlon 3. Books of Account. The Association shall keep or cause to be kept

by independent accountants, but such audit need not be a certified audit, nor must the
accountants be certified public accountants, The cost of such audit, and all accounting
éxpenses, shall be an Expense of Administration, Any institutional holder of a first

mortgage lien on any unit in the Condominium shall be entitied to receive a copy of the

MR 225

L

“




" el BN - o ! AT S ¢

audit report within ninety (90) days following the end of the Association's fiscal year upon
request therefor. At least once a year, the Assaciation shall prepare and distribute to
each co-owner a statement of its financlal condition, the contents of which shall be
defined by the Association.

Section 4. Regular Assessments. The Board shall establish an annual budget in
advance for each fiscal year for the Condominium, and such budget shall contain a
statement of the estimated funds required to defray the Expenses of Administration for
the forthcoming year, which shall mean all items specifically defined as such in these
Bylaws and all other common expenses. The common expenses shall consist, among
other things, of such amounts as the Board may desm proper for the operation,
management and maintenance of the Condominium Project to the extent of the powers
and duties delegated to it hereunder, and in the Master Deed, and shall include, without
limitation, amounts to be set aside for working capital of the Condominium, the cost of
fulfilling the Association's maintenance, repair and replacement responsibilities,
management wages, fees and salaries, common area utilities, common area landscaping
maintenance and replacement, common area cleaning, supplies, snow removal, licenses
and permits, banking, legal and accounting fees, insurance, and creation and
maintenance of an appropriate reserve fund. Each purchaser of a unit in the
Condominium is required to pay the Association One Hundred and no/100 dollars
($100.00) as a nonrefundable working capital contribution. As provided in Section 11
below, an adequate reserve fund for maintenance, repair and replacement of the general
common elements must be established in the budget and must be funded by regular
assessments rather than by special assessments. The budget shall also allocate and
assess all Expenses of Administration against all co-owners in accordance with the
percentage of value allocated to each unit by the Master Deed, without increase or
decrease for the existence of any rights to the use of the common elements.

The Board shall advise each non-Developer co-owner in writing of the amount of
common charges payable by him and shall furnish coples of each budget on which such
common charges are based to all co-owners, although failure to dellver a copy of the
budget to each co-owner shall not affect the liability of any co-owner for any existing or
future assessments. All assessments lavied In accordance with the foregoing provisions
of this Section 4 shall be payable by the non-Developer co-owners in twelve (12) equal
monthly instaliments, commencing with acquisition of legal or equitable title to a unit by
any means. The Board may, in its sole discretion, elect to collect the regular
assessments on a quarteriy basis. Should the Board at any time determine, in its sole
discretion, that the assessments levied are or may prove to be Iinsufficient (1) to pay the
costs of operation and management of the Condominium, (2) to provide for the
maintenance, repair or replacement of existing common elements, (3) to provide
additions to the general common elements not exceeding Two Hundred Fifty and no/100
Dollars ($ 250.00) annually, or (4) to provide for emergencies, the Board shall have the
authority to increase the general assessments or to levy such additional assessment or
assessments as it shall deem to be necessary. Such assessments shall be payable
when and as the Board shall determine,

NODERNMMTINNN i

a = Shlavasrsse Co,

T R ST




o AT « o oes| FPTNEEAL L, «

Any sums owed to the Association by any individual co-owner may be assessed to
and collected from the responsible co-owner as an addition to the regular assessment
instaliment next coming due. The discretionary authority of the Board to levy
assessments pursuant to this Section will rest solely with the Board for the benefit of the
Assoclation and the members thereof and will not be enforceable by any creditors of the
Association or its members.

Section 5. Spacial Assessments. Special assessments, in addition to those
provided for in Section 4 above, may be levied by the Board from time to time, following
approval by the co-owners as hereinafter provided, to meet other needs, requirements or
desires of the Association, including, but not limited to, (1) assessments for capital
improvements for additions to the general common elements at a cost exceeding Two
Thousand Five Hundred and no/100 Dollars ($2,500.00) per year, (2) assessments to
purchase a unit upon foreclosure of the lien for assessments as described in Section 6
hereof, or (3) assessments for any other appropriate purpose not elsewhere herein
described. Special assessments referred to in this Section 5 (but not Including regular
assessments referred to in Section 4 above, which shall be levied in the sole discretion of
the Board) shall not be levied without the prior approval of two-thirds (2/3) of all members
in value and in number, which approval shall be granted only by a vote of the co-owners
taken at a meeting of the co-owners called in accordance with the provisions of Article |l
hereof. The discretionary authority of the Board to levy assessments pursuant to this
Section will rest solely with the Board for the benefit of the Association and the members
thereof and will not be enforceable by any creditors of the Association or its members.

Section 6. Collection of Assessments. When used in this Section 6 and Section
12 below, and wherever else appropriate in these Condominium Bylaws, the term
"assessment" shall include all regular monthly and special assessments referred to in
Sections 4 and 5 above and, in addition, all other charges whatsoever levied by the
Association against any co-owner. This Section 6 is designed to provide the Association
with a vehicle for collection,

Each co-owner, whether one or more persons, shall be and shall remain
personally obligated for the payment of all assessments levied with regard to his unit
during the time that he is the owner thereof. If any co-owner defaults in paying an
assessment, interest at the maximum legal rate shall be charged on such assessment
from the due date and further penaities or proceedings may be instituted by the Board in
its discretion. The payment of an assessment shall be in default if such assessment is
not paid in full on or before the due date established by the Board for such payment. In
the event of defauit by any co-owner in the payment of any installment of the annual
assessment levied against his unit, the Association shall have the right to declare all
unpaid installments of the annual assessment for the pertinent fiscal year immediately
due and payable. The Association may also discontinue the furnishing of any services to
a co-owner in default upon seven (7) days' written notice to such co-owner of its intent to
do so. A co-owner in default on the payment of any assessment shall not be entitled to
vote at any mesting of the Assoclation so long as such default continues. The Board
may, but need not, report such a default to any first mortgagee of record; provided,

IO 22

NI 58

N “evvremmmn . mantsmusnu




I MRS ¢ -~or+ MMM AL |

however, that if such default is not cured within sixty (60) days, the Association shall give
the notice required by Section 2 of Article IX of these Condominium Bylaws. Any first
mortgagee of a unit in the Condominium may consider a default in the payment of any
assessment a default in the payment of its mortgage. When a co-owner is in amearage to
the Association for assessments, the Association may give written notice of arrearage to
any person occupying his unit under a lease or rental agreement, and such person, after
receiving the notice, shall deduct from rental payments due the co-owner the arrearage
and future assessments as they fall due and pay them to the Association. The
deductions shall not be a breach of the rental agreement or lease by the occupant.

Unpaid assessments shall constitute a lisn upon the unit prior to all other flens
except unpald ad valorem real estate taxes and spectal assessments imposed bya
governmental entity and sums unpaid on a first mortgage of record. The Association may
enforce collection of delinquent assessments by a suit at law for a money judgment or by
foreclosure of the lien that secures payment of assessments. Each co-owner, and every
other person, except a first mortgagee, who from time to time has any interest in the
Condominium, shall be deemed to have granted to the Association the unqualified right to
elect to foreclose such lien either by judicial action or by advertisement. The provisions of
Michigan law pertaining to foreclosure of morigages by judiclal action and by
advertisement, as the same may be amended from time to time, are incorporated herein
by reference for the purposes of estabilshing the altemative procedures to he followed in
lien foreclosure actions and the rights and obligations of the parties to such actions. The
Association is hereby granted what is commonly known as a "power of sale.” Further,
each co-owner and every other person, except a first mortgagee, who from time to time
has any interest in the Condominium shall be deemed to have authorized and
empowered the Association to sell or to cause to be sold the unit with respect to which
the assessment is delinquent and to receive, hold and distribute the proceeds of such
sale in accordance with the priorities established by applicable law. Each co-owner
acknowledges that at the time of acquiring title to his unit, he was notified of the
provisions of this section and that he voluntarily, Intelligently and knowingly waived notice
of any proceedings brought by the Association to foreclose by advertisement the lien for
nonpayment of assessments and a hearing on the same prior to the sale of the subject
unit.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, neither a judicial foreclosure action nor a suit at law
for a money judgment shall be commenced, nor shatl any notice of foreclosure by
advertisement be published, until the expiration of ten (10) days after the mailing of a
written notice that an assessment, or any part thereof, levied against his unit Is
delinquent, and the Association may invoke any of its remedies hersunder if the default is
not cured within ten (10) days after the date of mailing. Such notice shall be mailed by
certified mall, retum receipt requested, and postage prepald, and shall be addressed to
the individual representative of the delinquent co-owner deslgnated in the certificate filed
with the Association pursuant to Section 3 of Article || above, at the address set forth in
such cerlificate or at his last known address. Such written notice shall be accompanied
by a written affidavit of an authorized representative of the Association that sets forth (i)
the affiant's capacity to make the affidavit, (i) the statutory and other authority for the lien,

AU 5585




4 ey ey o WL

(iii) the amount outstanding (exclusive of interest, costs, attomeys' fees and future
assessments), (iv) the legal description of the subject unit, and (v) the name of the co-
owner of record. Such affidavit shall be recorded in the Office of the Register of Deeds
for the County in which the Condominium Project is located prior to the commencement
of any foreclosure praceeding, but It need not have been recorded as of the dafe of
mailing as aforesaid. If the delinquency is not cured within the ten (10) day period, the
Association may take such remedial action as may be avallable to It hersunder or under
Michigan law. In the event the Association elects to foreclose the lien by advertissment,
the Association shall so notify the individual representative designated above and shall
inform such representative that he may request a judicial hearing by bringing suit against
the Assoclation. The expenses incurred in collecting unpaid assessments, including
interest, costs, actual attorneys' fees (not limited to statutory fees) and advances for taxes
or other liens paid by the Assoclation to protect its lien, shall be chargeable to the co-
owner in default and shall be secured by the lien on his unit. In a judiclal foreclosure
action, a receiver may be appointed to collect a reasonable rental for the unit from the co-
owner thersof or any persons claiming under him, and each co-owner hereby consents to
the appointment of such a receiver. The Association may purchase a unit at any
foreclosure sale hereunder.

If the holder of a first mortgage on a unit in the Condominlum obtalns title to the
unit as a result of foreclosure of the mortgage, deed in lieu of foreclosure or similar
remedy, or any other remedy provided in the mortgage, such person, and its successors
and assigns, or other purchaser at a foreclosure sale shall not be liable for unpaid
assessments chargeable to the unit which became due prior to the acquisition of tile to
the unit by such person; provided, however, that such unpaid assessments shall be
deemed to be common expenses collectible from all of the unit owners including such
person, its successors and assigns, and that all assessments chargeable to the unit
subsequent to the acquisition of title shall be the responsibility of such person as
hereinbefore provided with respect to all co-owners.

Section 7. Obligations of the Developer. The Developer will maintain the units it
owns and pay a pro rata share of the expenses of snow removal and fence malntenance.
The Developer's pro rata share of these expenses will be based upon the ratio of all units
owned by the Developer excluding any units on which thers is a completed residence at
the time the expense is incurred to the total number of units then in the Condominium
Project. The Developer, although a co-owner and a member of the Assoclation, will not
be responsible at any time for payment of any regular or special assessment, except for
units on which there is a completed residence with respect to which a certificate of
occupancy has been issued by the City of Owosso. In no case shall the Developer be
responsibie for paying any assessment levied in whole or in part to finance any litigation
or other claims against the Developer, any cost of investigating and preparing such claim,
or any similar or related cost.

Section 8. Access; Maintenance and Repair, The Association or its agent shall
have access to each unit, except any residence constructed therson, from time to time
during reasonable working hours, upon notice to the occupant thereof, for the purpose of

WD 5.

K s Co -

! I T




] o MAERCSIREN i o. ) SRR, «

maintenance, repair or replacement of any of the general common elements located
therein or accessible therefrom. The Assaciation or its agent shall also have access to
each unit, including any residence located thereon, at all times without notice for making
emergency repairs necessary to prevent damage to other units, the common elements, or
hoth.

It shall be the responsibility of each co-owner to provide the Association means of
emergency access to the residence and other siructures located within his unit during all
periads of absence, and in the event of the fallure of such co-owner to provide means of
access, the Association may gain access In such manner as may be reasonable under
the circumstances and shall not be fiable to such co-owner for any necessary damage to
the residence or other structure caused thereby or for repair or replacement of any doors
or windows damaged In gaining such access, all of which shall be the responsibility of
such co-owner.

Each co-owner shall repair, replace, decorate and maintain his unit and any limited
common elements appurtenant thereto in a safe, clean and sanitary condition, and shall
install and maintain landscaping on the Frontaga Area. Each co-owner shall also use due
care to avoid damaging any of the common elements or any Improvements located on or
within a common element which is appurtenant to or which may affect any other unit.
Each co-owner shall be responsible for damages or costs to the Association resulting
from negligent damage to or misuse of any of the common elements by him, or his
guests, agents or invitees, unless such damages or costs are actually reimbursed from
insurance caried by the Assoclation, in which case there shall be no such responsibility.
(If full reimbursement fo the Association is excluded by virtue of a deductible provision,
the responsible co-owner shall bear the expense to the extent of the deductible amount,
anything else In these Bylaws to the contrary notwithstanding.)

The provisions of this Section 8 shall be subject to those of Article VI, Sections 1
through 3, inclusive, in the event of repair or replacement on account of a casualty loss.

Sectlon 8. Taxes. Subsequent to the year in which the Condominium is
established, all govemmental special assessments and property taxes shall be assessed
against the individual units and not upon the total property of the Condominium or any
part thereof. Taxes and governmental special assessments which have become a lien
against the property of the Condominium in the year of its establishment (as provided in
Section 13 of the Act) shall be Expenses of Administration and shall be paid by the
Association. Each unit shall be assessed a percentage of the total bill for such taxes and
assessments equal to the percentage of value allocated to it in the Master Deed, and the
owner thereof shall reimburse the Association for his unit's share of such bill within ten
(10) days after he has been tendered a statement therefor.

Section 10. Documents to Be Kept. The Assoclation shall keep current copies of
the approved Master Deed, and all amendments thereto, and other Condominium
Documents available at reasonable hours to co-owners, mortgagees, prospective
purchasers and prospective mortgagees of units in the Condominium.

LT

Page: 32 o
anasnss Co,
1 " . oy [l Y ¢

g




LAl

Kave Grubba - Shiakanses

" bl .o 2! SR A

Section 11. Reserve for Major Repairs and Replacement, The Association shall
maintain a reserve fund for major repairs and replacement of common elements in an
amount equal to at least ten percent (10%) of the Association's current annual budget on
a non-cumulative basis. Moneys in the reserve fund shall be used only for major repairs
and replacement of common elements. The minimum standards required by this section
may prove inadequate for a particular project.

The Association of co-owners should carefully analyze the Condominium Project
to determine if a greater amount should be set aside, or if additional reserve funds should
be established for other purposes.

Section 12. Statement of Unpald Assessments. Pursuant to the provisions of the
Act, the purchaser of any unit may request a statement from the Association as to the
outstanding amount of any unpaid assessments thereon, whether regular or special or
resulting from unpaid charges. Upon written request to the Assoclation accompanied by
a copy of the executed purchase agreement pursuant to which the purchaser holds a
right to acquire a unit, the Association shall provide a written statement of such unpaid
assessments as may exist or a statement that none exist, which statement shall be
binding upon the Assoclation for the period stated therein, Upon the payment of that sum
within the period stated, the Association's lien for assessments as to such unit shall be
deemed satisfied; provided, however, that the failure of a purchaser to request such
statement at least five (5) days prior to the closing of the purchase of such unit shall
render any unpaid assessments and the lien securing the same fully enforceable against
such purchaser and the unit itself,

ARTICLE Vi

INSURANCE; REPAIR OR REPLACEMENT; CONDEMNATION:
CONSTRUCTION LIENS

Section 1. Insurance. The Association shall, to the extent appropriate given the
nature of the common elements, carry vandalism and malicious mischief and lability
insurance (including, without limitation, Directors' and Officers’ coverage), workers'
compensation insurance, if applicable, and such other insurance coverage as the Board
may determine to be appropriate with respect to the ownership, use and maintenance of
the common elements of the Condominium and the administration of Condominium
affairs. Such insurance shall be carried and administered in accordance with the
following provisions:

(a) All such insurance shall be purchased by the Association for the bensfit
of the Association, the co-owners and their mortgagees, as their interests may appear,
and provision shall be made for the issuance of certificates of insurance with mortgagee
endorsements to the mortgagees of co-owners, It shall be each co-owner’s responsibility
to obtain insurance coverage for his property located within the boundaries of his unitor
elsewhere in the Condominium, including but not limited to, the Frontage Area adjoining

TTES:

I 5.




his unit, and the Assaciation shall have absolutely no responsibility for obtaining such -
coverage. The Association and all co-owners shall use their best efforts to see that all
property and liabllity insurance carried pursuant to the terms of this Article Vi shall contain
appropriate provisions by which the insurer waives its right of subrogation as to any
claims against any co-owner or the Association, and, subject to the provisions of Article V,
Section 8, hereof, the Association and each co-owner hereby waive, each as to the other,
any right of recovery for losses covered by insurance. The liabliity of carriers issuing
Insurance obtained by the Association shall not, unless otherwise required by law, be
affected or diminished on account of any additional insurance carried by any co-owner,
and vice versa,

(b) The Assoclation shall carry fidelity bond Insurance in such limits as the
Board shall determine upon all officers and employees of the Association who in the
course of their dutles may reasonably be expected to handle funds of the Association or
any co-owners,

(c) Each co-owner will be responsible for obtaining fire and extended
coverage and vandalism and malicious mischief insurance with respect to his residence
and all other Improvements constructed or to be constructed, and for his personal
property located, within the boundaries of his Condominium unit or elsewhere in the
Condominium Project, including but not limited to, the Frontage Area adjoining his unit,
All such insurance will be carried by each co-owner in an amount equal to the maximum
insurable replacement value, excluding foundation and excavation costs, and evidenced
to the Association in a manner acceptable to the Association. In the event of the failure of
a co-owner to obtain such insurance, the Association may obtaln such insurance on
behalf of such co-owner and the premiums therefor will constitute a lien against the co-
owner's unit which may be collected from the co-owner in the same manner that
Association assessments are collected in accordance with Article V. Each co-owner also
will be obligated to obtain insurance covarage for his personal llabllity for occurrences
within the boundaries of his unit (Including within the residence located thereon), the
limited common elements appurtenant to his unit, or on the Frontage Area appurtenant to
his unit and also for alternative living expense in the event of fire. The Assoclation will
under no circumstances have any obligation to obtain any of the insurance coverage
described In this subsection or any liability to any person for fallure to do so.

(d) Allinsurance carried hereunder shall, to the extent possible, provide for
cross-coverage of claims by one Insured against another.

(e) All premiums upon insurance purchased by the Association pursuant to
these Bylaws, except pursuant to subsection (c) above, shall be Expenses of
Administration.

() Proceeds of all insurance policies owned by the Association shall be
received by the Association, held In a Separale account, and distributed to the
Association, the co-owners and their mortgagees as their interests may appear, provided,
however, whenever repair or reconstruction of the Condominium shall be required as

T —

Kaye Grubby o Shiauaeres Co,
‘ . ren




provided In Section 3 of this Article, the proceeds of any insurance received by th‘e
Association as a result of any loss requiring repair or reconstruction shall be applied for
such repair or reconstruction and in no event shall hazard insurapce proceeds be use_d
for any purpose other than for repair, replacement or reconstruction of the_ Qondomimum
Project unless all of the holders of first mortgages on units In the Condominium have
given their prior written approval,

Section 2. Appointment of Association. Each co-owner, by ownership of a unit in
the Condominium, shall be deemed to appoint the Association as his true and lawful
attorney-in-fact to act in connection with all matters concerning insurance pertinent to the
Condominium and the common elements thereof. Without limiting the generality of the
foregoing, the Association as sald attomey shall have full power and authority to purchase
and maintain such insurance, to collect and remit premlums therefor, to collect proceeds
and to distribute the same to the Association, the co-owners and respective mortgagees,
as their interests may appear (subject always to the Condominium Documents), to
execute releases of liability and to execute all documents and to do all things on behalf of
such co-owners and the Condominium as shall be necessary or convenient to accomplish
the foregoing.

Section 3. Reconstruction or Repair. If any part of the Condominium shall be
damaged, the determination of whether or not, and how, it shall be reconstructed or
repaired shall be made in the following manner:

(a) If the damaged property is a general or limited common element, a unit
or a residence located within a unit, the property shall be rebuilt or repaired if a residence
located within any unit in the Condominium is tenable, unless the Condominium Project is
terminated in accordance with subsection 4 of Section A of Article Xl of the Master Deed.

(b) If the Condominium is so damaged that no residence located within any
unit is tenable, the damaged property shall not be rebuilt and the Condominium shall be
terminated, unless at least two-thirds (2/3) of the first mortgagees and two-thirds (2/3) of
the co-owners in value and in number agree to reconstruction by vote or in writing within
ninety (90) days after the destruction.

(c) Any reconstruction or repair shall be performed substantiallyin
accordance with the Master Deed and the plans and specifications for the Condominium,
and for a residence within any unit, substantially in accordance with the plans and
specifications previously approved by the Association or Developer for that unit, to a
condition as comparable as possible to the condition existing prior to damage unless two-
thirds (2/3) of the co-owners and two-thirds (2/3) of the first mortgagees agree otherwise
by a vote or in writing,

_ _ (d) If the damage is only to a unit, to a structure or improvement located
wit.hln a unit except the perimeter fence, to a limited common slement appurtenant {o a
unit, or to landscaping or a mallbox located within the Frontage Area ad|oining a unit, it
shall be the responsibility of the co-owner of the unit to repalr such damage in accordance

T e

Page; 3B of g0

TN 5




with subsection (e) hereof. In all other cases, except as provided in subsection (D hereof,
the responsibility for reconstruction and repair shall be that of the Association.

(e) Each co-owner shall be responsible for the recanstruction and repair of
his unit, all structures or improvements, including landscaping, within his unit except the
perimeter fence, the limited common elements appurtenant to his unit, and the
landscaping and mailbox located on the Frontage Area.

() Except as otherwise provided herein, the Association shall be
responsible for the reconstruction and repalr of the general common elements. The
Association shall receive all insurance proceeds and be responsible for all reconstruction
and repair activity to the extent of such proceeds. Immediately after a casualty occurs
causing damage to property for which the Association has the responsibility of repair and
reconstruction, the Association shall obtain reliable and detailed estimates of the cost to
return the damaged property to a condition as good as that existing before the damage,

(@) Any proceeds of casualty insurance for which the Association paid the
premium, whether received by the Assoclation or a co-owner, shall be for the
reconstruction or repair when reconstruction or repair Is required by these Bylaws. If the
proceeds of insurance are not sufficient to pay the estimated costs of reconstruction or
repair required to be parformed by the Association, or if at any time during such
reconstruction or repair, or upon completion of such reconstruction or repailr, the funds for
the payment of the costs thereof are insufficient, assessments shall be made against all
co-owners for the cost of reconstruction or repair of the damaged property in sufficient
amounts to provide funds to pay the estimated or actual cost of repair, Such
assessments shall be levied in the same manner as the assessments described in Article
V, Section 4, hereof, and shall be payable when and as the Board shall determine,

(h) If damage within the Condominium impairs the appearance of the
Condominium, the Assoclation or the co-owner responsible for the reconstruction and
repair of the damage will proceed with the repair, reconstruction or replacement of the
damaged item without delay, and will complete such repair, reconstruction or replacement
within six (6) months after the date of the occurrence which caused the damage.

Section 4. Eminent Domain. The following provisions shall control upon any
taking by eminent domain:

(a) The Association, acting through its Board of Directors, may negotiate on
behalf of all co-owners for any taking of general common elements. Any negotiated
setllement shall be subject to the approval of at feast two-thirds (2/3) of the co-owners in
value and shall thereupon be binding on all co-owners.

(b) If an entire unit is taken by eminent domain, the award for such taking
shall be pald to the Association for the benefit of the owner of such unit and the
mortgagee theraof, as their interssts may appear. After acceptance of such award by the
ca-owner and his mortgagee, they shall be divested of all interest In the Condominium,

Kays Grubha -

WA B, -

M ST - M T




W ++ AN ¢ o- or-| IRl

The undivided interest in the common elements belonging to the co-owner whose unit
has been taken shall thereinafter appertain to the remaining units, including those
restored or reconstructed under the provisions of this section,

(c) Inthe event of a partial taking of any unit, any condemnation award
shall be paid by the condemning authority to the Association on behalf of the co-owner of
the unit and his mortgagee, as their interests may appear. If part of the residence located
within the unit is taken, the co-owner shall, if practical, and using the award, rebuild the
same to the extent necessary to make it habitable or usable. If it is not practical to rebuild
the residence within the boundaries of the unit, the entire undivided interest in the
common elements appertaining to that Condominium unit shall thenceforth appertain to
the remaining Condominium units, belng allocated to them in proportion to their
respactive undivided interests in the common elements. The remaining portion of that
Condominium unit shall thenceforth be a common element.

(d) if there is any taking of any portion of the Condominium other than any
unit, the condemnation proceeds relative to such taking shall be pald to the Association,
and the affirmative vote of at least two-thirds (2/3) of the co-owners in value at a meeting
duly called shall determine whether to rebulld, repair or replace the portion so taken or to
take such other action as they deem appropriate. If no such affirmative vote is obtained,
such condemnation proceeds shall be remitted to the co-owners and their respective
mortgagees, as their interests may appear, in accordance with their respective
percentages of value set forth in Aticle VI of the Master Deed.

(e} 1f the Condominium Project continues after a taking by eminent domain,
then the remaining portion of the Condominium Project shall be resurveyed and the
Master Deed amended accordingly, and, if any unit shall have been taken, then Article VI
of the Master Deed shall also be amended to reflect such taking and to proportionately
readjust the percentages of value of the remaining co-owners based upon a continuing
value for the Condominium of one hundred percent (100%). Such amendment may be
effectuated by an officer of the Association duly authorized by the Board of Directors
without the necessity of execution or specific approval thereof by any co-owners.

() Ifany unitin the Condominium, or any portion thereof, is made the
subject matter of any condemnation or eminent domain proceeding or Is otherwise sought
to be acquired by a condemning authority, the Association promptly shall so notify each
holder of a first mortgage lien on any of the affected units, if the Assoclation earlier
received the notice of mortgage required by Section 1 of Article IX hereof, If the common |
elements or any portion thereof are made the subject matter of any condemnation or
eminent domain proceeding or are otherwise Sought to be acquired by a condemning
authority, the Association shall so notify each holder of a first mortgage lien on any of the
affected units, if the Association earlier received the notice of mortgage required by
Seclion | of Article IX hereof.

. gg) Votes ip the Association of co-owners and liability for future Expenses
of Administration appertaining to a Condominium unit taken or partially taken (but which is

RN 5.

" . N




not practical to rebuild) by eminent domain shall thenceforth appertain to the remaining
Condominium units, being allocated to them in proportion to their relative voting strength
in the Association.

Sectlon 5. Construction Liens, The following provisions shall control the
circumstances under which construction liens may be applied against the Condominium
or any unit thereof:

(a) Except as provided below, a construction lien for work performed on or
beneath a Condominium unit or on the Frontage Area (as defined in Article V of the
Master Deed), including that portion of & driveway bullt thereon, at the request of a co-
owner, may attach only to the unit upon or for the benefit of which the work was
performed. A construction lien for work performed in constructing a residence or other
structure within a unit may attach to the residence or struclure constructed,

(b) A construction lien for work authorized by the Developer or principal
contractor, except at the request of a co-owner, and performed upon the common
elements may attach only to units owned by the Devaloper at the time the work is
performed.

(c) A construction lien for work authorized by the Association of co-owners
may attach to each unit only to the proportionate extent that the co-owner of the unit is
required to contribute to the Expenses of Administration as provided by the Condominium
Documents,

(d) A construction lien may not arise or attach to a unit for work performed
on the common elements not contracted for by the Developer or the Association of co-
owners, except as provided in subsection (a) above,

If a co-owner is advised or otherwise leams of a purported construction lien
contrary to the foregoing, he shall immediately notify the Board of Directors. Upon
learning of the purported construction lien, the Board shall take appropriate measures to
remove any cloud on the title of units improperly affected thereby,

Section 6. Mortgagees. Nothing contained in the Condominium Documents shall
be construed to give a Condominium unit owner, or any other party, priority over any
rights of first mortgagees of Condominium units pursuant to their mortgages in the case of
a distribution to Condominium unit owners of Insurance proceeds or condemnation
awards for losses to or a taking of Condominium units, common elements or both,

LT e

lawa

' “ ‘ ey i + BT




ARTICLE Vil
USE AND OCCUPANCY RESTRICTIONS; ENFORCEMENT

Sectlon 1. Establishment of Restrictions. In order to provide for congenial
occupancy of the Condominium, and for the protection of the value of the units therein,
the use of Condominium property shall be subject to the limitations set forth below:

A. Property Subject to These Rastrictions.

(i) Phase I. Allof the units of Phase | of Osburn Lakes Residential
Site Condominium, except any unit or portion of a unit removed from the Condominium
pursuant to Article X of the Master Deed (“Contraction Property”), are and shall remain
subject to these restrictions. Any such Contraction Property removed from the
Condominium may remain subject to the terms and conditions hereof, or Developer may,
at its option, record alternative or supplemental restrictions with respect to such property,
or develop the property outside the Condominium.

(i) Expansion Property. Developer, or its successors or assigns,
has the right to expand Osbum Lakes Reslidential Site Condominium by adding all or any
portion of the Expansion Property to the Condominium in the manner provided in the
Master Deed. Any such property added may become subject to the terms and conditions
hereof, or Developer may at its option record altemative or supplementat restrictions with
respect to any such property added to the Condominium,

B. Building and Use Reastrictions,

(i) Residentlal Uss. Except for units owned by the Daveloper and
used for displaying model homes, all units shall be used for single-family residential
purposes only. For the purposes hereof, "single-family” means (a) not more than two
persons, whether or not related by blood or marriage; or, alternatively, but not
cumulatively, (b)(1) a man or a woman (or a man and woman living together as a
husband and wife), (2) the children of either and of both of them, and/or (3) the parents of
elther but not both of them, and no other persons; or (¢) such other definition as Is
required by applicable law. No more than one residential unit may exist within any unit.
No business, commercial, manufacturing, service or rental enterprise shall ba conducted
within any unit. No garage, recreational vehicle, basement, tent, shack, storage barn or
similar type structure shall be used at any time as a residence, temporarily or
permanently.

(i) Home Occupatlons, Although all units are to be used only for
single-family residential purposes, nonetheless home occupations will be considered part
of a single-family residential use if, and only i, the home occupation is conducted entirely
within the residence and participated in solely by members of the immediate family
residing in the residence, which use is clearly incidental and secondary to the use of the
residence for dwefling purposes and does not change the character thereof. To qualify as

IR ., .

Kays Grubbs - e Co, [+, 0]




a home occupation, there must be (a) no sign or display that indicates from the exterior
that the residence is being utilized in whole or in part for any purpose other than that of a
dwelling; (b) no commodities sold within the unit; (c) no person employed other than a
member of the immediate family residing within the unit; and {d) no mechanical or
electrical equipment used, other than personal computers and other office-type
equipment.

(iif)y Animals. Except for household dogs, cats, small caged birds,
and fish, an owner may not keep, raise, or breed animals, livestock or poultry of any kind
on any unit, Pit bull dogs and other dangerous animals are not permitted in the

Condominium. No pets may be kept, raised or bred on any unit for commercial purposes.

Fenced dog runs adjacent to the rear of a garage will be allowed only upon approval in
writing by the Developer or the Assoclation.

(iv) Trash. No trash, garbage or rubbish of any kind shall be placed
within any unit, except in sanitary containers for removal. All sanitary containers shall be
kept in a clean and sanitary condition and shall be kept in an inconspicuous area of that
unit, as designated by Developer or the Association, except as necessary to allow for
trash collection,

(v) Approval of Construction. The Developer in designing Osbum
Lakes Residentlal Site Condominium, including the location and contour of the streets,
has taken into conslderation the following criteria;

(a) Osbum Lakes Residential Site Condominium is designed
for residential living on large sites,

(b) The construction site within each of the units should be
located so as to preserve the existing trees and contours where practicable.

(¢) The architecture of the residence located within any unit
should be compatible with the criteria as established hereby and also should be
compatible and harmenious to the external design and general quality of other dwsllings
constructed and to be constructed within Osbum Lakes Residential Site Condominium.

Consequently, the Developer reserves the power to control the bulldings,
structures and other improvements placed within each unit, as well as to make such
exceptions to these restrictions as the Developer may deem necessary and proper. No
building, wall, swimming pool or other structure will be placed within a unit or Frontage
Area appurtenant to a unit unless and until the builder or contractor and the plans and
specifications therefor showing the nature, kind, shape, height, color, materials, and
lacation of the improvements (including flcor plan and exterior colors) and the plot plan
{including elevations) have been approved by the Developer, and no changes in or
deviations from such bullder or contractor and plans and specifications as approved will
be made without the prior written consent of the Developer. Two sets of complete plans
and specifications must be submitted; one will be retained by the Developer and one will

O 5.

PrrET— TR




be returned to the applicant. Each such building, wall, swimming pool or structure will be
placed within a unit or Frontage Area only in accordance with the plans and specifications
and plot plan as approved by the Developer. No medular or manufactured homes shall
be placed within any unit. Refusal to approve a builder or contractor or plans and
specifications by the Developer may be based on any grounds, including purely aesthetic
grounds, which in the sole and uncontrolled discration of the Developer seems sufficient,
No alteration in the exterior appearance of any building, wall, swimming pool or other
structures constructed with such approval will be made without like approval of the
Developer. Approval of ptans and speciflcations for reasonable modifications to provide
handicap access pursuant to state or federal law shall not be unreasonably withheld. If
the Developer fails to approve or disapprove any builder or contractor or plans and
specifications within thirty (30) days after written request therefor, then such approval will
not be required; provided that any builder or contractor is properiy licensed by the State of
Michigan and that any building, wall, swimming pool or other structure will be erected
entirely within the boundaries of a unit and does not violate any of the covenants,
restrictions or conditions set forth herein or adopted by the Association. The Developer
will not be responsible for any negligence or misconduct of the builder or contractor or for
any defects in any plans or spacifications or in any building or structure erected by such
builder or contractor according to such plans and specifications or in any changes in
drainage resulting from such construction,

(vi) Size Requirements. All residences hereafter constructed must
conform to the following size requirements:

(a) Area Minimums. The minimum size of the dwelling units
in lots 24 through 55 shall be 1,600 square fest of living space. All other dwelling units
shall be at least 1,078 square fest of living space, ’

(b) General, All Square footage determinations will exclude

basements (including walk-out basements), garages and open porches. The Developer
may specify the number of levels that residences within specific units will be permitted to

(c) Garages. Garages, which will be for use only by the
occupants of the residence to which they are appurtenant, must be attached to the

I

UMD ...

ublia = Ghisnansay o,

" : LA 1 T,




L]

Kaya Grubba o Shlanasses C

(d) Accessoty Structures. Accessory structures may not
exceed One Hundred Twenty (120) square feet of footprint space and Fiteen (15) feet of
height, The exterior shall be constructed with the same materiat and color as the dwelling
house built upon the same lot. The accessory building shall be placed upon the lot in
such a manner that it cannot be seen easily from the strest. No accessory structure may
be constructed without the written approval of the Board of Directors of the Condominium
Association.

(vii) Lawns. Each owner shall properly maintain all lawn areas
within his unit and Frontage Area appurtenant to his unit, and at no time shall the height
of said lawns exceed four inches (4"). All lawns shall be Kept free from weeds,
underbrush, and other unsightly growths,

(i) Recreational and Commercial Vehicles. No house trailers,
commercial vehicles, boat trallers, boats, camping vehicles, camping trailers, motorcycles,
all-terrain vehicles, snowmobile trailers or vehicles other than automobiles or vehicles
used primarily for general personal transportation use may be parked or stored on the
Condominium Premises unless parked in a garage with the door completely closed or
unless present for temporary loading or unloading purposes. Recreational vehicles,
campers and trailers may be parked in driveways for no more than one (1) week per year
subject to their having a permit issued by the Condominium Association, No inoperable
vehicles of any type may be brought or stored on the Condominium Premises, either
temporarily or permanently, unless within a garage with the door completely closed.
Commercial vehicles shall not be parked on the Condominium Premises (unless fully
inside a garage with the door completely closed) except while making deliveries or
pick-ups in the normal course of business or for construction purposes. No commercial
vehicles of any nature will be parked ovemight on the Condominium Premises, except in
a completely closed garage, without the prior written consent of the Developer. Any truck
over three-quarter ton and any vehicle with a company name or other advertising or
commercial designation will be considered a commercial vehicle. No vehicle may be
parked ovemight on any road or on any Frontage Area, except as permitted by the
Association in accordance with any rules or regulations adopted by the Association,

(ix) Fences. No owner may install within his unit or Frontage Area
appurtenant to his unit a fence of any type unless approved in writing by the Daveloper or
the Assaciation.

(X) Antennas. No owner may install within his unit a satellite dish or
television antenna unless approved in writing by the Developer or the Association,

(xi) Hunting. No owner shall engage in or permit hunting in any form
anywhere within the Condominium Premises,

(Xil)y Fumiture; Equipment. No item of equipment, furniture or any
other large movable item shall be kept within any unit outside a building, except lawn
fumniture or picnic tables, provided the same are kept in neat and good condition. All

AN 2

AMIRAA 58

0P TR —" - SRR T




) oo M. i, oo A

other items, such as lawn mowaers, snowmobiles and dune buggies, shall be stored in a
garage.

(xit) Nuisances. No owner of any unit will do or permit to be done
any act or condition within his unit or Frontage Area appurtenant to his unit which may be
oris or may become a nuisance. No unit or Frontage Area will be used in whole or in part
for the storage of rubbish of any character whatsoever (except normat household trash
until the next trash collection dayy), nor for the storage of any property or thing that will
cause the unit or Frontage Area to appear in an unclean or untidy condition or that will be
obnoxious to the eye; nor Will any substance, thing or material be kept within any unit or
Frontage Area that will emit foul or obnoxious odors, or that will cause any noise that will
or might disturb the peace, quiet, comfort or serenity of the occupants of the surrounding
units. No unsightly objects will be allowed to be placed or suffered to remain anywhere
within a unit or Frontage Area. If any owner of any unit falls or refuses to keep his unit or
Frontage Area appurtenant thereto free from refuse piles or other unsightly objects, then
the Developer or the Association may enter the unit or Frontage Area and remove the
same and such entry will not be a trespass. The owner of the unit will reimburse the
Developer or Assaciation for all costs of such removal.

(xiv) Completion of Construction and Stabilization of Soll,
Construction once commenced within any unit must be completed within twelve (12)
months from the date of commencement, and within said period the soil within such unit,
and the Frontage Area appurtenant to such unit, must be completely stabiiized by grading
and seeding of a lawn or other ground cover growth so as to prevent any soil blow area or
soil erosion; provided that this provision shall neither prevent nor prohibit any owner from
maintaining open areas for the planting of trees, shrubbery or a flower garden, but any
such open area shall be controlled so as to prevent blowing or erosion of soll therefrom.

(xv) Compiiance with Laws. No owner shall take any action on or
with respect to his unit that violates any federal, state or local statute, regulation, rule or
ordinance.

C. Restrictlons Relating to Drainage. All owners must comply with all
requirements and restrictions of the Public Health Departments of Shiawassee County
and the State of Michigan with regard to installation and maintenance of private water
wells.

D. Developer's Rights and Responsibillties, Developer may assign, in
whole or in part, its rights and responsibilities hereunder to the Assoclation, and when the

last unit in the Condominium Project has been conveyed, this assignment shall occur
automatically,

‘ E. Enforcement of Restrictions. The Assoclation's costs of exercising its
rights and ag:lmlnlstering its responsibilities hereunder shall be Expenses of Administration
(as defined in Article V above), provided that the Association shall be entitled to recover

..

Kove @rubba - Ehlavannes

a




its costs of proceeding against a breach by a co-owner as provided In Article XII,
subsection i(b) below.

F. Developer's Option to Repurchase. If construction of a residence within
a unit, by an approved builder and pursuant to approved plans and specifications, is not
commenced within eighteen (18) months from the date the first owner other than the
Developer first acquires legal or equitable title to such unit, unless such eighteen (18)
month period Is extended in writing by the Developer, the Developer will have the option
to purchase back the unit from the then current owner. The Developer's option to
purchase back the unit will continue until such time as construction is commenced for a
residence which has been approved as provided by these restrictions, The option will be
exercised by written notice to the owner of record of the unit, and the purchase price will
be equal to the net cash proceeds (sale price less realtor's fee, if any) received by the
Developer from the original sale of the unit, without increase for interest or any other
charge. The Developer will also notify any mortgagee of the unit, as reflected inthe
records of the Assoclation pursuant to Arficle IX below. If the option Is exercised,
Developer is to receive marketable title by warranty deed subject only to restrictions or
encumbrances affecting the unit on the earlier of the date of the land contract or date of
conveyance by the Developer and with all taxes and assessments which are due and
payable or a lien on the unit, and any other amounts which are a lien against the unit,
paid as of the date of conveyance back to the Developer. The closing of the purchase
back shall occur at a place and time specified by the Developer not later than sixty (60)
days after the date of exercise of the option. The then current owner of the unit will take
such actions and shall execute such documents, including a warranty deed to the unit, as
the attomey for the Developer will deem reasonably necessary to convey marketable title
to the unit to the Developer, free and clear of all liens and encumbrances as aforesaid.

G. General Provisions.

() Zoning. Al restrictions imposed by the City of Owosso Zoning
Ordinance, as it applies to an R-1 One-Family Residential District, shall apply to all units
in Osbum Lakes Resldential Site Condominium, except that if the Developer or the
Association has imposed more stringent restrictions, those restrictions shall apply in place
of the City of Owosso's restrictions.

(i) No Gift or Dedication. Nothing herein contained will be deemed
to be a gift or dedicatlon of any portion of the units or other areas in Osbum Lakes
Residential Site Condominium to the general public or for any public purposes
Whatsoever, it being the intention of the Developer that these restrictions will be strictly
limited fo the purposes herein specifically expressad.

(iil) No Third-Party Beneficiaries. No third party, except grantees,
heirs, representatives, successors and assigns of the Developer, as provided herein, will
be a beneficiary of any provision set forth herein.

IR RN 35

i . w RS




(iv) Handicapped Persons. Reasonable accommodations in the
rules, policies and practices of the Condominium will be made as required by the Federal
Fair Housing Act to accommodate handicapped persons.

Section 2. Persons Subject to Restrictions. All present and future co-owners,
tenants and any other persons or occupants using the facilities of the Condominium in
any manner are subject to and shall comply with the Act, the Master Deed, these.
Condominium Bylaws and the Articles of Incorporation, Bylaws, rules and regulations of
the Association,

Section 3. Enforcement. A breach of any provision contained in Section 1 of this
Avrticle VIl shall constitute a breach of these Bylaws and may be enforced pursuant to the
terms of these Bylaws.

ARTICLE Vil
LEASES

Section 1. Notice of intent to Lease. A co-owner, including the Developer,
desiring to rent or lease a Condominium unit for a period of longer than thirty (30)
consecutive days, shall disclose that fact in writing to the Association at least ten (10)
days before presenting a lease form to a potential lessee, and at the same time, shall
supply the Association with a copy of the exact lease form for its review for its compliancs
with the Condominium Documents. If Developer proposes to rent any Condominium unit
before the transitional control date, Developer shall notify either the advisory committee or
each co-owner in writing, For secunity purposes, all non-co-owner occupants shall
register their presence with the Association prior to taking occupancy and shall notify the
Association upon departure, For the welfare and benefit of the condominium community,
no more than six (6) condominium units may be rented at any one time,

Section 2, Conduct of Tenants. All tenants and non-co-owner occupants shall
comply with all of the terms and conditions of the Condominium Documents and the
provisions of the Act. If the Association determines that a tenant or non-co-owner
occupant has failed to comply with the conditions of the Condominium Documents or the
provisions of the Act, the Association may advise the appropriate member by certified
mall of the alleged violation by a person occupying his unit. The member shall have
fifteen (15) days after receipt of the notice to Investigate and correct the alleged breach or
advise the Assoclation that a violation has not occurred. If after fifteen (15) days the
Association believes that the alleged breach has not been cured or may be repeated, It
may institute on its behalf, or the members may Institute, derivatively on behalf of the
Association if it is under the contro| of the Developer, an action for eviction against the
tenant or non-co-owner occupant and, simultaneously, for money damages against the
member and tenant or non-co-owner occupant for the breach of the conditions of the
Condominium Documents or of the Act, The relief set forth In this section may be by any
appropriate proceeding. The Assoclation may hold both the tenant or non-co-owner
occupant and the member liable for the damages caused to the Condominium.

LTRSS -

b : N 0 W s




ARTICLE IX
MORTGAGES

Sectlon 1. Notice of Morigage. A co-owner who mortgages a unit shall notify the
Association of the name and address of his mortgagee and shall file a conformed copy of
the note and mortgage with the Association, which shall maintain such information in a
book entitled "Morigages of Units." If the Assoclation does not recelve such notice, it
shall be relieved of any duty to provide the mortgagee any notice required by the Master
Deed or these Bylaws.

Section 2. Notice of Default, The Assoclation shall give to the holder of any first
and subsequent mortgage covering any unit in the Condominium Project written
notification of any default in the performance of the obligations of the co-owner of such
unit that is not cured within sixty (60) days if such mortgagee has, in writing, requested the
Association to report such defaults to it,

Section 3. Notice of Insurance. The Association shall notify each mortgagee
appearing in sald book of the name of each company insuring the general common
elements of the Condominium against vandalism and maliclous mischief and the amounts
of such coverage.

Section 4, Notice of Meetings. Upon a request submitted to the Association, any
institutional holder of a first mortgage lien on any unit In the Condominium shall be
entilled to receive written notification of every meeting of the members of the Association
and to designate a representative to attend such meeting.

Section 5. Acquisition of Title by First Morigagee. Any first mortgagee who
obtains title to a unit pursuant to the remedies provided in the mortgage, or deed in lisu
thereof, shall not be liable for such unit's unpaid assessments which accrue prior to
acquisition of title by the mortgagee, except to the extent provided in Article V, Section 6,
above,

ARTICLEX
AMENDMENTS
Section 1. Proposal, Amendments to these Bylaws may be proposed by the
Board of Directors of the Association acting upon the vote of the majority of the Directors
or by one-third (1/3) or more of the members in number or in value by an instrument in
writing signed by them.
Section 2, Meeting to Be Held. Upon any such amendment being proposed, a

meeting for consideration of the same shall be duly called in accordance with the
provisions of the Association Bylaws,

T e—

Kaye Qrubba - [

b d ’ * o (AR




Kays Qrubby

Section 3. Vote Required. These Condominium Bylaws may be amended by an
affirmative vote of two-thirds (2/3) of the members in number and in value and two-thirds
(2/3) of all mortgagees at any regular meeting or special meeting called for such purpose,
except that the method or formula used to determine the percentage of value of units in
the Condominium Project and any provisions relating to the ability or terms under which a
co-owner may rent a unit may not be modified or amended without the consent of each
affected member and mortgagee. For purposes of such voting, each co-owner will get
one (1) vote for each unit owned, including as to the Developer all units created by the
Master Deed but not yet conveyed, Each mortgagee shall get one (1) vote for each
mortgage held.

Section 4. Amendments Not Materially Changing Condominium Bylaws, The
Developer or Board of Directors may enact amendments to these Condominium Bylaws
without the approval of any member or mortgagee, provided that such amendments shall
not materially alter or change the rights of a member or mortgagee. The Developer may
also enact amendments to these Condominium Bylaws as provided in the Master Deed,

Section 5. Effective Date. Any amendment to these Bylaws (but not the
Association Bylaws) shall become effective upon the recording of such amendment in the
Office of the Register of Daeds In the county where the Condominium is located.

Section 6. Costs of Amendments. Any person causing or requesting an
amendment to these Condominium Bylaws shall be responsible for the costs and
expenses of considering, adopting, preparing and recording such amendment except as
provided in Article XII.C. of the Master Deed.,

Sectlon 7. Notice; Coples to Be Distributed, Members and mortgagees of record
of Condominium units shall be notified of Proposed amendments not less than ten (10)
days before the amendment is recorded, A copy of each amendment to the Bylaws shall
be fumished to every member after recording; provided, howaver, that any amendment to
these Bylaws that Is adopted in accordance with this Article shalf be binding upon all
persons who have an interest in the Condominium Project regardless of whether such
persons actually receive a copy of the amendment,

ARTICLE X1
DEFINITIONS

All terms used herein shall have the $ame meanings as set forth in the Act or as
set forth in the Master Deed to which these Bylaws are attached as an exhibit,

D .

T W " g




ARTICLE Xit
REMEDIES FOR DEFAULT

Section 1. Relief Available. Any default by a co-owner shall entitie the Association
or another co-owner or co-owners to the following relief:

(a) Failure to comply with any of the terms or provisions of the
Condominium Documents shall be grounds for relief, which may include, without
intending to limit the same, an action to recover sums due for damages, injunctive relief,
foreclosure of lien (if default in payment of any assessment) or any combination thereof,
~and such relief may be sought by the Association, or, if appropriate, by an aggrieved co-
owner or co-owners, :

(b) In any proceeding arising because of an alleged default by any co-
owner or the failure of any co-owner to abide by the provisions of the Condominium
Documents, the Association, if successful, shall be entitled to recover the costs of the
proceeding and such reasonable attomeys' fees (not limited to statutory fees) as may be
determined by the court, but in no event shall any co-owner be entitled to recover
attomays' fees,

(c) Such other reasonable remedies as are provided in the rules and
regulations promulgated by the Board of Directors, including, without limitation, the
levying of fines against co-owners after notice and opportunity for hearing, as provided in
the rules and regulations of the Association, and the imposition of late charges for
nonpayment of assessments,

(d) The violation of any of the pravisions of the Condominium Documents
shall also give the Association or its duly authorized agents the right, in addition to the
rights set forth above, to enter upon the common elements, limited or general, or into any
unit, where reasonably necessary, and summarily remove or abate, at the expense of the
co-owner in violation, any structurs, thing or condition existing or maintained contrary to
the provisions of the Condominium Documents.

Section 2. Faliure to Enforce. The failure of the Assoclation or of any co-owner to
enforce any right, provision, covenant or condition which may be granted by the
Condominium Documents shall not constitute a walver of the right of the Association or of
any such co-owner o enforce such right, provision, cavenant or condition in the future,

Section 3. Rights Cumulative, All rights, remedies and privileges granted to the
Association or any co-owner or co-owners pursuant to any terms, provisions, covenants
or conditions of the aforesaid Condominium Documents shall be deemed to be
cumulative and the exercise of any one or more shall not be deemed to constitute an
election of remedies, nor shall it preclude the party exercising the same from exercising
such other and additional rights, remedies or privileges as may be available to such party
at law or in equity.

LT e

Grubba - wasses Co

i . . " e oy




Section 4. Hearing. Prior to the imposition of any fine or other penalty hereunder,
the offending unit owner shall be given a reasonable opportunity to appear before the
Board and be heard. Following any such hearing, the Board shall prepare a written
decision and place it in the permanent records of the Association.

ARTICLE Xiit
ARBITRATION

Section 1. Submission to Arbitration. Any dispute, claim or grievance arising out
of or relating to the interpretation or application of the Master Deed, Condominium Bylaws
or Management Agreement, if any, or to any disputes, claims or grievances arising
among or between the co-owners or between such co-owners and the Association shall,
upon the election and written consent of all the parties to any such dispute, claim or
grievance, and written notice to the Assoclation, be submitted to arbitration, and the
parties thereto shall accept the arbiter's decision as final and binding. The Commercial
Arbitration Rules of the American Arbitration Association, as amended and in effect from
time to time hereafter, shall be applicable to such arbitration.

The arbiter may be either an attomey acceptable to both parties or a panel of three
(3) individuals, at least one (1) of whom shall be an attomey. The pane! shall be
composed of one (1) individual appointed by the co-owner and one (1) individual
appointed by the Board of Diractors of the Association. These two (2) panelists wili then
promptly agree on the third member of the panel. No co-owner who is a natural person
may appoint himself or a member of his household to the panel. No corporation or
parinership member may appoint a director, partner, officer or employee to the panel,
Neither may the Board appoint a person similarly associated with an Individual, corporate
or partnership member.

Costs of the arbitration shall be borne by the losing party to the arbitration. The
arbiter may require a reasonable deposit to ensure payment of costs. Such deposit shail
_be placed in escrow in the name of the arbiter as trustee in the name of the matter at
issue,

Sec{ion 2. Effect of Election. Election by co-owners or the Association to submit
any such dispute, claim or grievance to arbitration shall preclude such parties from

litigating such dispute, claim or grisvance in the courts. Any appeal from an arbitration
award shall be deemed a statutory appeal. '

Section 3, Preservation of Rights. No co-owner shall be precluded from

petitioning the courts to resolve any dispute, claim or grievance in the absence of election
to arbitrate.

AR e

Kays @rubsy - Ehisusnegs cy,

T INE o — + SR T




ARTICLE XIV
SEVERABILITY
If any of the terms, provisions or covenants of these Bylaws or the Condominium
Documents are held to be partially or whally invalid or unenforceable for any reason
whatsoaver, such holding shall not affect, alter, modify or impair in any manner
whatsoever any of the other terms, provisions or covenants of such documents or the
remaining portlons of any terms, provisions or covenants held to be partially invalid or
unenforceable,
ARTICLE XV
CONFLICTING PROVISIONS
In the event of a conflict between the provisions of the Act (or other law of the
United States or of the State of Michigan) and any Condominium Document, the Act (or
other law) shall govern. In the event of any conflict between the provisions of any one or
more Condominium Documents, the following order of priority shall prevail and the
provisions of the Condominium Document having the highest priority shall govern:
(1) The Master Deed, including the Condominium Subdivision Plan;
(2) These Condominium Bylaws;
(3) The Articles of Incorporation of the Association;
(4) The Bylaws of the Assaciation; and

(6) The Rules and Regulations of the Association.

DT

31




First draft

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS FOR
REAL ESTATE BROKERAGE SERVICES

Section | - Instructions and General Information

A. Purpose — The city of Owosso, Michigan, a public body, politic and corporate is owner of
thirty (30) remaining vacant lots in a single family residential condominium development in the
northeast quadrant of the city east of Gould Street. An aerial map is attached as Exhibit X.

The lots have full underground utility services available including natural gas, electricity, cable,
and telephone at the lot line. The streets in the development are public, maintained by the city,
and are curbed and paved. Common areas are maintained by the condominium association and
included in the annual fees to the members. Lot maintenance is the responsibility of the owner.
For more information on the responsibilities of the parties the master deed is attached as Exhibit
Y

The city wants to engage professionals experienced with residential real estate brokerage services
to help in the sale of these remaining lots. Any broker selected pursuant to this RFP shall serve
at the pleasure of the city and the services may be terminated at the sole discretion of the city
upon delivery of written termination notice. The city also reserves the right to select a pool of
brokers to handle sale of the properties on a rotating basis.

B. Submission of Proposals — Written proposals responding to the questions and requests for
information in the manner specified in this RFP should be submitted to: Mr. Donald Crawford,
City Manager, 301 W. Main St, Owosso, M| 48867 or by e-mailing to:
Donald.Crawford@ci.owosso.mi.us. To be considered one copy of the proposal should be
delivered to the City Manager's Office not later than March 1, 2011, 3:00 PM EST.

C. Additional Information — It is the responsibility of the proposer to inquire about and clarify
any aspect of the RFP. Questions should be directed to Mr. Donald Crawford, City Manager, by
e-mail or postal service at the above addresses or by calling 989 725 0568. Substantive
questions and answers will be documented in letter form and will be sent by electronic mail if an
e-mail address is provided.

D. Property of the City — Any information or materials submitted as a response to the RFP shall
become the property of the City and will not be returned. All submitted materials will be
available for public review.

E. Response to Request for Proposal — Real estate brokers wishing to respond to this RFP may
contact Mr. Donald Crawford, City Manager. No contact with a city council member is allowed
and any such contact will be grounds for immediate rejection of a firm's proposal.



F. Timetable - February 17, 2011  RFP Issued

March 1, 2011 Proposals Due 3:00 PM EST
TBD Oral Interviews
March 7, 2011 Council Selection

G. Selection Process — The selection committee will consist of the city manager, finance director
and one councilmember. The committee will review the submitted proposals. Proposals will
be evaluated based on (1) responses to specifics outlined in this RFP and (2) the selection
criteria. Proposals which omit any items may be rejected as non responsive. From this review,
a group of firms may be chosen for oral presentations to the committee. All proposing firms will
be advised of the firms selected for oral interviews. After conducting oral interviews, if
necessary, the committee will make a selection for recommendation to the city council at their
regularly scheduled meeting on March 7, 2011. The final selection will be made by a vote of the
city council members.

The city may anytime before the selection of a firm reject any and all proposals and cancel this
RFP, without liability therefore, upon finding that there is good cause for canceling the
solicitation. The city shall under no circumstances be responsible for any proposer costs and
expenses incurred in submitting a response to this RFP. This RFP in no way obligates the city to
select a firm.

H. Selection Criteria—The committee will generally use the following criteria to evaluate all
acceptable proposals and to develop a recommendation to be presented to the city council. The
committee reserves the right to evaluate proposals based upon factors beyond the following listed
criteria:

Experience selling residential real estate in the mid-county region
Qualifications of staff to be assigned
Responsiveness of written proposal to the purpose and scope of services to be performed

Response to Shiawassee County presence including relevance to broker services in area for
residential purposes
Responsiveness and reasonableness of proposed brokerage fees

Section Il — Scope of Services and Requirements

The firm selected as residential real estate broker will provide the following services including
but not limited to:

1. Advise the city on expected selling price range and listing price.
2. Advise the city concerning market conditions and expected time to sell.
3. Develop a sale strategy and marketing plan for the vacant lots.



4. Provide and review documents related to sale and assist in the closing of sales.
5. Advise the city on the combining of adjoining vacant lots.
6. Advise the city on waiving requirements to construct a home within a particular time frame.

Section Il — Proposal Format

A Transmittal Letter - A one page transmittal letter prepared on the proposer's business
stationary should accompany the proposal with appropriate contact information including an e-
mail address.

B. Proposal - The submission must contain sufficient information to enable the committee to
evaluate the proposal. It should be prepared in a clear and concise manner and should address
each of the following subsections:

1. Broker Personnel — Describe the manner in which you would organize your firm's resources
to serve as the city's real estate broker. In doing so, please address the following questions or
issues.

a. ldentify the individual who will manage the marketing of the properties on a day-to-day
basis. Show the degree to which he or she can commit the firm's resources to the city and their
availability.

b. Identify other personnel who will be assigned to work on this project, their roles and
responsibilities. What are some relevant aspects of their background?

2. Marketing Approach and Recommendation for Price - Please respond briefly to the
following issues as you deem appropriate.

a. Methods used to determine selling price.
b. Types of marketing available locally, regionally, and nationally.

3. Shiawassee County Presence — Please explain your firm's presence with the county and how
that presence is relevant to this selection.

4. Rationale for Appointment and Proposal Summary — This section should be used by each
proposer to present the case for their appointment including the firm's qualifications and
experience and how that is relevant to the proposed appointment. In particular, you may want to
select a particular property you sold by which you overcame significant challenges and
summarize the similarity to this engagement for the sale of vacant lots.

5. Brokerage Fee Proposal — The fee proposals are an important part of the evaluation process.
State the basic assumptions on which your figures are predicated and any factors that would
affect the proposal. In particular, we are interested in a specific proposal as to the brokerage fee,
expressed as a percentage per sale, per lot. Please explain any factors that would that would
determine variation in fees. The city reserves the right to negotiate the brokerage fees on a
property by property basis and to limit the commission in particular instances, such as, alternative
uses of certain lots.



CONDOMINIUM ACT
Act 59 of 1978

AN ACT relative to condominiums and condominium projects; to prescribe powers and duties of the
administrator; to provide certain protections for certain tenants, senior citizens, and persons with disabilities
relating to conversion condominium projects; to provide for escrow arrangements; to provide an exemption
from certain property tax increases; to impose duties on certain state departments; to prescribe remedies and
penalties; and to repeal acts and parts of acts.

History: 1978, Act 59, Eff. July 1, 1978;0 Am. 1980, Act 283, Imd. Eff. Oct. 10, 1980;0 Am. 1982, Act 538, Imd. Eff. Jan. 17, 1983
;0 Am. 1998, Act 36, Imd. Eff. Mar. 18, 1998.

The People of the State of Michigan enact:

559.101 Short title.
Sec. 1. This act shall be known and may be cited as the “ condominium act”.

History: 1978, Act 59, Eff. July 1, 1978.

559.102 Meanings of words and phrases.
Sec. 2. For the purposes of this act, the words and phrases defined in sections 3 to 10 shall have the
meanings respectively ascribed to them in those sections.

History: 1978, Act 59, Eff. July 1, 1978.

559.103 Definitions; A to C.

Sec. 3. (1) “Administrator” means the department of consumer and industry services or an authorized
designee.

(2) “Affiliate of developer” means any person who contrals, is controlled by, or is under common control
with adeveloper. A person is controlled by another person if the person is a general partner, officer, member,
director, or employee of the person, directly or indirectly, individually or with 1 or more persons or
subsidiaries owns, controls, or holds power to vote more than 20% of the person, controls in any manner the
election of a majority of the directors of the person, or has contributed more than 20% of the capital of the
person.

(3) “Arbitration association” means the American arbitration association or its successor.

(4) “Association of co-owners’ means the person designated in the condominium documents to administer
the condominium project.

(5) “Business condominium unit” means a condominium unit within any condominium project, which unit
has a sales price of more than $250,000.00 and is offered, used, or intended to be used for other than
residential or recreational purposes.

(6) “Business day” means aday of the year excluding a Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday.

(7) “Common elements’ means the portions of the condominium project other than the condominium
units.

(8) “ Condominium buyer's handbook” means the informational pamphlet created by the administrator.

(9) “Condominium bylaws’ or “bylaws’ means the required set of bylaws for the condominium project
attached to the master deed.

(10) “Condominium documents’ means the master deed, recorded pursuant to this act, and any other
instrument referred to in the master deed or bylaws which affects the rights and obligations of a co-owner in
the condominium.

History: 1978, Act 59, Eff. July 1, 1978;0 Am. 1982, Act 538, Imd. Eff. Jan. 17, 1983;00 Am. 2000, Act 379, Imd. Eff. Jan. 2, 2001.

559.104 Definitions; C.

Sec. 4. (1) “Condominium project” or “project” means a plan or project consisting of not less than 2
condominium units established in conformance with this act.

(2) “Condominium subdivision plan” means the drawings and information prepared pursuant to section 66.

(3) “Condominium unit” means that portion of the condominium project designed and intended for
separate ownership and use, as described in the master deed, regardless of whether it is intended for
residential, office, industrial, business, recreational, use as a time-share unit, or any other type of use.

(4) “Consolidating master deed” means the final amended master deed for a contractable condominium
project, an expandable condominium project, or a condominium project containing convertible land or
convertible space, which final amended master deed fully describes the condominium project as completed.

Rendered Friday, September 19, 2014 Page 1 Michigan Compiled Laws Complete Through PA 281 of 2014
O Legislative Council, State of Michigan Courtesy of www.legislature.mi.gov



History: 1978, Act 59, Eff. July 1, 1978;00 Am. 1982, Act 538, Imd. Eff. Jan. 17, 1983.

559.105 Definitions; C.

Sec. 5. (1) “Contractable condominium” means a condominium project from which any portion of the
submitted land or buildings may be withdrawn in accordance with this act.

(2) “Conversion condominium” means a condominium project containing condominium units some or all
of which were occupied before the filing of a notice of taking reservations under section 71.

(3) “Convertible area’ means a unit or a portion of the common elements of the condominium project
referred to in the condominium documents within which additional condominium units or general or limited
common elements may be created in accordance with this act.

History: 1978, Act 59, Eff. July 1, 1978;0 Am. 1982, Act 538, Imd. Eff. Jan. 17, 1983.

559.106 Definitions; C to G.

Sec. 6. (1) “Co-owner” means a person, firm, corporation, partnership, association, trust, or other lega
entity or any combination of those entities, who owns a condominium unit within the condominium project.
Co-owner includes land contract vendees and land contract vendors, who are considered jointly and severaly
liable under this act and the condominium documents, except as the recorded condominium documents
provide otherwise.

(2) “Developer” means a person engaged in the business of developing a condominium project as provided
in this act. Developer does not include any of the following:

(a) A real estate broker acting as agent for the developer in selling condominium units.

(b) A residentia builder who acquires title to 1 or more condominium units for the purpose of residential
construction on those condominium units and subsequent resale.

(c) Other persons exempted from this definition by rule or order of the administrator.

(3) “Escrow agent” means a bank, savings and loan association, or title insurance company, licensed or
authorized to do business in this state or a representative designated to administer escrow funds in the name,
and on behalf, of the escrow agent.

(4) “Expandable condominium” means a condominium project to which additional land may be added in
accordance with this act.

(5) “Genera common elements’ means the common elements other than the limited common el ements.

History: 1978, Act 59, Eff. July 1, 1978, Am. 1982, Act 538, Imd. Eff. Jan. 17, 1983;01 Am. 1983, Act 113, Imd. Eff. July 12, 1983
;0 Am. 2000, Act 379, Imd. Eff. Jan. 2, 2001.

559.107 Definitions; L to M.

Sec. 7. (1) “Leasehold condominium” means a condominium project in which each co-owner owns an
estate for yearsin all or any part of the condominium project if the leasehold interests will expire naturally at
the sametime.

(2) “Limited common elements’ means a portion of the common elements reserved in the master deed for
the exclusive use of lessthan all of the co-owners.

(3) “Mobile home condominium project” means a condominium project in which mobile homes as defined
in section 30a of Act No. 300 of the Public Acts of 1949, being section 257.30a of the Michigan Compiled
Laws, areintended to be located upon separate sites which constitute individual condominium units.

History: 1978, Act 59, Eff. July 1, 1978.

559.108 “Master deed” defined.

Sec. 8. “Master deed” means the condominium document recording the condominium project to which are
attached as exhibits and incorporated by reference the bylaws for the project and the condominium
subdivision plan for the project. The master deed shall include all of the following:

(a) An accurate legal description of the land involved in the project.

(b) A statement designating the condominium units served by the limited common elements and clearly
defining the rights in the limited common elements.

(c) A statement showing the total percentage of value for the condominium project and the separate
percentages of values assigned to each individual condominium unit identifying the condominium units by the
numbers assigned in the condominium subdivision plan.

(d) Identification of the local unit of government with which the detailed architectural plans and
specifications for the project have been filed.

(e) Any other matter which is appropriate for the project.

History: 1978, Act 59, Eff. July 1, 1978;0 Am. 1982, Act 538, Imd. Eff. Jan. 17, 1983.

Rendered Friday, September 19, 2014 Page 2 Michigan Compiled Laws Complete Through PA 281 of 2014
O Legislative Council, State of Michigan Courtesy of www.legislature.mi.gov



559.109 Definitions; P.

Sec. 9. (1) “Percentage of value” means the percentage assigned to each condominium unit in the
condominium master deed. The percentage shall total 100% in the project. Percentages of value shall be
determinative only with respect to those matters to which they are specifically deemed to relate either in this
act or in the condominium documents. Percentages of value for each condominium unit shall be determined
with reference to reasonable comparative characteristics. A master deed shall state the method or formula
used by the developer in the determination of percentage of value. Factors which may be considered in
determining percentage of value are any of the following comparative characteristics, as determined by the
developer:

(a) Market value.

(b) Size.

(c) Duration of atime-share estate, if applicable.

(d) Location.

(e) Allocable expenses of maintenance.

(2) “Person” means an individual, firm, corporation, partnership, association, trust, the state or an agency
of the state, or other legal entity, or any combination thereof.

(3) “Phase of a condominium project” means either of the following:

(8 The land and condominium units of the condominium project which may be developed under the
initially recorded master deed without amendment to the master deed.

(b) Each additional parcel of land and condominium unit added to the condominium project as provided in
section 32.

(4) “Preliminary reservation agreement” means an agreement to afford a prospective purchaser an
opportunity to purchase a particular condominium unit for alimited period of time upon sale terms to be later
determined.

(5) “Purchase agreement” means an agreement under which a devel oper agrees to sell and a person agrees
to purchase a condominium unit as provided in section 84.

History: 1978, Act 59, Eff. July 1, 1978;00 Am. 1982, Act 4, Imd. Eff. Feb. 4, 1982;0 Am. 1982, Act 538, Imd. Eff. Jan. 17, 1983.

559.110 Definitions; Rto T.

Sec. 10. (1) “Record” means to record pursuant to the laws of this state relating to the recording of deeds
except that the provisions of the land division act, 1967 PA 288, MCL 560.101 to 560.293, do not control
divisions made for any condominium project.

(2) “Residentia builder” is a person licensed as a residential builder under article 24 of the occupational
code, 1980 PA 299, MCL 339.2401 to 339.2412.

(3) “Size” means the number of cubic feet, or the number of square feet of ground or floor space, within
each condominium unit as computed by reference to the condominium subdivision plan and rounded off to a
whole number. Certain spaces within the condominium units including, without limitation, attic, basement,
and garage space may be omitted from the calculation or partially discounted by the use of aratio, if the same
basis of calculation is employed for al condominium units in the condominium project, that basis is used for
each condominium unit in the condominium project, and that basis is disclosed in appropriate condominium
documents furnished to each co-owner.

(4) “Time-share unit” means a condominium unit in which a time-share estate or a time-share license
exists.

(5) “Time-share estate” means aright to occupy a condominium unit or any of several condominium units
during 5 or more separated time periods over a period of at least 5 years, including renewal options, coupled
with afreehold estate or an estate for years.

(6) “Time-share license” means a right to occupy a condominium unit or any of several condominium units
during 5 or more separated time periods over a period of at least 5 years, including renewa options, not
coupled with afreehold estate or an estate for years.

(7) “Transitional control date” means the date on which a board of directors for an association of
co-owners takes office pursuant to an election in which the votes that may be cast by eligible co-owners
unaffiliated with the developer exceed the votes which may be cast by the devel oper.

History: 1978, Act 59, Eff. July 1, 1978;00 Am. 1982, Act 538, Imd. Eff. Jan. 17, 1983;00 Am. 2000, Act 379, Imd. Eff. Jan. 2, 2001.

559.111 Offering residential condominium for sale; compliance with occupational code

required.
Sec. 11. A residential condominium in this state shall not be offered for sale unless in compliance with
Rendered Friday, September 19, 2014 Page 3 Michigan Compiled Laws Complete Through PA 281 of 2014

O Legislative Council, State of Michigan Courtesy of www.legislature.mi.gov



article 24 or article 25 of the occupational code, Act No. 299 of the Public Acts of 1980, being sections
339.2401 to 339.2412 and 339.2501 to 339.2516 of the Michigan Compiled Laws.

History: Add. 1982, Act 538, Imd. Eff. Jan. 17, 1983.

559.115 Construction or interpretation of act.

Sec. 15. This act shall not be construed or interpreted as to authorize or permit the incurring of
indebtedness of the state contrary to the provisions of the state constitution of 1963.

History: Add. 1982, Act 4, Imd. Eff. Feb. 4, 1982.

559.121 Offering condominium unit or project for sale; liabilities and penalties; duties of
developer; compliance by association of co-owners.

Sec. 21. (1) A condominium unit located within this state shall not be offered for itsinitial salein this state
unless the offering is made in accordance with this act or the offering is exempt by rule of the administrator.
An interest in a condominium unit located outside of this state which is offered for sale in this state is not
subject to this act.

(2) In addition to other liabilities and penalties, a developer who violates this section is subject to section
115.

(3) Except as provided in subsections (4) and (5), a condominium project or condominium unit which was
approved under former Act No. 229 of the Public Acts of 1963, may be offered for sale without further
compliance with this act.

(4) A developer of a condominium project which was approved under former Act No. 229 of the Public
Acts of 1963 shall do all of the following:

(a) Provide documents as provided in section 84a.

(b) Establish an escrow account pursuant to section 103b or 173(1)(&)(ii).

(c) Provide notice of conversion pursuant to section 104(2) if the condominium project is a conversion
condominium project.

(5) An association of co-owners of a condominium project approved under former Act No. 229 of the
Public Acts of 1963 shall comply with section 68.

History: 1978, Act 59, Eff. July 1, 1978;00 Am. 1982, Act 538, Imd. Eff. Jan. 17, 1983;0 Am. 1983, Act 113, Imd. Eff. July 12, 1983

Compiler'snote: Act 229 of 1963, referred to in this section, was repealed by Act 59 of 1978.

559.131 Condominium project containing convertible area; contents of master deed.

Sec. 31. If the condominium project contains any convertible area, the master deed shall contain the
following:

(a) A reasonably specific reference to the convertible area within the condominium project.

(b) A statement of the maximum number of condominium units that may be created within the convertible
area

(c) A genera statement describing what types of condominium units may be created on the convertible
area

(d) A statement of the extent to which a structure erected on the convertible area will be compatible with
structures on other portions of the condominium project.

(e) A genera description of improvements that may be made on the convertible area within the
condominium project.

(f) A description of the developer's reserved right, if any, to create limited common elements within any
convertible area, and to designate common elements therein which may subsequently be assigned as limited
common elements.

(9) A time limit of not more than 6 years after initial recording of the master deed, by which the election to
use this option expires.

History: 1978, Act 59, Eff. July 1, 1978;0 Am. 1982, Act 538, Imd. Eff. Jan. 17, 1983,

559.132 Expandable condominium project; contents of master deed.

Sec. 32. If the condominium project is an expandable condominium project, the master deed shall contain
the following:

(a) The explicit reservation of an election on the part of the developer or its successors to expand the
condominium project.

(b) A statement of any restrictions on the election in subdivision (a), including, without limitation, a
statement as to whether the consent of any co-owners is required, and if so, a statement as to the method

Rendered Friday, September 19, 2014 Page 4 Michigan Compiled Laws Complete Through PA 281 of 2014
O Legislative Council, State of Michigan Courtesy of www.legislature.mi.gov



whereby the consent is ascertained; or a statement that the limitations do not exist.

(c) A time limit based on size and nature of the project, of not more than 6 years after the initial recording
of the master deed, upon which the election to expand the condominium project expires.

(d) A description of the land that may be added to the condominium project. The description shall be a
legal description by metes and bounds or by reference to subdivided land unless the land to be added can be
otherwise specifically described.

(e) A statement as to whether, if any of the additional land is added to the condominium project, al of it or
any particular portion of it must be added, and if not, a statement of any limitations as to what portions may
be added.

(f) A statement as to whether portions of the additional land may be added to the condominium project at
different times, together with appropriate restrictions fixing the boundaries of those portions by lega
descriptions setting forth the metes and bounds of the land and regulating the order in which they may be
added to the condominium project. If the order in which portions of the additional land may be added is not
restricted, a statement shall be included that the restrictions do not exist.

(9) A statement of the specific restrictions, if any, as to the locations of any improvements that may be
made on any portions of the additional land added to the condominium project.

(h) A statement of the maximum number of condominium units that may be created on the additional land.
If portions of the additional land may be added to the condominium project and the boundaries of those
portions are fixed in accordance with subdivision (f), the master deed shall state the maximum number of
condominium units that may be created on each portion added to the condominium project.

(i) With respect to the additional land and to the portion or portions of the additional land that may be
added to the condominium project, a statement of the maximum percentage of the aggregate land and floor
area of al condominium units that may be created on the additional land that may be occupied by
condominium units not restricted exclusively to residential use.

()) A statement of the extent to which any structures erected on any portion of the additional land added to
the condominium project are compatible with structures on the land included in the original master deed.

(k) A description of improvements that shall be made on any portion of the additional land added to the
condominium project or a statement of any restrictions as to what other improvements may be made on the
additional land.

() A statement of any restrictions as to the types of condominium units that may be created on the
additional land.

(m) A description of the developer's reserved right, if any, to create limited common elements within any
portion of the origina condominium project or additional land added to the condominium project and to
designate common elements which may subsequently be assigned as limited common elements.

(n) A statement as to whether the condominium project shall be expanded by a series of successive
amendments to the master deed, each adding additional land to the condominium project as then constituted,
or whether a series of separate condominium projects shall be created within the additional land area, al or
some of which shall then be merged into an expanded condominium project or projects by the ultimate
recordation of aconsolidating master deed.

(o) A description of the developer's reserved right, if any, to create easements within any portion of the
original condominium project for the benefit of land outside the condominium project.

History: 1978, Act 59, Eff. July 1, 1978;00 Am. 1982, Act 538, Imd. Eff. Jan. 17, 1983.

559.133 Contractable condominium project; contents of master deed.

Sec. 33. If the condominium project is a contractable condominium project, the master deed shall contain
the following:

(a) The explicit reservation of an election on the part of the developer or its successors to contract the
condominium project.

(b) A statement of the restrictions on that election, including, without limitation, a statement as to whether
the consent of any co-owners are required, and if so, a statement as to the method whereby the consent shall
be ascertained.

(c) A time limit of not more than 6 years after the initial recording of the master deed, by which the
election to contract the condominium project expires, together with a statement of the circumstances, if any,
which terminate that option before the expiration of the specified time limit.

(d) A general description of the land which may be withdrawn from the condominium project.

(e) A statement as to whether portions of the land may be withdrawn from the condominium project at
different times, together with the restrictions fixing the boundaries of those portions by general descriptions of
the land and regulating the order in which they may be withdrawn from the condominium project.

Rendered Friday, September 19, 2014 Page 5 Michigan Compiled Laws Complete Through PA 281 of 2014

O Legislative Council, State of Michigan Courtesy of www.legislature.mi.gov



History: 1978, Act 59, Eff. July 1, 1978;00 Am. 1982, Act 538, Imd. Eff. Jan. 17, 1983.

559.134 Leasehold condominium project; lease terms; required contents of master deed,;
termination of co-owner's leasehold interest by lessor prohibited.

Sec. 34. (1) The terms of a lease in a leasehold condominium project shall not be unconscionable to
prospective co-owners as determined at the time of signing the lease.

(2) If the condominium project is a leasehold condominium project, then with respect to any ground lease
or other leases the expiration or termination of which shall or may terminate the condominium project, the
master deed shall identify precisely the location of the leased property and the master deed shall contain the
following:

(a) The date upon which each leaseis due to expire.

(b) A statement as to whether any land and improvements will be owned by the co-owners in fee simple,
and if so, then al of the following:

(i) A description of the land and improvements which will be owned by the co-owners in fee simple,
including without limitation alegal description by metes and bounds of the land.

(i) A statement of any rights the co-owners shall have to remove the improvements within a reasonable
time after the expiration or termination of the lease involved.

(iii) A statement of the rights the co-owners shall have to redeem the reversion or any of the reversions, or
a statement that they shall not have those rights.

(3) After the recording of the master deed, a lessor who consented in writing to the master deed or a
successor in interest to the lessor shall not terminate any part of the leasehold interest of a co-owner who
makes timely payment of the share of the rent to the person or persons designated in the master deed for the
receipt of the rent and who otherwise complies with al covenants which, if violated, would entitle the lessor
to terminate the lease.

History: 1978, Act 59, Eff. July 1, 1978;0 Am. 1982, Act 538, Imd. Eff. Jan. 17, 1983.

559.135 Easements; creation; description; contents.

Sec. 35. Where fulfillment of the purposes of sections 31, 32, 33 or any other sections of this act
reasonably requires the creation of easements, then the easements shall be created in the condominium
documents or in other appropriate instruments and shall be reasonably described in the condominium
documents. The easements shall contain the following:

(a) A description of the permitted use.

(b) If less than al co-owners are entitled to utilize the easement, a statement of the relevant restrictions on
the utilization of the easement.

(c) If any persons other than those entitled to the use of the condominium units may utilize an easement, a
statement of the rights of others to utilization of the same and a statement of the obligations, if any, of all
persons required to contribute to the financial support of the easement.

History: 1978, Act 59, Eff. July 1, 1978.

559.136 Addition of undivided interests in land as common elements; tenancy of co-owners;
condominium unit on lands prohibited; description in master deed.

Sec. 36. The master deed may provide that undivided interests in land may be added to the condominium
project as common elements in which land the co-owners may be tenants in common, joint tenants, or life
tenants with other persons. A condominium unit shall not be situated on the lands. The master deed, or any
amendment to master deed under which the land is submitted to the condominium project shall include alegal
description thereof and shall describe the nature of the co-owners' estate therein.

History: 1978, Act 59, Eff. July 1, 1978.

559.137 Allocation to condominium unit of undivided interest in common elements
proportionate to percentage of value assigned; statement, table, exhibit, or schedule in
master deed; formula; basis of reallocation; allocating percentage of value to convertible
space; alteration of undivided interest in common elements; partition of common
elements.

Sec. 37. (1) The master deed may allocate to each condominium unit an undivided interest in the common
elements proportionate to its percentage of value assigned as provided in this act.

(2) If an equal percentage of value is allocated to each condominium unit, the master deed may simply
state that fact and need not express the fraction or percentage so alocated.

(3) If an equal percentage of value is not assigned, the percentage of value allocated to each condominium

Rendered Friday, September 19, 2014 Page 6 Michigan Compiled Laws Complete Through PA 281 of 2014
O Legislative Council, State of Michigan Courtesy of www.legislature.mi.gov



unit shall be reflected by a table in the master deed or by an exhibit or schedule accompanying the master
deed and recorded simultaneously therewith. The table shall identify the condominium units, listing them
serialy or grouping them together in the case of condominium units to which identical percentages of vaue
are alocated, and setting forth the respective percentages relative to the several condominium units. The
master deed or the exhibit or schedule shall set forth, with reasonable clarity, the formula upon which the
percentages were allocated in the original master deed and the basis upon which the same will be reallocated
in any modification of the master deed by which condominium units will be added, withdrawn, or modified,
which basis may provide for reasonable flexibility if different types of condominium units are introduced into
the condominium project in subsequent phases thereof.

(4) A convertible space shall be allocated a percentage of value in accordance with the formula used to
derive the original percentage of value.

(5) Except to the extent otherwise expressly provided by this act, the undivided interest in the common
elements allocated to any condominium unit shall not be altered, and any purported transfer, encumbrance, or
other disposition of that interest without the condominium unit to which it appertainsis void.

(6) The common elements shall not be subject to an action for partition unless the condominium project is
terminated.

History: 1978, Act 59, Eff. July 1, 1978.

559.138 Creation of condominium units within convertible or additional lands; allocation of
interests in common elements; amended master deed and condominium subdivision plan;
revised schedule.

Sec. 38. Interests in the common elements shall not be allocated to condominium units to be created within
convertible land or within additional land until the master deed is duly amended and an amended
condominium subdivision plan depicting the new condominium units is recorded. The amendment to the
master deed shall contain a revised schedule of undivided interests in the common elements so that the
condominium units depicted on the amended condominium subdivision plan shall be alocated undivided
interests in the common elements in accordance with the formula for alocation of the undivided interests as
described in the original master deed.

History: 1978, Act 59, Eff. July 1, 1978.

559.139 Assignment and reassignment of limited common elements; application;
amendment to master deed.

Sec. 39. (1) Assignments and reassignments of limited common elements shall be reflected by the origina
master deed or an amendment to the master deed. A limited common element shall not be assigned or
reassigned except in accordance with this act and the condominium documents.

(2) Unless expressly prohibited by the condominium documents, a limited common element may be
reassigned upon written application of the co-owners concerned to the principal officer of the association of
co-owners or to other persons as the condominium documents may specify. The officer or persons to whom
the application is duly made shall promptly prepare and execute an amendment to the master deed reassigning
all rights and obligations with respect to the limited common element involved. The amendment shall be
delivered to the co-owners of the condominium units concerned upon payment by them of all reasonable costs
for the preparation and recording of the amendment to the master deed.

(3) A common element not previously assigned as a limited common element shall be so assigned only in
pursuance of the provisions of the condominium documents and of this act. The amendment to the master
deed making the assignment shall be prepared and executed by the principal officer of the association of
co-owners or by other persons as the condominium documents specify.

History: 1978, Act 59, Eff. July 1, 1978;0 Am. 1982, Act 538, Imd. Eff. Jan. 17, 1983.

559.140 Easement for encroachment.

Sec. 40. To the extent that a condominium unit or common element encroaches on any other condominium
unit or common element, whether by reason of any deviation from the plans in the construction, repair,
renovation, restoration, or replacement of any improvement, or by reason of the settling or shifting of any
land or improvement, a valid easement for the encroachment shall exist. This section shall not be construed to
allow or permit any encroachment upon, or an easement for an encroachment upon, units described in the
master deed as being comprised of land and/or airspace above and/or below said land, without the consent of
the co-owner of the unit to be burdened by the encroachment or easement.

History: 1978, Act 59, Eff. July 1, 1978;00 Am. 2000, Act 379, Imd. Eff. Jan. 2, 2001.

Rendered Friday, September 19, 2014 Page 7 Michigan Compiled Laws Complete Through PA 281 of 2014
O Legislative Council, State of Michigan Courtesy of www.legislature.mi.gov



559.141 Conversion of convertible area into condominium units or common elements;
amendment; identifying number; allocating portion of undivided interest; description of
limited common elements.

Sec. 41. (1) The developer may convert al or any portion of any convertible area into condominium units
or common elements, including, without limitation, limited common elements, subject to the restrictions
which the condominium documents may specify.

(2) The developer shall promptly prepare, execute, and record an amendment to the master deed describing
the conversion. The amendment shall assign an identifying number to each condominium unit formed out of
convertible area and shall allocate to each condominium unit a portion of the undivided interest in the
common elements appertaining to that area. The amendment shall describe or delineate any limited common
elements formed out of the convertible area, showing or designating the condominium unit or condominium
units to which each is assigned.

History: 1978, Act 59, Eff. July 1, 1978.

559.143 Expansion, contraction, or conversion of land or space; time of occurrence;
consolidating master deed.

Sec. 43. An expansion, contraction, or conversion of land or space in accordance with this act and the
condominium documents shall be deemed to have occurred at the time of recording of an amendment to the
master deed embodying all essential elements of the expansion, contraction, or conversion. At the conclusion
of expansion of a condominium project a consolidating master deed shall be prepared and recorded by the
developer in accordance with the provisions of this act and the condominium documents.

History: 1978, Act 59, Eff. July 1, 1978;00 Am. 1982, Act 538, Imd. Eff. Jan. 17, 1983.

559.144 Transferable easement as to common elements for purpose of making
improvements.

Sec. 44. Subject to any restrictions the condominium documents may specify, the developer has a
transferable easement over and on the common elements for the purpose of making improvements on the
submitted land and any additional land pursuant to the provisions of those documents and of this act, and for
the purpose of doing all things reasonably necessary and proper in connection therewith.

History: 1978, Act 59, Eff. July 1, 1978.

559.145 Offices, model units, and other facilities; maintenance; costs; restoration of
facilities.

Sec. 45. The developer and its duly authorized agents, representatives, and employees, and residential
builders who receive an assignment of rights from the developer, may maintain offices, model units, and other
facilities on the submitted land. The developer may include provisions in the condominium documents
relative to the facilities as may reasonably facilitate development and sale of the project. The developer shall
pay or be responsible to require a residential builder to pay all costs related to the condominium units or
common elements while owned by developer and to restore the facilities to habitable status upon termination
of use.

History: 1978, Act 59, Eff. July 1, 1978;00 Am. 2000, Act 379, Imd. Eff. Jan. 2, 2001.

559.146 Restrictions and covenants.

Sec. 46. The developer or a co-owner may impose reasonable restrictions or covenants running with the
land upon a condominium unit in the condominium project, in addition to the reasonable restrictions and
covenants as may be contained in the condominium documents, so long as such restrictions and covenants are
not otherwise prohibited by law and as long as they are consistent with the condominium documents. The
restrictions and covenants may include provisions governing the joint or common ownership of condominium
units in the condominium project and the basis upon which the usage of the condominium unit or
condominium units may be shared from time to time by the joint or common owners thereof.

History: 1978, Act 59, Eff. July 1, 1978.

559.147 Improvements or alterations by co-owners.

Sec. 47. (1) Subject to the prohibitions and restrictions in the condominium documents, a co-owner may
make improvements or alterations within a condominium unit that do not impair the structural integrity of a
structure or otherwise lessen the support of a portion of the condominium project. Except as provided in
section 47a, a co-owner shall not do anything which would change the exterior appearance of a condominium

Rendered Friday, September 19, 2014 Page 8 Michigan Compiled Laws Complete Through PA 281 of 2014
O Legislative Council, State of Michigan Courtesy of www.legislature.mi.gov



unit or of any other portion of the condominium project except to the extent and subject to the conditions as
the condominium documents may specify.

(2) If a co-owner acquires an adjoining condominium unit, or an adjoining part of a condominium unit,
then the co-owner may remove all or part of an intervening partition or create doorways or other apertures
therein, notwithstanding that the partition may in whole or in part be a common element, so long as a portion
of any bearing wall or bearing column is not weakened or removed and a portion of any common element
other than that partition is not damaged, destroyed, or endangered. The creation of doorways or other
apertures shall not be deemed an alteration of condominium unit boundaries.

History: 1978, Act 59, Eff. July 1, 1978;0 Am. 1987, Act 31, Imd. Eff. May 27, 1987.

559.147a Persons with disabilities; improvements or modifications by co-owner to facilitate
access or movement; alleviation of hazardous conditions.

Sec. 47a. (1) A co-owner may make improvements or modifications to the co-owner's condominium unit,
including improvements or modifications to common elements and to the route from the public way to the
door of the co-owner's condominium unit, at his or her expense, if the purpose of the improvement or
modification is to facilitate access to or movement within the unit for persons with disabilities who reside in
or regularly visit the unit, or to alleviate conditions that could be hazardous to persons with disabilities who
reside in or regularly visit the unit. The improvement or modification shall not impair the structural integrity
of a structure or otherwise lessen the support of a portion of the condominium project. The co-owner is liable
for the cost of repairing any damage to a common element caused by building or maintaining the
improvement or modification, unless the damage could reasonably be expected in the norma course of
building or maintaining the improvement or modification. The improvement or modification may be made
notwithstanding prohibitions and restrictions in the condominium documents, but shall comply with all
applicable state and loca building code requirements and health and safety laws and ordinances and shall be
made as closely as reasonably possible in conformity with the intent of applicable prohibitions and restrictions
regarding safety and aesthetics of the proposed modification.

(2) An improvement or modification allowed by this section that affects the exterior of the condominium
unit shall not unreasonably prevent passage by other residents of the condominium project. A co-owner who
has made exterior improvements or modifications allowed by this section shall notify the association of
co-owners in writing of the co-owner's intention to convey or lease his or her condominium unit to another at
least 30 days before the conveyance or lease. Not more than 30 days after receiving a notice from a co-owner
under this subsection, the association of co-owners may require the co-owner to remove the improvement or
modification at the co-owner's expense. If the co-owner fails to give timely notice of a conveyance or lease,
the association of co-owners at any time may remove or require the co-owner to remove the improvement or
modification at the co-owner's expense. However, the association of co-owners may not remove or require the
removal of an improvement or modification if a co-owner intends to resume residing in the unit within 12
months or a co-owner conveys or leases his or her condominium unit to a person with disabilities who needs
the same type of improvement or modification or who has a person residing with him or her who requires the
same type of improvement or modification.

(3) If a co-owner makes an exterior improvement or modification alowed under this section, the co-owner
shall maintain liability insurance, underwritten by an insurer authorized to do business in this state and
naming the association of co-owners as an additional insured, in an amount adequate to compensate for
personal injuries caused by the exterior improvement or modification. The co-owner is not liable for acts or
omissions of the association of co-owners with respect to the exterior improvement or modification and is not
required to maintain liability insurance with respect to any common element. The association of co-ownersis
responsible for maintenance, repair, and replacement of the improvement or modification only to the extent of
the cost currently incurred by the association of co-owners for maintenance, replacement, and repair of the
common elements covered or replaced by the improvement or modification. All costs of maintenance, repair,
and replacement of the improvement or modification exceeding that currently incurred by the association of
co-owners for maintenance, repair, and replacement of the common elements covered or replaced by the
improvement or modification shall be assessed to and paid by the co-owner or the unit serviced by the
improvement or modification.

(4) Before an improvement or modification allowed by this section is made, the co-owner shall submit
plans and specifications for the improvements or modifications to the association of co-owners for review and
approval. The association of co-owners shall determine whether the proposed improvement or modification
substantially conforms to the requirements of this section and shall not deny a proposed improvement or
modification without good cause. If the association of co-owners denies a proposed improvement or
modification, the association of co-owners shal list, in writing, the changes needed to make the proposed
Rendered Friday, September 19, 2014 Page 9 Michigan Compiled Laws Complete Through PA 281 of 2014

O Legislative Council, State of Michigan Courtesy of www.legislature.mi.gov



improvement or modification conform to the requirements of this section and shall deliver that list to the
co-owner. The association of co-owners shall approve or deny the proposed improvement or modification not
later than 60 days after the plans and specifications are submitted by the co-owner proposing the improvement
or modification to the association of co-owners. If the association of co-owners does not approve or deny
submitted plans and specifications within the 60-day period, the co-owner may make the proposed
improvement or modification without the approval of the association of co-owners. A co-owner may bring an
action against the association of co-owners and the officers and directors to compel those persons to comply
with this section if the co-owner disagrees with a denial by the association of co-owners of the co-owner's
proposed improvement or modification.

(5) This section applies to condominium units existing on May 27, 1987 and to those built or converted
after May 27, 1987.

(6) This section does not apply to a condominium unit that is otherwise required by law to be barrier-free
and does not impose on a co-owner the cost of maintaining that barrier-free unit.

(7) As used in this section, “person with disabilities’ means that term as defined in section 2 of the state
construction code act of 1972, 1972 PA 230, MCL 125.1502.

History: Add. 1987, Act 31, Imd. Eff. May 27, 1987;00 Am. 1998, Act 36, Imd. Eff. Mar. 18, 1998;0 Am. 2000, Act 379, Imd. Eff.
Jan. 2, 2001.

559.148 Relocation of boundaries between adjoining condominium units.

Sec. 48. (1) If the condominium documents expressly permit the relocation of boundaries between
adjoining condominium units, then the boundaries between the condominium units may be relocated in
accordance with this section and any restrictions not otherwise unlawful which the condominium documents
may specify. The boundaries between adjoining condominium units shall not be relocated unless the
condominium documents expressly permit it. A relocation of boundaries shall not occur without approval of
an affected mortgagee.

(2) If the co-owners of adjoining condominium units whose mutual boundaries may be relocated desire to
relocate the boundaries, then the principal officer of the association of co-owners or other persons as the
condominium documents may specify, shall, upon written application of the co-owners, forthwith prepare and
execute an amendment to the master deed duly relocating the boundaries pursuant to the condominium
documents and this act.

(3) An amendment to the master deed shall identify the condominium units involved and shall state that the
boundaries between those condominium units are being relocated by agreement of the co-owners thereof,
which amendment shall contain conveyancing between those co-owners. If the co-owners of the
condominium units involved have specified in their written application a reasonable reallocation as between
the condominium units involved of the aggregate undivided interest in the common elements appertaining to
those condominium units, the amendment to the master deed shall reflect that reallocation.

(4) If the co-owners of the condominium units involved have specified in their written application a
reasonabl e reallocation as between the condominium units involved of the aggregate number of votes in the
association of co-owners alocated to those condominium units, an amendment to the bylaws shall reflect that
reallocation and a proportionate reallocation of liability for expenses of administration and rights to receipts
of administration as between those condominium units.

History: 1978, Act 59, Eff. July 1, 1978.

559.149 Subdivision of condominium units.

Sec. 49. (1) If the condominium documents expressly permit the subdivision of any condominium units,
then the condominium units may be subdivided in accordance with this section and any restrictions not
otherwise unlawful which the condominium documents may specify. A condominium unit shall not be
subdivided unless the condominium documents expressly permit it.

(2) If the co-owner of a condominium unit which may be subdivided desires to subdivide the condominium
unit, then the principal officer of the association of co-owners or other persons as the condominium
documents specify, shall, upon written application of the co-owner, prepare and execute an amendment to the
master deed duly subdividing the condominium unit pursuant to the condominium documents and this act.

(3) An amendment to the master deed shall assign new identifying numbers to the new condominium units
created by the subdivision of a condominium unit and shall alocate to those condominium units, on a
reasonable basis, al of the undivided interest in the common elements appertaining to the subdivided
condominium unit. The new condominium units shall jointly share all rights, and shall be equally liable,
jointly and severally for all obligations, with regard to any limited common elements assigned to the
subdivided condominium unit except to the extent that an amendment shall provide that portions of any

Rendered Friday, September 19, 2014 Page 10 Michigan Compiled Laws Complete Through PA 281 of 2014
O Legislative Council, State of Michigan Courtesy of www.legislature.mi.gov



limited common element assigned to the subdivided condominium unit exclusively should be assigned to any,
but less than al, of the new condominium units.

(4) An amendment to the bylaws shall allocate to the new condominium units, on a reasonable basis, the
votes in the association of co-owners allocated to the subdivided condominium unit, and shall reflect a
proportionate allocation to the new condominium units of the liability for expenses of administration and
rights to receipts of administration formerly appertaining to the subdivided condominium unit.

History: 1978, Act 59, Eff. July 1, 1978.

559.150 Termination of condominium project or amendment of master deed by developer.
Sec. 50. If there is no co-owner other than the devel oper, the developer, with the consent of any interested
mortgagee, may unilaterally terminate the condominium project or amend the master deed. A termination or
amendment under this section shall become effective upon the recordation thereof if executed by the
developer.
History: 1978, Act 59, Eff. July 1, 1978.

559.151 Termination of condominium project by agreement of developer and unaffiliated
co-owners.

Sec. 51. (1) If there is a co-owner other than the developer, then the condominium project shal be
terminated only by the agreement of the developer and unaffiliated co-owners of condominium units to which
4/5 of the votes in the association of co-owners appertain, or alarger majority as the condominium documents
may specify.

(2) If none of the condominium units in the condominium project are restricted exclusively to residential
use, then the condominium documents may specify voting majorities less than the minimums specified by
subsection (1).

(3) Agreement of the required majority of co-owners to termination of the condominium shall be
evidenced by their execution of the termination agreement or of ratifications thereof, and the termination shall
become effective only when the agreement is so evidenced of record.

(4) Upon recordation of an instrument terminating a condominium project the property constituting the
condominium project shall be owned by the co-owners as tenants in common in proportion to their respective
undivided interests in the common elements immediately before recordation. As long as the tenancy in
common lasts, each co-owner or the heirs, successors, or assigns thereof shall have an exclusive right of
occupancy of that portion of the property which formerly constituted the condominium unit.

(5) Upon recordation of an instrument terminating a condominium project, any rights the co-owners may
have to the assets of the association of co-owners shall be in proportion to their respective undivided interests
in the common elements immediately before recordation, except that common profits shall be distributed in
accordance with the condominium documents and this act.

History: 1978, Act 59, Eff. July 1, 1978.

559.152 Advisory committee of nondeveloper co-owners; establishment; meeting with
condominium project board of directors; cessation; right to elect directors; formula;
recording consolidating master deed; copy; “units that may be created” defined; time of
sale to nondeveloper co-owner.

Sec. 52. (1) An advisory committee of nondeveloper co-owners shall be established either 120 days after
conveyance of legal or equitable title to nondeveloper co-owners of 1/3 of the units that may be created or 1
year after the initial conveyance of legal or equitable title to a nondevel oper co-owner of a unit in the project,
whichever occurs first. The advisory committee shall meet with the condominium project board of directors
for the purpose of facilitating communication and aiding the transition of control to the association of
co-owners. The advisory committee shall cease to exist when a majority of the board of directors of the
association of co-ownersis elected by the nondeveloper co-owners.

(2) Not later than 120 days after conveyance of legal or equitable title to nondeveloper co-owners of 25%
of the units that may be created, at least 1 director and not less than 25% of the board of directors of the
association of co-owners shall be elected by nondeveloper co-owners. Not later than 120 days after
conveyance of legal or equitable title to nondevel oper co-owners of 50% of the units that may be created, not
less than 33-1/3% of the board of directors shall be elected by nondeveloper co-owners. Not later than 120
days after conveyance of legal or equitable title to nondeveloper co-owners of 75% of the units that may be
created, and before conveyance of 90% of such units, the nondeveloper co-owners shall elect all directors on
the board, except that the developer shall have the right to designate at least 1 director as long as the
developer owns and offers for sale at least 10% of the units in the project or as long as 10% of the units

Rendered Friday, September 19, 2014 Page 11 Michigan Compiled Laws Complete Through PA 281 of 2014
O Legislative Council, State of Michigan Courtesy of www.legislature.mi.gov



remain that may be created.

(3) Notwithstanding the formula provided in subsection (2), 54 months &fter the first conveyance of legal
or equitable title to a nondevel oper co-owner of a unit in the project, if title to not less than 75% of the units
that may be created has not been conveyed, the nondevel oper co-owners have the right to elect, as provided in
the condominium documents, a number of members of the board of directors of the association of co-owners
equal to the percentage of units they hold and the developer has the right to elect, as provided in the
condominium documents, a number of members of the board equal to the percentage of units which are
owned by the developer and for which al assessments are payable by the developer. This election may
increase, but does not reduce, the minimum election and designation rights otherwise established in
subsection (2). Application of this subsection does not require a change in the size of the board as determined
in the condominium documents.

(4) If the calculation of the percentage of members of the board that the nondeveloper co-owners have the
right to elect under subsection (2), or if the product of the number of members of the board multiplied by the
percentage of units held by the nondeveloper co-owners under subsection (3) results in a right of
nondeveloper co-owners to elect a fractional number of members of the board, then a fractional election right
of 0.5 or greater shal be rounded up to the nearest whole number, which number shall be the number of
members of the board that the nondeveloper co-owners have the right to elect. After application of the
formula contained in this subsection, the developer has the right to elect the remaining members of the board.
Application of this subsection does not eliminate the right of the developer to designate 1 member as provided
in subsection (2).

(5) A consolidating master deed and plans showing the condominium as built shall be recorded not later
than 1 year after completion of construction in order to consolidate all phases or amendments of a
condominium project. A copy of the recorded consolidating master deed shall be provided to the association
of co-owners.

(6) As used in this section, “units that may be created” means the maximum number of unitsin al phases
of the condominium project as stated in the master deed.

(7) For purposes of calculating the timing of events described in this section, conveyance by a developer to
aresidentia builder, even though not an affiliate of the developer, is not considered a sale to a nondevel oper
co-owner until such time as the residential builder conveys that unit with a completed residence on it or until
it contains a completed residence which is occupied.

History: 1978, Act 59, Eff. July 1, 1978;0 Am. 1982, Act 538, Imd. Eff. Jan. 17, 1983;00 Am. 2000, Act 379, Imd. Eff. Jan. 2, 2001.

559.153 Bylaws governing administration of condominium project; amendments; recording.

Sec. 53. The administration of a condominium project shall be governed by bylaws recorded as part of the
master deed, or as provided in the master deed. An amendment to the bylaws of any condominium project
shall not eliminate the mandatory provisions required by section 54. An amendment shall be inoperative until
recorded.

History: 1978, Act 59, Eff. July 1, 1978;0 Am. 1982, Act 538, Imd. Eff. Jan. 17, 1983.

559.154 Bylaws; mandatory provisions; allocation of votes; dispute, claim, or grievance;

applicability of subsections (8), (9), and (10).

Sec. 54. (1) The bylaws shall contain provisions for the designation of persons to administer the affairs of
the condominium project and shall require that those persons keep books and records with a detailed account
of the expenditures and receipts affecting the condominium project and its administration, and which specify
the operating expenses of the project.

(2) The bylaws shall provide that the person designated to administer the affairs of the project shall be
assessed as the person in possession for any tangible personal property of the project owned or possessed in
common by the co-owners. Personal property taxes based on that tangible personal property shall be treated as
expenses of administration.

(3) The bylaws shall contain specific provisions directing the courses of action to be taken in the event of
partial or complete destruction of the building or buildings in the project.

(4) The bylaws shall provide that expenditures affecting the administration of the project shall include
costs incurred in the satisfaction of any liability arising within, caused by, or connected with, the common
elements or the administration of the condominium project, and that receipts affecting the administration of
the condominium project shall include all sums received as the proceeds of, or pursuant to, a policy of
insurance securing the interest of the co-owners against liabilities or losses arising within, caused by, or
connected with the common elements or the administration of the condominium project.

(5) The bylaws shall provide that the association of co-owners shall prepare and distribute to each owner at
Rendered Friday, September 19, 2014 Page 12 Michigan Compiled Laws Complete Through PA 281 of 2014

O Legislative Council, State of Michigan Courtesy of www.legislature.mi.gov



least once each year a financial statement, the contents of which shall be defined by the association of
CO-OWNErs.

(6) The bylaws shall provide an indemnification clause for the board of directors of the association of
co-owners. The indemnification clause shall require that 10 days notice, before payment under the clause, be
given to the co-owners. The indemnification clause shall exclude indemnification for willful and wanton
misconduct and for gross negligence.

(7) The bylaws may allocate to each condominium unit a number of votes in the association of co-owners
proportionate to the percentage of value appertaining to each condominium unit, or an equal number of votes
in the association of co-owners.

(8) The bylaws shall contain a provision providing that arbitration of disputes, claims, and grievances
arising out of or relating to the interpretation of the application of the condominium document or arising out
of disputes among or between co-owners shall be submitted to arbitration and that the parties to the dispute,
claim, or grievance shall accept the arbitrator's decision as final and binding, upon the election and written
consent of the parties to the disputes, claims, or grievances and upon written notice to the association. The
commercia arbitration rules of the American arbitration association are applicable to any such arbitration.

(9) In the absence of the election and written consent of the parties under subsection (8), neither a
co-owner nor the association is prohibited from petitioning a court of competent jurisdiction to resolve any
dispute, claim, or grievance.

(10) The €election by the parties to submit any dispute, claim, or grievance to arbitration prohibits the
parties from petitioning the courts regarding that dispute, claim, or grievance.

(12) Subsections (8), (9), and (10) apply only to condominium projects established on or after the effective
date of the amendatory act that added this subsection.

History: 1978, Act 59, Eff. July 1, 1978;0 Am. 1982, Act 538, Imd. Eff. Jan. 17, 1983;0 Am. 2000, Act 379, Imd. Eff. Jan. 2, 2001;
O Am. 2002, Act 283, Imd. Eff. May 9, 2002,

559.155 Voiding service contract and management contract.

Sec. 55. (1) A service contract which exists between the association of co-owners and the developer or
affiliates of the developer and a management contract with the developer or affiliates of the developer is
voidable by the board of directors of the association of co-owners on the transitional control date or within 90
days thereafter, and on 30 days notice at any time thereafter for cause.

(2) To the extent that any management contract extends beyond 1 year after the transitional control date,
the excess period under the contract may be voided by the board of directors of the association of co-owners
by notice to the management agent at least 30 days before the expiration of the 1 year.

History: 1978, Act 59, Eff. July 1, 1978.

559.156 Bylaws; permissible provisions.

Sec. 56. The bylaws may contain provisions:

(a) As are deemed appropriate for the administration of the condominium project not inconsistent with this
act or any other applicable laws.

(b) For restrictions on the sale, lease, license to use, or occupancy of condominium units.

(c) For insuring the co-owners against risks affecting the condominium project, without prejudice to the
right of each co-owner to insure his condominium unit or condominium units on his own account and for his
own benefit.

History: 1978, Act 59, Eff. July 1, 1978.

559.156a Displaying United States flag on condominium unit; applicability of section.

Sec. 56a. A developer or association of co-owners shall not prohibit a co-owner from displaying a single
United States flag of a size not greater than 3 feet by 5 feet anywhere on the exterior of the co-owner's
condominium unit. A developer or association of co-owners shall not enforce a prohibition in existence before
the effective date of this section on or after that effective date.

History: Add. 1991, Act 183, Imd. Eff. Dec. 27, 1991.

559.157 Books, records, contracts, and financial statements; examination; audit or review;

opt-out of requirements of subsection (2).

Sec. 57. (1) The books, records, contracts, and financial statements concerning the administration and
operation of the condominium project shall be available for examination by any of the co-owners and their
mortgagees at convenient times.

(2) Except as provided in subsection (3), an association of co-owners with annual revenues greater than

Rendered Friday, September 19, 2014 Page 13 Michigan Compiled Laws Complete Through PA 281 of 2014
O Legislative Council, State of Michigan Courtesy of www.legislature.mi.gov



$20,000.00 shall on an annual basis have its books, records, and financial statements independently audited or
reviewed by a certified public accountant, as defined in section 720 of the occupational code, 1980 PA 299,
MCL 339.720. The audit or review shall be performed in accordance with the statements on auditing
standards or the statements on standards for accounting and review services, respectively, of the American
institute of certified public accountants.

(3) An association of co-owners may opt out of the requirements of subsection (2) on an annual basis by an
affirmative vote of amajority of its members by any means permitted under the association's bylaws.

History: 1978, Act 59, Eff. July 1, 1978;00 Am. 2013, Act 134, Eff. Jan. 14, 2014.

559.158 Acquisition of title by foreclosure of first mortgage; liability for assessments.

Sec. 58. If the mortgagee of a first mortgage of record or other purchaser of a condominium unit obtains
title to the condominium unit as a result of foreclosure of the first mortgage, that mortgagee or purchaser and
his or her successors and assigns are not liable for the assessments by the administering body chargeable to
the unit that became due prior to the acquisition of title to the unit by that mortgagee or purchaser and his or
her successors and assigns.

History: 1978, Act 59, Eff. July 1, 1978;00 Am. 2000, Act 379, Imd. Eff. Jan. 2, 2001;00 Am. 2002, Act 283, Imd. Eff. May 9, 2002.

559.159 Submission of property with mortgage of record.
Sec. 59. Property upon which there is a mortgage of record shall not be submitted to a condominium
project without the written consent of the mortgagee.

History: 1978, Act 59, Eff. July 1, 1978.

559.160 Action on behalf of and against co-owners.

Sec. 60. Actions on behalf of and against the co-owners shall be brought in the name of the association of
co-owners. The association of co-owners may assert, defend, or settle claims on behalf of all co-owners in
connection with the common elements of the condominium project.

History: 1978, Act 59, Eff. July 1, 1978.

559.161 Condominium unit as sole property.

Sec. 61. Upon the establishment of a condominium project each condominium unit, together with and
inseparable from its appurtenant share of the common elements, shall be a sole property subject to ownership,
mortgaging, taxation, possession, sale, and all types of juridicial acts, inter vivos or causa mortis independent
of the other condominium units.

History: 1978, Act 59, Eff. July 1, 1978.

559.162 Ownership of condominium unit.
Sec. 62. A condominium unit may be jointly or commonly owned by more than 1 person.
History: 1978, Act 59, Eff. July 1, 1978.

559.163 Rights of co-owner.
Sec. 63. Each co-owner has an exclusive right to his condominium unit and has such rights to share with
other co-owners the common elements of the condominium project as are designated by the master deed.

History: 1978, Act 59, Eff. July 1, 1978.

559.164 Conveyance and other instruments affecting title to condominium unit; description
of unit; recordation.

Sec. 64. Conveyances and other instruments affecting title to any condominium unit in a condominium
project shall describe the same by reference to the condominium unit number of the condominium subdivision
plan and the caption thereof, together with a reference to the liber and page of the county records in which the
master deed is recorded. The conveyances and other instruments are recordable.

History: 1978, Act 59, Eff. July 1, 1978.

559.165 Compliance with master deed, bylaws, rules, and regulations.
Sec. 65. Each unit co-owner, tenant, or nonco-owner occupant shall comply with the master deed, bylaws,
and rules and regulations of the condominium project and this act.

History: 1978, Act 59, Eff. July 1, 1978.

559.166 Condominium subdivision plan; preparation; signature and seal; contents;
recording; structures and improvements to be completed by developer.

Rendered Friday, September 19, 2014 Page 14 Michigan Compiled Laws Complete Through PA 281 of 2014
O Legislative Council, State of Michigan Courtesy of www.legislature.mi.gov



Sec. 66. (1) The condominium subdivision plan for each condominium project shall be prepared by an
architect, land surveyor, or engineer licensed to practice and shall bear the signature and seal of such
architect, land surveyor, or engineer. The condominium subdivision plan shall be reproductions of origina
drawings.

(2) A complete condominium subdivision plan shall include al of the following:

(a) A cover sheet.

(b) A survey plan.

(c) A floodplain plan, if the condominium lies within or abuts a floodplain area.

(d) A siteplan.

(e) A utility plan.

(f) Floor plans.

(g) The size, location, area, and horizontal boundaries of each condominium unit.

(h) A number assigned to each condominium unit.

(i) The vertical boundaries and volume for each unit comprised of enclosed air space.

() Building sections showing the existing and proposed structures and improvements including their
location on the land. Any proposed structure and improvement shown shall be labeled either “must be built”
or “need not be built”. To the extent that a developer is contractually obligated to deliver utility conduits,
buildings, sidewalks, driveways, landscaping and an access road, the same shall be shown and designated as
“must be built”, but the obligation to deliver such items exists whether or not they are so shown and
designated.

(k) The nature, location, and approximate size of the common elements.

() Other items the administrator requires by rule.

(3) Condominium subdivision plans shall be numbered consecutively when recorded by the register of
deeds and shall be designated county condominium subdivision plan number

(4) The developer shall complete all structures and improvements labeled pursuant to subsectlon @0
“must be built”.

History: 1978, Act 59, Eff. July 1, 1978;0 Am. 1982, Act 538, Imd. Eff. Jan. 17, 1983;00 Am. 1983, Act 113, Imd. Eff. July 12, 1983

559.167 Changes in condominium project; amendment; replat of condominium subdivision
plan; right of withdrawal.

Sec. 67. (1) A change in a condominium project shall be reflected in an amendment to the appropriate
condominium document. An amendment to the condominium document is subject to sections 90, 90a, and 91.

(2) If achange involves a change in the boundaries of a condominium unit or the addition or elimination of
condominium units, areplat of the condominium subdivision plan shall be prepared and recorded assigning a
condominium unit number to each condominium unit in the amended project. The replat of the condominium
subdivision plan shall be designated replat number of county condominium
subdivision plan number , using the same plan number assigned to the origina condominium
subdivision plan.

(3) Notwithstanding section 33, if the developer has not completed development and construction of units
or improvements in the condominium project that are identified as “need not be built” during a period ending
10 years after the date of commencement of construction by the developer of the project, the developer, its
successors, or assigns have the right to withdraw from the project all undeveloped portions of the project not
identified as “must be built” without the prior consent of any co-owners, mortgagees of unitsin the project, or
any other party having an interest in the project. If the master deed contains provisions permitting the
expansion, contraction, or rights of convertibility of units or common elements in the condominium project,
then the time period is 6 years after the date the devel oper exercised its rights with respect to either expansion,
contraction, or rights of convertibility, whichever right was exercised last. The undeveloped portions of the
project withdrawn shall also automatically be granted easements for utility and access purposes through the
condominium project for the benefit of the undeveloped portions of the project. If the developer does not
withdraw the undeveloped portions of the project from the project before expiration of the time periods, those
undeveloped lands shall remain part of the project as general common elements and all rights to construct
units upon that land shall cease. In such an event, if it becomes necessary to adjust percentages of value as a
result of fewer units existing, a co-owner or the association of co-owners may bring an action to require
revisions to the percentages of value under section 95.

History: 1978, Act 59, Eff. July 1, 1978;00 Am. 1982, Act 538, Imd. Eff. Jan. 17, 1983;0 Am. 2000, Act 379, Imd. Eff. Jan. 2, 2001;
0 Am. 2002, Act 283, Imd. Eff. May 9, 2002.

Rendered Friday, September 19, 2014 Page 15 Michigan Compiled Laws Complete Through PA 281 of 2014
O Legislative Council, State of Michigan Courtesy of www.legislature.mi.gov



559.168 Availability of condominium documents.

Sec. 68. An association of co-owners shall keep current copies of the master deed, all amendments to the
master deed, and other condominium documents for the condominium project available at reasonable hoursto
Co-owners, prospective purchasers, and prospective mortgagees of condominium units in the condominium
projects.

History: 1978, Act 59, Eff. July 1, 1978,0 Am. 1982, Act 538, Imd. Eff. Jan. 17, 1983.

559.169 Assessment of common expenses; contribution of co-owner.

Sec. 69. (1) Except to the extent that the condominium documents provide otherwise, common expenses
associated with the maintenance, repair, renovation, restoration, or replacement of a limited common element
shall be specially assessed against the condominium unit to which that limited common element was assigned
at the time the expenses were incurred. If the limited common element involved was assigned to more than 1
condominium unit, the expenses shall be specially assessed against each of the condominium units equally so
that the total of the special assessments equals the total of the expenses, except to the extent that the
condominium documents provide otherwise.

(2) To the extent that the condominium documents expressly so provide, any other unusua common
expenses benefiting less than al of the condominium units, or any expenses incurred as a result of the conduct
of less than all those entitled to occupy the condominium project or by their licensees or invitees, shall be
specially assessed against the condominium unit or condominium units involved, in accordance with
reasonable provisions as the condominium documents may provide.

(3) The amount of all common expenses not specially assessed under subsections (1) and (2) shall be
assessed against the condominium units in proportion to the percentages of value or other provisions as may
be contained in the master deed for apportionment of expenses of administration.

(4) A co-owner shall not be exempt from contributing as provided in this act by nonuse or waiver of the
use of any of the common elements or by abandonment of his or her condominium unit.

History: 1978, Act 59, Eff. July 1, 1978;00 Am. 2000, Act 379, Imd. Eff. Jan. 2, 2001;00 Am. 2002, Act 283, Imd. Eff. May 9, 2002.

559.170 Repealed. 1982, Act 538, Imd. Eff. Jan. 17, 1983.
Compiler'snote: The repealed section pertained to review of filing.

559.171 Notice of proposed action.

Sec. 71. Not less than 10 days before taking reservations under a preliminary reservation agreement for a
unit in a condominium project, recording a master deed for a project, or beginning construction of a project
which is intended to be a condominium project at the time construction is begun, whichever is earliest, a
written notice of the proposed action shall be provided to each of the following:

(a) The appropriate city, village, township, or county.

(b) The appropriate county road commission and county drain commissioner.

(c) The department of environmental quality.

(d) The state transportation department.

History: 1978, Act 59, Eff. July 1, 1978;0 Am. 1980, Act 513, Imd. Eff. Jan. 26, 1981;00 Am. 1982, Act 538, Imd. Eff. Jan. 17, 1983
;0 Am. 2002, Act 283, Imd. Eff. May 9, 2002.

559.171a Rules applicable to condominium project not served by public water and public
sewers; submission of plan to department of public health; approval or rejection.

Sec. 71a. (1) The rules of the department of public health relating to suitability of soils and groundwater
supply for subdivisions not served by public water and public sewers shall apply to a condominium project
not served by public water and public sewers.

(2) If public water and public sewers are not available and accessible to the land proposed to beincluded in
a project, a developer shall submit 3 copies of the condominium subdivision plan to the department of public
health. The department of public health shall transmit these copies to a local health department that elects to
maintain jurisdiction over the approval or rejection of the plan pursuant to subsection (3).

(3) Not later than 30 days after receipt of the condominium subdivision plan, the state department of public
health or, if the local health department elects to maintain jurisdiction over approval or rejection of the plan,
the local health department shall approve the plan and note its approval on the copy to be returned to the
developer or reject all or such portion of the plan that is not suitable. If rejected, the department rejecting the
plan shall notify the developer and the governing body in writing of the reasons for rejection of the plan and
the requirements for approval.

Rendered Friday, September 19, 2014 Page 16 Michigan Compiled Laws Complete Through PA 281 of 2014
O Legislative Council, State of Michigan Courtesy of www.legislature.mi.gov



History: Add. 1983, Act 113, Imd. Eff. July 12, 1983.

559.172 Establishment of condominium project; sale of condominium unit before master
deed recorded prohibited; exception; substantial failure of master deed to comply with
act; marketability of title.

Sec. 72. (1) A condominium project for any property shall be established upon the recording of a master
deed that complies with this act.

(2) Except as provided in section 88, a condominium unit shall not be sold by or on behalf of the devel oper
before a master deed is recorded for the condominium unitsin the project.

(3) Title to a unit and common elements is not rendered unmarketable or otherwise affected by reason of
an insubstantia failure of the master deed to comply with this act. Whether a substantial failure of the master
deed to comply with this act impairs marketability is not affected by this subsection.

History: 1978, Act 59, Eff. July 1, 1978;00 Am. 1982, Act 538, Imd. Eff. Jan. 17, 1983;0 Am. 1983, Act 113, Imd. Eff. July 12, 1983

559.172a Recordation of master deed; creation of time-share unit; amendment of documents
as material alteration.

Sec. 72a. If the master deed for a condominium project is recorded after the effective date of this section, a
time-share unit shall not be created unless expressly provided for in the condominium documents. If the
master deed for a condominium project was recorded on or before the effective date of this section, a
time-share unit shall not be created unless the condominium documents are amended to expressly provide for
the creation of time-share units. An amendment of the condominium documents to expressly provide for the
creation of time-share units is a material alteration of the rights of co-owners and requires the consent of 2/3
of the votes of co-owners and mortgagees as provided in section 90.

History: Add. 1982, Act 538, Imd. Eff. Jan. 17, 1983.

559.172b Air space over fee.

Sec. 72b. (1) A condominium project may be established for property consisting of a separate legal parcel
in space that is considered the air space over a fee, improved or unimproved, in rea property law. Such a
condominium project may be provided easements, licenses, and other rights as may be necessary to provide
access to and otherwise serve the needs of the project from the underlying surface parcel.

(2) This section applies to any question regarding whether any air space existing over a fee may be
submitted to, and established as, a condominium under this act and applies to development as a condominium
of air space over afee.

History: Add. 2000, Act 379, Imd. Eff. Jan. 2, 2001.

559.173 Recordation of master deed and amendment; certification by treasurer; filing copy
of master deed with local supervisor or assessing officer; filing architectural plans and
specifications or affidavit with local unit of government.

Sec. 73. (1) A master deed and an amendment to the master deed shall be recorded.

(2) A master deed shall not be recorded without a certification by the treasurer collecting the property taxes
and special assessments that all property taxes and current installments of special assessments which became
alien on the property involved in the project are paid in full.

(3) When recorded, a copy of the master deed and a copy of any subsequently amended master deed or
amendment shall be filed with the local supervisor or assessing officer.

(4) Detailed architectural plans and specifications for the condominium project, if that condominium
project contains any units that require architectural plans and specifications to construct, shall be filed with
the loca unit of government in which the project is located. However, in the case of a conversion
condominium where detailed architectural plans and specifications are not available, the developer shall file
with the local unit of government an affidavit stating the fact that detailed architectural plans and
specifications are not available.

History: 1978, Act 59, Eff. July 1, 1978;0 Am. 1982, Act 538, Imd. Eff. Jan. 17, 1983;00 Am. 2000, Act 379, Imd. Eff. Jan. 2, 2001.

559.174 Delivery and retention of condominium subdivision plan; recordation of
consolidating master deed.
Sec. 74. (1) The condominium subdivision plan of a size as provided by rule of the administrator shall be
delivered to and retained by the local register of deeds office.
(2) A consolidating master deed shall be recorded at the register of deeds office. The register of deeds shall

Rendered Friday, September 19, 2014 Page 17 Michigan Compiled Laws Complete Through PA 281 of 2014
O Legislative Council, State of Michigan Courtesy of www.legislature.mi.gov



not deny recording of a consolidating master deed because the property taxes and special assessments are not
paidinfull.

History: 1978, Act 59, Eff. July 1, 1978;0 Am. 1982, Act 538, Imd. Eff. Jan. 17, 1983.

559.181 Service of process.

Sec. 81. (1) When a person, including a nonresident of this state, files a notice under section 71, records a
master deed, or engages in conduct prohibited or made actionable by this act or a rule promulgated or order
issued under this act and personal jurisdiction over the person cannot otherwise be obtained in this state, that
conduct shall be considered equivalent to the person's appointment of the administrator as his or her attorney
to receive service of process in any noncrimina action or proceeding against the person or the person's
successor, personal representative, or administrator which grows out of that conduct and which is brought
under this act or any rule promulgated or order issued under this act, with the same force and validity as if
served on the person personally.

(2) Service under subsection (1) may be made by filing a copy of the process in the office of the
administrator together with a $25.00 fee. Service is not effective unless the plaintiff, which may be the
administrator in an action or proceeding instituted by it, immediately sends notice of the service and a copy of
the process by registered or certified mail to the defendant or respondent at the person's last known address, or
takes other steps which are reasonably calculated to give actual notice and unless the plaintiff's affidavit of
compliance with this section is filed in the case on or before the return day of the process, if any, or within
such further time as the court allows.

History: 1978, Act 59, Eff. July 1, 1978;00 Am. 1982, Act 538, Imd. Eff. Jan. 17, 1983.

559.181a Promotional material; labeling structure or improvement “need not be built.”

Sec. 81a. If any structure or improvement proposed in a condominium project is labeled pursuant to section
66 “need not be built”, or is to be located within a portion of the condominium project with respect to which
the developer has reserved a development right, promotional material may not be displayed or delivered to
prospective purchasers which describes or portrays that structure or improvement unless the description or
portrayal of the structure or improvement in the promotional material is conspicuously labeled “need not be
built”.

History: Add. 1982, Act 538, Imd. Eff. Jan. 17, 1983.

559.182 Repealed. 1982, Act 538, Imd. Eff. Jan. 17, 1983.
Compiler'snote: The repealed section pertained to escrow account and escrow agent.

559.183 Preliminary reservation agreement; use; condominium buyer's handbook; placing
payment in escrow; cancellation of agreement; refund; treating payment as if made under
purchase agreement.

Sec. 83. (1) After filing a notice under section 71, a preliminary reservation agreement may be used by a
developer to reserve a condominium unit for a prospective purchaser. During the time reservations are being
accepted, a condominium buyer's handbook shall be available at the condominium project for all prospective
purchasers.

(2) Upon receipt of payment under a preliminary reservation agreement, the developer shall place the
payment in an escrow account with an escrow agent.

(3) A prospective purchaser who has made a payment under a preliminary reservation agreement may
cancel that agreement. The developer shal fully refund within 3 business days after notice of cancellation is
received all payments made.

(4) If a person who has entered into a preliminary reservation agreement subsequently enters into a
purchase agreement, the developer shall treat a payment originally made under the preliminary reservation
agreement as if made under a purchase agreement pursuant to section 84.

History: 1978, Act 59, Eff. July 1, 1978;00 Am. 1982, Act 538, Imd. Eff. Jan. 17, 1983.

559.184 Section inapplicable to business condominium unit; withdrawal from signed
purchase agreement; depositing and retaining funds in escrow; contents of purchase
agreement; waiver of right of withdrawal; form.

Sec. 84. (1) This section shall not apply to a business condominium unit.

(2) Except as provided in subsection (5), a signed purchase agreement shall not become binding on a
purchaser and a purchaser may withdraw from a signed purchase agreement without cause and without
penalty before conveyance of the unit and within 9 business days after receipt of the documents required in

Rendered Friday, September 19, 2014 Page 18 Michigan Compiled Laws Complete Through PA 281 of 2014
O Legislative Council, State of Michigan Courtesy of www.legislature.mi.gov



section 84a. The calculation of the 9 business day period shall include the day on which the documents
required under section 84a are received if that day is a business day.

(3) Upon receipt of payment under a purchase agreement, the developer shall deposit al funds in an
escrow account with an escrow agent. Funds due a developer from the closing of a unit sale need not be
deposited in escrow if such funds are not required by other provisions of this act to be retained in escrow after
such closing. After the expiration of the withdrawal period provided in subsection (2), the developer shall
retain amounts in escrow or provide other adequate security as provided in section 103b to assure completion
of only those uncompleted structures and improvements labeled under the terms of the condominium
documents, “must be built”.

(4) A purchase agreement shall contain all of the following:

(a) A statement that all funds paid by the prospective purchaser in connection with the purchase of a unit
shall be deposited in an escrow account with an escrow agent and shall be returned to the purchaser within 3
business days after withdrawal from the purchase agreement as provided in subdivision (b). The statement
shall include the name and address of the escrow agent.

(b) A statement that unless the purchaser waives the right of withdrawal, the purchaser may withdraw from
a signed purchase agreement without cause and without penalty if the withdrawal is made before conveyance
of the unit and within 9 business days after receipt of the documents required in section 84aincluding the day
on which the documents are received if that day is a business day.

(c) A statement that after the expiration of the withdrawal period provided in subsection (2), the devel oper
is required to retain sufficient funds in escrow or to provide sufficient security to assure completion of only
those uncompleted structures and improvements labeled under the terms of the condominium documents,
“must be built”.

(d) Thefollowing paragraph:

“At the exclusive option of the purchaser, any claim which might be the subject of a civil action against the
developer which involves an amount less than $2,500.00, and arises out of or relates to this purchase
agreement or the unit or project to which this agreement relates, shall be settled by binding arbitration
conducted by the American arbitration association. The arbitration shall be conducted in accordance with
applicable law and the currently applicable rules of the American arbitration association. Judgment upon the
award rendered by arbitration may be entered in a circuit court of appropriate jurisdiction.”

(e) A statement that the escrow agreement between the developer and the escrow agent is incorporated by
reference.

(5) The right of withdrawal in subsection (2) may be waived in exceptional cases, by a purchaser who is
provided all of the documents listed in subsection (4) and who knowingly and voluntarily waives in writing
the purchaser's right to the protection provided by the right of withdrawal. The waiver form shall include an
explanation of this section.

History: 1978, Act 59, Eff. July 1, 1978;00 Am. 1982, Act 538, Imd. Eff. Jan. 17, 1983;0 Am. 1983, Act 113, Imd. Eff. July 12, 1983

559.184a Providing copies of listed documents to prospective purchaser of condominium
unit; amendment to purchase agreement and condominium documents; signature on form
as evidence; providing prospective purchaser of business condominium unit copy of
recorded master deed; misleading statements; violation.

Sec. 84a. (1) The developer shall provide copies of al of the following documents to a prospective
purchaser of a condominium unit, other than a business condominium unit:

(a) The recorded master deed.

(b) A copy of a purchase agreement that conforms with section 84, and that is in a form in which the
purchaser may sign the agreement, together with a copy of the escrow agreement.

(c) A condominium buyer's handbook. The handbook shall contain, in a prominent location and in boldface
type, the name, telephone number, and address of the person designated by the administrator to respond to
complaints. The handbook shall contain alisting of the available remedies as provided in section 145.

(d) A disclosure statement relating to the project containing all of the following:

(i) An explanation of the association of co-owners possible liability pursuant to section 58.

(if) The names, addresses, and previous experience with condominium projects of each developer and any
management agency, real estate broker, residential builder, and residential maintenance and ateration
contractor.

(iii) A projected budget for the first year of operation of the association of co-owners.

(iv) An explanation of the escrow arrangement.

(v) Any express warranties undertaken by the developer, together with a statement that express warranties
Rendered Friday, September 19, 2014 Page 19 Michigan Compiled Laws Complete Through PA 281 of 2014

O Legislative Council, State of Michigan Courtesy of www.legislature.mi.gov



are not provided unless specifically stated.

(vi) If the condominium project is an expandable condominium project, an explanation of the contents of
the master deed relating to the election to expand the project prescribed in section 32, and an explanation of
the material consequences of expanding the project.

(vii) If the condominium project is a contractable condominium project, an explanation of the contents of
the master deed relating to the election to contract the project prescribed in section 33, an explanation of the
material consequences of contracting the project, and a statement that any structures or improvements
proposed to be located in a contractable area need not be built.

(viii) If section 66(2)(j) is applicable, an identification of al structures and improvements labeled pursuant
to section 66 “need not be built”.

(iX) If section 66(2)(j) is applicable, the extent to which financia arrangements have been provided for
completion of all structures and improvements labeled pursuant to section 66 “must be built”.

(X) Other material information about the condominium project and the developer that the administrator
requires by rule.

(e) If a project is a conversion condominium, the developer shall disclose the following additional
information:

(i) A statement, if known, of the condition of the main components of the building, including the roofs;
foundations; external and supporting walls; heating, cooling, mechanical ventilating, electrical, and plumbing
systems; and structural components. If the condition of any of the components of the building listed in this
subparagraph is unknown, the devel oper shall fully disclose that fact.

(if) A list of any outstanding building code or other municipal regulation violations and the dates the
premises were last inspected for compliance with building and housing codes.

(iii) The year or years of completion of construction of the building or buildings in the project.

(2) A purchase agreement may be amended by agreement of the purchaser and developer before or after
the agreement is signed. An amendment to the purchase agreement does not afford the purchaser any right or
time to withdraw in addition to that provided in section 84(2). An amendment to the condominium documents
effected in the manner provided in the documents or provided by law does not afford the purchaser any right
or time to withdraw in addition to that provided in section 84(2).

(3) At the time the purchaser receives the documents required in subsection (1) the developer shall provide
a separate form that explains the provisions of this section. The signature of the purchaser upon this form is
prima facie evidence that the documents required in subsection (1) were received and understood by the
purchaser.

(4) Promptly after recording a master deed for a condominium project containing a business condominium
unit, the developer shall provide to a prospective purchaser of a business condominium unit a copy of the
recorded master deed for the project.

(5) With regard to any documents required under this section, a developer shall not make an untrue
statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary in order to make the statements made, in
the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading.

(6) The developer promptly shall amend a document required under this section to reflect any material
change or to correct any omission in the document.

(7) In addition to other liabilities and penalties, a developer who violates this section is subject to section
115.

History: Add. 1982, Act 538, Imd. Eff. Jan. 17, 1983;00 Am. 1983, Act 113, Imd. Eff. July 12, 1983.

559.185 Liquidated damages in case of default; actual damages; receipt of escrowed funds.
Sec. 85. A provision in a purchase agreement for liquidated damages in case of default shall be limited to a
reasonable percentage of the purchase price of the condominium unit. This provision shall not prevent the
developer from recovering actual damages. Such an agreement shall not permit the developer to receive
escrowed funds until thereis a default, or until conveyance of legal or equitable title to the purchaser.

History: 1978, Act 59, Eff. July 1, 1978;0 Am. 1982, Act 538, Imd. Eff. Jan. 17, 1983.

559.186, 559.187 Repealed. 1982, Act 538, Imd. Eff. Jan. 17, 1983.

Compiler'snote: The repealed sections pertained to advertising and reservations for purchase of condominium unit.

559.188 Offering for sale and entering into purchase agreement with respect to
condominium unit proposed to be included within additional land of expandable
condominium or within convertible land without recording amended master deed.

Sec. 88. After recording a master deed for the initial phase of an expandable or convertible condominium

Rendered Friday, September 19, 2014 Page 20 Michigan Compiled Laws Complete Through PA 281 of 2014

O Legislative Council, State of Michigan Courtesy of www.legislature.mi.gov



project, the developer may offer for sale and enter into a binding purchase agreement with respect to any
condominium unit proposed to be included within the additional land of the expandable condominium or
within the convertible land, without recording an amended master deed, if al of the following occur:

(a) The condominium unit is one which the developer may properly include in the condominium project.

(b) Thereis asite plan showing the location of the unit.

(c) A substantially identical condominium unit was already included within the project or plans for the
condominium unit which describe the physical characteristics of the unit exist and are appended to the
purchase agreement.

(d) The purchase agreement states that the condominium unit shall be conveyed to the prospective
purchaser within 1 year after the execution of the purchase agreement. If conveyance is not made within that
time the agreement is voidable under the conditions set forth in the agreement.

(e) Within 6 months after the date the purchase agreement becomes binding, an amendment to the master
deed is recorded which includes the unit.

History: 1978, Act 59, Eff. July 1, 1978;00 Am. 1982, Act 538, Imd. Eff. Jan. 17, 1983.

559.189 Repealed. 1982, Act 538, Imd. Eff. Jan. 17, 1983.

Compiler'snote: The repealed section pertained to documents to be provided prospective purchaser.

559.190 Amendment of condominium documents; consent; void provision superseded by
subsection (2); reservation of right to amend; notice of proposed amendments; costs and
expenses; master deed amendment; affirmative vote.

Sec. 90. (1) The condominium documents may be amended without the consent of co-owners or
mortgagees if the amendment does not materially alter or change the rights of a co-owner or mortgagee and if
the condominium documents contain a reservation of the right to amend for that purpose to the devel oper or
the association of co-owners. An amendment that does not materially change the rights of a co-owner or
mortgagee includes, but is not limited to, a modification of the types and sizes of unsold condominium units
and their appurtenant limited common elements.

(2) Except as provided in this section, the master deed, bylaws, and condominium subdivision plan may be
amended, even if the amendment will materially alter or change the rights of the co-owners or mortgagees,
with the consent of not less than 2/3 of the votes of the co-owners and mortgagees. A mortgagee shall have 1
vote for each mortgage held. The 2/3 majority required in this section may not be increased by the terms of
the condominium documents, and a provision in any condominium documents that requires the consent of a
greater proportion of co-owners or mortgagees for the purposes described in this subsection is void and is
superseded by this subsection. Mortgagees are not required to appear at any meeting of co-owners except that
their approval shall be solicited through written ballots. Any mortgagee ballots not returned within 90 days of
mailing shall be counted as approval for the change.

(3) The developer may reserve, in the condominium documents, the right to amend materialy the
condominium documents to achieve specified purposes, except a purpose provided for in subsection (4).
Reserved rights shall not be amended except by or with the consent of the developer. If a proper reservation is
made, the condominium documents may be amended to achieve the specified purposes without the consent of
CO-OWNErs or mortgagees.

(4) The method or formula used to determine the percentage of value of units in the project for other than
voting purposes shall not be modified without the consent of each affected co-owner and mortgagee. A
co-owner's condominium unit dimensions or appurtenant limited common elements may not be modified
without the co-owner's consent.

(5) Co-owners shall be notified of proposed amendments under this section not less than 10 days before the
amendment is recorded.

(6) A person causing or requesting an amendment to the condominium documents shall be responsible for
costs and expenses of the amendment, except for amendments based upon a vote of a prescribed majority of
co-owners and mortgagees or based upon the advisory committee's decision, the costs of which are expenses
of administration.

(7) A master deed amendment, including the consolidating master deed, dealing with the addition,
withdrawal, or modification of units or other physical characteristics of the project shall comply with the
standards prescribed in section 66 for preparation of an original condominium subdivision plan for the
project.

(8) For purposes of this section, the affirmative vote of a 2/3 of co-owners is considered 2/3 of all
co-owners entitled to vote as of the record date for such votes.

History: 1978, Act 59, Eff. July 1, 1978;01 Am. 1982, Act 538, Imd. Eff. Jan. 17, 1983;00 Am. 1988, Act 147, Imd. Eff. June 7, 1988;
Rendered Friday, September 19, 2014 Page 21 Michigan Compiled Laws Complete Through PA 281 of 2014

O Legislative Council, State of Michigan Courtesy of www.legislature.mi.gov



0O Am. 2000, Act 379, Imd. Eff. Jan. 2, 2001;0 Am. 2002, Act 283, Imd. Eff. May 9, 2002.

559.190a Voting procedures.

Sec. 90a. (1) To the extent this act or the condominium documents require a vote of mortgagees of unitson
amendment of the condominium documents, the procedure described in this section applies.

(2) The date on which the proposed amendment is approved by the requisite majority of co-owners is
considered the “control date”.

(3) Only those mortgagees who hold a recorded first mortgage or arecorded assignment of afirst mortgage
against 1 or more condominium units in the condominium project on the control date are entitled to vote on
the amendment. Each mortgagee entitled to vote shall have 1 vote for each condominium unit in the project
that is subject to its mortgage or mortgages, without regard to how many mortgages the mortgagee may hold
on aparticular condominium unit.

(4) The association of co-owners shall give a notice to each mortgagee entitled to vote containing al of the
following:

(a) A copy of the amendment or amendments as passed by the co-owners.

(b) A statement of the date that the amendment was approved by the requisite majority of co-owners.

(c) An envelope addressed to the entity authorized by the board of directors for tabulating mortgagee votes.

(d) A statement containing language in substantially the form described in subsection (5).

(e) A ballot providing spaces for approving or rejecting the amendment and a space for the signature of the
mortgagee or an officer of the mortgagee.

(f) A statement of the number of condominium units subject to the mortgage or mortgages of the
mortgagee.

(g) The date by which the mortgagee must return its ballot.

(5) The notice provided by subsection (4) shall contain a statement in substantially the following form:

“A review of the association records reveals that you are the holder of 1 or more mortgages recorded
against title to 1 or more units in the (name of project) condominium. The co-owners of the condominium
adopted the attached amendment to the condominium documents on (control date). Pursuant to the terms of
the condominium documents and/or the Michigan condominium act, you are entitled to vote on the
amendment. Y ou have 1 vote for each unit that is subject to your mortgage or mortgages.

The amendment will be considered approved by first mortgagees if it is approved by 66-2/3% of those
mortgagees. In order to vote, you must indicate your approval or rejection on the enclosed ballot, sign it, and
return it not later than 90 days after this notice (which date coincides with the date of mailing). Failure to
timely return a ballot will constitute a vote for approval. If you oppose the amendment, you must vote against
it.”.

(6) The amendment is considered to be approved by the first mortgagees if it is approved by 66-2/3% of
the first mortgagees whose ballots are received, or are considered to be received, in accordance with section
90(2), by the entity authorized by the board of directors to tabulate mortgagee votes.

(7) The association of co-owners shall mail the notice required under subsection (4) to the first mortgagee
at the address provided in the mortgage or assignment for notices.

(8) The association of co-owners shall maintain a copy of the notice, proofs of mailing of the notice, and
the ballots returned by mortgagees for aperiod of 2 years after the control date.

(9) Notwithstanding any provision of the condominium documents to the contrary, first mortgagees are
entitled to vote on amendments to the condominium documents only under the following circumstances:

(a) Termination of the condominium project.

(b) A changein the method or formula used to determine the percentage of value assigned to a unit subject
to the mortgagee's mortgage.

(c) A reallocation of responsibility for maintenance, repair, replacement, or decoration for a condominium
unit, its appurtenant limited common elements, or the genera common elements from the association of
co-owners to the condominium unit subject to the mortgagee's mortgage.

(d) Elimination of a requirement for the association of co-owners to maintain insurance on the project as a
whole or a condominium unit subject to the mortgagee's mortgage or reallocation of responsibility for
obtaining or maintaining, or both, insurance from the association of co-owners to the condominium unit
subject to the mortgagee's mortgage.

(e) The modification or elimination of an easement benefiting the condominium unit subject to the
mortgagee's mortgage.

(f) The partial or complete modification, imposition, or removal of leasing restrictions for condominium
units in the condominium project.

(g9) Amendments requiring the consent of all affected mortgagees under section 90(4).

Rendered Friday, September 19, 2014 Page 22 Michigan Compiled Laws Complete Through PA 281 of 2014
O Legislative Council, State of Michigan Courtesy of www.legislature.mi.gov



History: Add. 2000, Act 379, Imd. Eff. Jan. 2, 2001;00 Am. 2002, Act 283, Imd. Eff. May 9, 2002.

559.191 Recording of amendment to recorded condominium document required; copy to
co-owner.
Sec. 91. (1) An amendment to the master deed or other recorded condominium document shall not be
effective until the amendment is recorded.
(2) A copy of the recorded amendment shall be delivered to each co-owner of the project.

History: 1978, Act 59, Eff. July 1, 1978;00 Am. 1982, Act 538, Imd. Eff. Jan. 17, 1983.

559.192, 559.193 Repealed. 1982, Act 538, Imd. Eff. Jan. 17, 1983.

Compiler's note: The repealed sections pertained to disposition of fees and charges, and to conditions for refusing permit to sell or
permit to take reservations.

559.194 Title insurance policy.

Sec. 94. The developer shall furnish a purchaser buying a condominium unit from the developer a title
insurance policy, in the amount of the purchase price, by atitle insurance company licensed to do businessin
the state.

History: 1978, Act 59, Eff. July 1, 1978.

559.195 Revision of condominium subdivision plan; altering percentage of value; revisions
in percentage of value per condominium unit.

Sec. 95. If the condominium subdivision plan is revised subsequent to its initia filing, and the revisions
would alter the percentage of value per condominium unit when applied to the formula used to derive the
percentage of value, then the percentage of value shall be atered by the developer to reflect the revisions. If
the percentage of valueis not altered to reflect these revisions, then a co-owner may bring an action or initiate
a proceeding to require revisions in the percentage of value per condominium unit, without the consent of the
co-owners, mortgagees, or other interested parties, as are determined to be fair, just, and equitable in
accordance with the basic formula used to originally establish the percentage of value for the project.

History: 1978, Act 59, Eff. July 1, 1978;0 Am. 1982, Act 538, Imd. Eff. Jan. 17, 1983.

559.201-559.203 Repealed. 1982, Act 538, Imd. Eff. Jan. 17, 1983.

Compiler's note: The repealed sections pertained to disclosure statements and to escrow or security requirements for construction of
recreational facilities.

559.203a Repealed. 1983, Act 113, Imd. Eff. July 12, 1983.
Compiler'snote: The repealed section pertained to the release of escrow funds.

559.203b Section inapplicable to business condominium unit; release of deposits or
amounts retained in escrow; conditions; substantial completion; furnishing escrow agent
with evidence of adequate security in place of retaining funds; certificate; notice to
developer; release of interest paid on amounts escrowed; escrow agent deemed
independent party; liability; certification by licensed professional architect or engineer;

“licensed professional engineer or architect” defined.

Sec. 103b. (1) This section shall not apply to a business condominium unit.

(2) Deposits in escrow with an escrow agent required under sections 83 and 84 shall be released pursuant
to those sections upon cancellation of a preliminary reservation agreement or withdrawal from a purchase
agreement, and in all other cases shall be retained and released pursuant to this section and condominium
documents which are not inconsistent with this section.

(3) Except as provided in subsection (5), amounts required to be retained in escrow in connection with the
purchase of a unit shall be released to the developer pursuant to subsection (6) only upon all of the following:

(a) Issuance of a certificate of occupancy for the unit, if required by local ordinance.

(b) Conveyance of legal or equitable title to the unit to the purchaser.

(c) Receipt by the escrow agent of a certificate signed by a licensed professional engineer or architect
either confirming that those portions of the phase of the project in which the condominium unit is located and
which on the condominium subdivision plan are labeled “must be built” are substantially complete, or
determining the amount necessary for substantial compl etion thereof.

(d) Receipt by the escrow agent of a certificate signed by a licensed professional engineer or architect
either confirming that recreational or other facilities which on the condominium subdivision plan are labeled
“must be built”, whether located within or outside of the phase of the project in which the condominium unit

Rendered Friday, September 19, 2014 Page 23 Michigan Compiled Laws Complete Through PA 281 of 2014
O Legislative Council, State of Michigan Courtesy of www.legislature.mi.gov



is located, and which are intended for common use, are substantially complete, or determining the amount
necessary for substantial completion thereof.

(4)

(8) Substantial completion and the estimated cost for substantial completion of the items described in
subsections (3)(c) and (3)(d) and in subsection (6) shall be determined by a licensed professional engineer or
architect, as provided in subsection (4)(b), subject to the following:

(i) Items referred to in subsection (3)(c) shall be substantially complete only after all utility mains and
leads, all major structural components of buildings, al building exteriors and all sidewalks, driveways,
landscaping and access roads, to the extent such items are designated on the condominium subdivision plan as
“must be built”, are substantially complete in accordance with the pertinent plans therefor.

(i) If the estimated cost of substantial completion of any of the items referred to in subsection (3)(c) and
(d) cannot be determined by a licensed professional engineer or architect due to the absence of plans,
specifications, or other details that are sufficiently complete to enable such a determination to be made, such
cost shall be the minimum expenditure specified in the recorded master deed or amendment for completion
thereof. To the extent that any item referred to in subsection (3)(c) and (d) is specifically depicted on the
condominium subdivision plan, an estimate of the cost of substantial completion prepared by a licensed
professional engineer or architect shall be required in place of the minimum expenditure specified in the
recorded master deed or amendment.

(b) A structure, element, facility or other improvement shall be deemed to be substantially complete when
it can be reasonably employed for its intended use and, for purposes of certification under this section, shall
not be required to be constructed, installed, or furnished precisely in accordance with the specifications for the
project. A certificate of substantial completion shall not be deemed to be a certification as to the quality of the
itemsto which it relates.

(5) In place of retaining funds in escrow under subsection (3), the developer may, if the escrow agreement
so provides, furnish an escrow agent with evidence of adequate security, including, without limitation, an
irrevocable letter of credit, lending commitment, indemnification agreement, or other resource having avalue,
in the judgment of the escrow agent, of not less than the amount retained pursuant to subsection (3).

(6) Upon receipt of a certificate issued pursuant to subsection (3)(c) and (d) determining the amounts
necessary for substantial completion, the escrow agent may release to the developer al funds in escrow in
excess of the amounts determined by the issuer of such certificate to be necessary for substantial completion.
In addition, upon receipt by the escrow agent of a certificate signed by a licensed professional engineer or
architect confirming substantial completion in accordance with the pertinent plans of an item for which funds
have been deposited in escrow, the escrow agent shall release to the developer the amount of such funds
specified by the issuer of the certificate as being attributable to such substantially completed item. However,
if the amounts remaining in escrow after such partial release would be insufficient in the opinion of the issuer
of such certificate for substantial completion of any remaining incomplete items for which funds have been
deposited in escrow, only the amount in escrow in excess of such estimated cost to substantially complete
shall be released by the escrow agent to the developer. Notwithstanding a release of escrowed funds that is
authorized or required by this section, an escrow agent may refuse to rel ease funds from an escrow account if
the escrow agent, in its judgment, has sufficient cause to believe the certificate confirming substantial
completion or determining the amount necessary for substantial completion is fraudulent or without factual
basis.

(7) Not earlier than 9 months after closing the sale of the first unit in a phase of a condominium project for
which escrowed funds have been retained under subsection (3)(c) or for which security has been provided
under subsection (5), an escrow agent, upon the request of the association or any interested co-owner, shall
notify the developer of the amount of funds deposited under subsection (3)(c) or security provided under
subsection (5) for such purpose that remains, and of the date determined under this subsection upon which
those funds can be released. In the case of arecreational facility or other facility intended for general common
use, not earlier than 9 months after the date on which the facility was promised in the condominium
documents to be completed by the developer, an escrow agent, upon the request of the association or any
interested co-owner, shall notify the developer of the amount of funds deposited under subsection (3)(d) or
security provided under subsection (5) for such purpose that remains, and of the date determined under this
subsection upon which those funds can be released. Three months after receipt of arequest pertaining to funds
described in subsection (3)(c) or (3)(d), funds that have not yet been released to the devel oper may be released
by the escrow agent for the purpose of completing incomplete improvements for which the funds were
originaly retained, or for a purpose specified in a written agreement between the association and the
developer entered into after the transitional control date. The agreement may specify that issues relating to the
use of the funds be submitted to arbitration. The escrow agent may release funds in the manner provided in
Rendered Friday, September 19, 2014 Page 24 Michigan Compiled Laws Complete Through PA 281 of 2014

O Legislative Council, State of Michigan Courtesy of www.legislature.mi.gov



such an agreement or may initiate an interpleader action and deposit retained funds with a court of competent
jurisdiction. In any interpleader action, the circuit court shall be empowered, in its discretion, to appoint a
receiver to administer the application of the funds. Any notice or request provided for in this subsection shall
be in writing.

(8) If interest is paid on the amounts escrowed under this act, that interest shall be released in the same
manner as provided for release of funds in this section except that the parties may, by written agreement,
provide that interest on funds refunded to a depositor upon withdrawa may be paid to the developer.

(9) The escrow agent in the performance of its duties under this section shall be deemed an independent
party not acting as the agent of the developer, any purchaser, co-owner, or other interested party. So long as
the escrow agent relies upon any certificate, cost estimate, or determination made by a licensed professional
engineer or architect, as described in this act, the escrow agent shall have no liability whatever to the
developer or to any purchaser, co-owner, or other interested party for any error in such certificate, cost
estimate, or determination, or for any act or omission by the escrow agent in reliance thereon. The escrow
agent shall be relieved of al liability upon release, in accordance with this section, of all amounts deposited
with it pursuant to this act.

(10) A licensed professional architect or engineer undertaking to make a certification under this section
shall be held to the normal standard of care required of a member of that profession in determining substantial
completion and the estimated cost of substantial completion under this act, but such architect or engineer shall
not be required to have designed the improvement or item or to have inspected or to have otherwise exercised
supervisory control thereof during the course of construction or installation of the improvement or item with
respect to which the certificate is delivered. The certification by a licensed professional architect or engineer
shall not be construed to limit the developer's liability for any defect in construction.

(12) For purposes of this section, “licensed professional engineer or architect” means a member of those
professions who satisfies all requirements of the laws of this state for the practice of the profession, and who
is not an employee of the developer or of a firm in which the developer or an officer or director of the
developer isaprincipal or holds 10% or more of the outstanding shares of that firm.

History: Add. 1983, Act 113, Imd. Eff. July 12, 1983.

559.204 Conversion condominium project; notice; termination of tenancy.

Sec. 104. (1) Except for the requirements of subsection (2), this section shall not apply to a business
condominium unit.

(2) Before offering any unit for sale, the developer of a conversion condominium project shall notify each
existing tenant of any unit in the proposed conversion condominium project of all of the following:

(8) The proposed conversion.

(b) The right of a prospective purchaser to receive the disclosure documents enumerated in section 84a.

(c) Theright to remain in the unit of residence for 120 days after receipt of this notice, or until expiration
of the term of the lease, whichever islonger.

(d) The right to terminate tenancy after receipt of this notice upon 60 days notice to the developer. The
notice shall be physically delivered or sent by first class mail to each unit, addressed to the tenant. A tenancy
in a conversion condominium, whether month to month or otherwise, shall not be terminated by the lessor
without cause within 120 days after delivery of notice under this subsection, or until expiration of the term of
the lease, whichever islonger.

(3) A tenant who receives notice under subsection (2) may terminate his or her tenancy, at any time, if
notice of termination of tenancy is given to the developer not less than 60 days before the date of termination.

(4) If adeveloper of a conversion condominium project desires to take reservations before delivery of the
notice required under subsection (2), the developer shall, before taking any reservations, notify each existing
tenant of any unit in the proposed conversion condominium of both of the following:

(8) The tenant's lease is not affected by the taking of reservations for units in the proposed conversion
condominium.

(b) If a conversion condominium project is established, the tenant may obtain from the developer a full
statement of the rights and options available to the tenant.

History: 1978, Act 59, Eff. July 1, 1978;00 Am. 1982, Act 538, Imd. Eff. Jan. 17, 1983.

559.204a Terminating tenancy of certain persons without cause prohibited; criteria; notice.
Sec. 104a. The tenancy of a person who meets al of the following criteria on the date a master deed isfiled
for the conversion of a building to a condominium, shall not be terminated without cause within 1 year after
receipt of notice required under section 104(2):
(a) The person is 65 years of age or older or paraplegic, quadriplegic, hemiplegic, or blind as that term is
Rendered Friday, September 19, 2014 Page 25 Michigan Compiled Laws Complete Through PA 281 of 2014
O Legislative Council, State of Michigan Courtesy of www.legislature.mi.gov



defined in section 504 of the state income tax act of 1967, Act No. 281 of the Public Acts of 1967, as
amended, being section 206.504 of the Michigan Compiled Laws.

(b) The person is aresident of the building.

(c) The person does not qualify for an extended |lease arrangement under section 104b.

History: Add. 1980, Act 283, Imd. Eff. Oct. 10, 1980;0 Am. 1980, Act 513, Imd. Eff. Jan. 26, 1981;00 Am. 1982, Act 538, Imd. Eff.
Jan. 17, 1983.

559.204b Definitions; applicability of section; notice of right to elect extended lease
arrangement; election; extended lease arrangement provisions; number of years lease
renewable; notice by developer entering into restricted lease arrangement; assignment,
device, sublease, or transfer of lease by qualified senior citizen or person with disabilities
prohibited; automatic termination of lease; liability of lessor violating rental restrictions;
recovery of possession of restricted unit; transfer of restricted unit.

Sec. 104b. (1) Asused in this section and sections 104a, 104d, 104e, and 131:

(a) “Qualified conversion condominium project” means a structure or group of structures containing a total
of 6 or more residential units occupied before the establishment of a conversion condominium project.

(b) “Qualified person with disabilities’ means a person who is a resident of a qualified conversion
condominium project and paraplegic, quadriplegic, hemiplegic, or blind as that term is defined in section 504
of theincome tax act of 1967, 1967 PA 281, MCL 206.504.

(c) “Qualified senior citizen” means an individua who is both of the following:

(i) A resident, on October 10, 1980, of a unit in a qualified conversion condominium project who on or
after June 1, 1980, was a party to an oral or written agreement to pay less than $450.00 monthly rent for an
apartment in the project having 1 bedroom or less, or less than $500.00 monthly rent for an apartment in the
project having 2 or more bedrooms.

(i) Sixty-five years of age or older on October 10, 1980.

(d) “Rent” or “monthly rent” means the total monthly amount payable to the lessor, and shall include any
amount payable to the lessor for utilities.

(e) “Resident” means an individual who uses a unit as his or her primary residence, to which the individual
intends to return whenever absent.

(f) “Restricted unit” means an apartment that is subject to an extended lease arrangement as provided in
subsection (4).

(2) Except as to a developer who has been issued a permit to sell before October 10, 1980, this section
appliesto adeveloper of aqualified conversion condominium project.

(3) A developer shall notify each existing tenant at the same time notice is given under section 104(2), of
the right to elect an extended lease arrangement and the terms and conditions of an extended lease
arrangement. A qualified senior citizen or qualified person with disabilities shall have not more than 60 days
after receipt of notice under this subsection to communicate the election of an extended lease arrangement to
the developer.

(4) An extended |ease arrangement shall be in writing and shall provide for the following:

(8 A written lease renewable from year to year for the number of years specified in subsection (5) with
respect to a unit occupied by a qualified senior citizen, and for the number of years specified in subsection (6)
with respect to a unit occupied by a qualified person with disabilities.

(b) That the number of years for which a lease subject to an extended lease arrangement may be renewed
shall be measured from the date on which the election of an extended lease arrangement is communicated to
the developer.

(c) That any increase in the rent during the time the unit is a restricted unit will not be an unreasonable
increase beyond the fair market rent for a comparabl e apartment.

(d) That upon request of the resident of a restricted unit, the owner shall disclose all information used in
determining a reasonabl e rent increase based upon the standard in subdivision (c).

(5) Except as provided in section 104d, the number of years for which a qualified senior citizen may renew
alease subject to an extended lease arrangement shall be determined by his or her age on the date of receipt of
the notice required under section 104(2), as follows:

(a) A person who is not less than 65 years of age and not more than 69 years of age may renew year to year
for 4 years. However, if the developer is notified that sufficient loan funds are not available under former
section 104c, the period of renewal under this subdivision is reduced 2 years. The developer immediately
shall notify affected qualified senior citizens of areduction in the number of years of renewal.

(b) A person who is not less than 70 years of age and not more than 74 years of age may renew year to year
for 6 years.

Render)éd Friday, September 19, 2014 Page 26 Michigan Compiled Laws Complete Through PA 281 of 2014

O Legislative Council, State of Michigan Courtesy of www.legislature.mi.gov



(c) A person who is hot less than 75 years of age and not more than 79 years of age may renew year to year
for 7 years.

(d) A person who is 80 years of age or more may renew year to year for 10 years.

(6) Except as provided in section 104d, a person who is a qualified person with disabilities on the date of
receipt of notice required under section 104(2) may renew a lease subject to an extended lease arrangement
year to year for 4 years; or, if the qualified person with disabilities is also a qualified senior citizen, for the
number of years provided in subsection (5), whichever is greater.

(7) A developer who entersinto arestricted lease arrangement or the devel oper's successor shall notify:

(@ The Michigan state housing development authority of each tenant who elects an extended lease
arrangement as soon as practicable after the election is communicated to the devel oper.

(b) The office of services to the aging created in section 5 of the older Michiganians act, 1981 PA 180,
MCL 400.585, 18 months before the expiration of the extended lease arrangement for a qualified senior
citizen who isin the age categories described in subsection (5)(c) and (d).

(8) A lease subject to an extended lease arrangement shall not be assigned, devised, subleased, or
transferred by the qualified senior citizen or qualified person with disabilities.

(9) A lease subject to an extended lease arrangement shall terminate automatically upon the death of the
qualified senior citizen or qualified person with disabilities. However, a surviving spouse of a qualified senior
citizen who is 65 years of age or older at the time the qualified senior citizen dies shall have the right to
execute alease under an extended |ease arrangement subject to the right of renewal, and other conditions, that
applied to the deceased. A surviving spouse who does not qualify for an extended lease shall have 6 monthsin
which to vacate the premises, during which time the conditions of the deceased spouse's extended lease shall
apply, except for the right of renewal.

(10) A lessor who violates the rental restrictions of subsection (4)(c) is liable to the qualified senior citizen
or qualified person with disabilities in an amount equal to 3 times the amount by which the rental payments
exceed the fair market rent, to be recovered in acivil action.

(11) The owner may recover possession of a restricted unit for nonpayment of rent, illegal use or
occupancy of the premises, or other grounds for recovery of possession under chapter 57 of the revised
judicature act of 1961, 1961 PA 236, MCL 600.5701 to 600.5759.

(12) A restricted unit may be transferred by the owner to any person, subject to the extended lease
arrangement.

History: Add. 1980, Act 283, Imd. Eff. Oct. 10, 1980;0 Am. 1980, Act 513, Imd. Eff. Jan. 26, 1981;00 Am. 1982, Act 538, Imd. Eff.
Jan. 17, 1983;0 Am. 1998, Act 36, Imd. Eff. Mar. 18, 1998.

559.204c Repealed. 1985, Act 183, Imd. Eff. Dec. 18, 1985.

Compiler'snote: The repealed section pertained to loans to developers of qualified conversion condominium projects.

559.204d Developer not required to offer extended lease arrangement; conditions;

compliance.

Sec. 104d. (1) A developer, but not a successor developer, who meets all of the following conditions, shall
not be required to offer an extended |ease arrangement described in section 104b for longer than 1 year:

(a) Not later than January 1, 1980, is the legal or equitable owner of a qualified conversion condominium
project.

(b) Not later than March 1, 1980, has filed an application for a permit to sell units in that qualified
conversion condominium project, and not later than March 1, 1980 has transmitted the required fee.

(c) On October 10, 1980, a permit to sell has not been issued by the administrator for the qualified
conversion condominium project described in subdivision (b).

(d) Has received notice from the Michigan state housing development authority that sufficient funds are
not available to advance the full amount of loans for which application has been made by the devel oper.

(2) A developer described in subsection (1) shall comply with, and be subject to, section 104b(1) to (3),
(4)(b) to (d), and (8) to (12).

History: Add. 1980, Act 283, Imd. Eff. Oct. 10, 1980;00 Am. 1980, Act 513, Imd. Eff. Jan. 26, 1981;] Am. 1982, Act 538, Imd. Eff.
Jan. 17, 1983,

559.204e Legislative intent; examination of relevant information; recommendation.

Sec. 104e. It is the intent of the legislature to enable continued occupancy of restricted units by qualified
senior citizens described in section 104b(5)(c) and (d) following the expiration of an extended lease
arrangement. In furtherance of this intent, the office of services to the aging created in section 2 of Act No.
146 of the Public Acts of 1975, as amended, in consultation with the department of commerce and the

Rendered Friday, September 19, 2014 Page 27 Michigan Compiled Laws Complete Through PA 281 of 2014
O Legislative Council, State of Michigan Courtesy of www.legislature.mi.gov



Michigan state housing development authority, shall examine al relevant information and within 2 years after
the effective date of this section, recommend to the legislature appropriate action to effectuate the intent
expressed in this section.

History: Add. 1980, Act 283, Imd. Eff. Oct. 10, 1980.

Compiler'snote: Act 146 of 1975, referred to in this section, was repealed by Act 180 of 1980.

559.205 Reserve fund.
Sec. 105. A reserve fund for major repairs and replacement of common elements shall be maintained by
the associations of co-owners. The administrator may by rule establish minimum standards for reserve funds.
History: 1978, Act 59, Eff. July 1, 1978.

559.206 Default by co-owner; relief.

Sec. 106. A default by a co-owner shall entitle the association of co-owners to the following relief:

(a) Failure to comply with any of the terms or provisions of the condominium documents, shall be grounds
for relief, which may include without limitations, an action to recover sums due for damages, injunctive relief,
foreclosure of lien if default in payment of assessment, or any combination thereof.

(b) In aproceeding arising because of an alleged default by a co-owner, the association of co-owners or the
co-owner, if successful, shall recover the costs of the proceeding and reasonable attorney fees, as determined
by the court, to the extent the condominium documents expressly so provide.

(¢) Such other reasonable remedies the condominium documents may provide including but without
limitation the levying of fines against co-owners after notice and hearing thereon and the imposition of late
charges for nonpayment of assessments as provided in the condominium bylaws or rules and regulations of
the condominium.

History: 1978, Act 59, Eff. July 1, 1978;0 Am. 2000, Act 379, Imd. Eff. Jan. 2, 2001.

559.207 Action to enforce terms and provisions of condominium documents; action for
injunctive relief or damages.

Sec. 107. A co-owner may maintain an action against the association of co-owners and its officers and
directors to compel these persons to enforce the terms and provisions of the condominium documents. In such
a proceeding, the association of co-owners or the co-owner, if successful, shall recover the costs of the
proceeding and reasonable attorney fees, as determined by the court, to the extent that the condominium
documents expressly so provide. A co-owner may maintain an action against any other co-owner for
injunctive relief or for damages or any combination thereof for noncompliance with the terms and provisions
of the condominium documents or this act.

History: 1978, Act 59, Eff. July 1, 1978;00 Am. 2000, Act 379, Imd. Eff. Jan. 2, 2001.

559.208 Assessment lien; priority; foreclosure; bid; actions; receiver.

Sec. 108. (1) Sums assessed to a co-owner by the association of co-owners that are unpaid together with
interest on such sums, collection and late charges, advances made by the association of co-owners for taxes or
other liens to protect its lien, attorney fees, and fines in accordance with the condominium documents,
congtitute a lien upon the unit or units in the project owned by the co-owner at the time of the assessment
before other liens except tax liens on the condominium unit in favor of any state or federal taxing authority
and sums unpaid on afirst mortgage of record, except that past due assessments that are evidenced by a notice
of lien recorded as set forth in subsection (3) have priority over a first mortgage recorded subsequent to the
recording of the notice of lien. The lien upon each condominium unit owned by the co-owner shall be in the
amount assessed against the condominium unit, plus a proportionate share of the total of all other unpaid
assessments attributable to condominium units no longer owned by the co-owner but which became due while
the co-owner had title to the condominium units. The lien may be foreclosed by an action or by advertisement
by the association of co-owners in the name of the condominium project on behalf of the other co-owners.

(2) A foreclosure shall be in the same manner as a foreclosure under the laws relating to foreclosure of real
estate mortgages by advertisement or judicial action except that to the extent the condominium documents
provide, the association of co-owners is entitled to reasonable interest, expenses, costs, and attorney fees for
foreclosure by advertisement or judicial action. The redemption period for aforeclosure is 6 months from the
date of sale unless the property is abandoned, in which event the redemption period is 1 month from the date
of sae.

(3) A foreclosure proceeding may not be commenced without recordation and service of notice of lien in
accordance with the following:

(a) Notice of lien shall set forth all of the following:

Rendered Friday, September 19, 2014 Page 28 Michigan Compiled Laws Complete Through PA 281 of 2014
O Legislative Council, State of Michigan Courtesy of www.legislature.mi.gov



(i) The legal description of the condominium unit or condominium units to which the lien attaches.

(if) The name of the co-owner of record.

(iii) The amounts due the association of co-owners at the date of the notice, exclusive of interest, costs,
attorney fees, and future assessments.

(b) The notice of lien shall be in recordable form, executed by an authorized representative of the
association of co-owners and may contain other information that the association of co-owners considers
appropriate.

(c) The naotice of lien shall be recorded in the office of register of deeds in the county in which the
condominium project is located and shall be served upon the delinquent co-owner by first-class mail, postage
prepaid, addressed to the last known address of the co-owner at least 10 days in advance of commencement of
the foreclosure proceeding.

(4) The association of co-owners, acting on behalf of all co-owners, unless prohibited by the master deed
or bylaws, may bid in at the foreclosure sale, and acquire, hold, lease, mortgage, or convey the condominium
unit.

(5) An action to recover money judgments for unpaid assessments may be maintained without foreclosing
or waiving the lien.

(6) An action for money damages and foreclosure may be combined in 1 action.

(7) A receiver may be appointed in an action for foreclosure of the assessment lien and may be empowered
to take possession of the condominium unit, if not occupied by the co-owner, and to lease the condominium
unit and collect and apply the rental from the condominium unit.

(8) The co-owner of a condominium unit subject to foreclosure under this section, and any purchaser,
grantee, successor, or assignee of the co-owner'sinterest in the condominium unit, isliable for assessments by
the association of co-owners chargeable to the condominium unit that become due before expiration of the
period of redemption together with interest, advances made by the association of co-owners for taxes or other
liens to protect itslien, costs, and attorney feesincurred in their collection.

(9) The mortgagee of afirst mortgage of record of a condominium unit shall give notice to the association
of co-owners of the commencement of foreclosure of the first mortgage by advertisement by serving a copy of
the published notice of foreclosure required by statute upon the association of co-owners by certified mail,
return receipt requested, addressed to the resident agent of the association of co-owners at the agent's address
as shown on the records of the Michigan corporation and securities bureau, or to the address the association
provides to the mortgagee, if any, in those cases where the address is not registered, within 10 days after the
first publication of the notice. The mortgagee of a first mortgage of record of a condominium unit shall give
notice to the association of co-owners of intent to commence foreclosure of the first mortgage by judicia
action by serving a notice setting forth the names of the mortgagors, the mortgagee, and the foreclosing
assignee of arecorded assignment of the mortgage, if any; the date of the mortgage and the date the mortgage
was recorded; the amount claimed to be due on the mortgage on the date of the notice; and a description of the
mortgaged premises that substantially conforms with the description contained in the mortgage upon the
association of co-owners by certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the resident agent of the
association of co-owners at the agent's address as shown on the records of the Michigan corporation and
securities bureau, or to the address the association provides to the mortgagee, if any, in those cases where the
address is not registered, not less than 10 days before commencement of the judicial action. Failure of the
mortgagee to provide notice as required by this section shall only provide the association with legal recourse
and will not, in any event, invalidate any foreclosure proceeding between a mortgagee and mortgagor.

History: 1978, Act 59, Eff. July 1, 1978;00 Am. 2000, Act 379, Imd. Eff. Jan. 2, 2001;00 Am. 2002, Act 283, Imd. Eff. May 9, 2002.

559.209 Liability for torts.
Sec. 109. Neither the association of co-owners nor the co-owners, other than the developer, shall be liable
for torts caused by the developer or his agents or employees of the devel oper within the common elements.
History: 1978, Act 59, Eff. July 1, 1978.

559.210 Repealed. 1982, Act 538, Imd. Eff. Jan. 17, 1983.

Compiler's note: The repealed section pertained to disclosure and form of warranty.

559.211 Sale or conveyance of condominium unit; payment and statement of unpaid
assessments; liability for unpaid assessments.
Sec. 111. (1) Upon the sale or conveyance of a condominium unit, all unpaid assessments, interest, late
charges, fines, costs, and attorney fees against a condominium unit shall be paid out of the sale price or by the
purchaser in preference over any other assessments or charges of whatever nature except the following:

Rendered Friday, September 19, 2014 Page 29 Michigan Compiled Laws Complete Through PA 281 of 2014
O Legislative Council, State of Michigan Courtesy of www.legislature.mi.gov



(8 Amounts due the state, or any subdivision thereof, or any municipality for taxes and specia
assessments due and unpaid on the condominium unit.

(b) Payments due under afirst mortgage having priority thereto.

(2) A purchaser or grantee is entitled to a written statement from the association of co-owners setting forth
the amount of unpaid assessments, interest, late charges, fines, costs, and attorney fees against the seller or
grantor and the purchaser or grantee is not liable for, nor is the condominium unit conveyed or granted subject
to alien for any unpaid assessments, interest, late charges, fines, costs, and attorney fees against the seller or
grantor in excess of the amount set forth in the written statement. Unless the purchaser or grantee requests a
written statement from the association of co-owners as provided in this act, at least 5 days before sde, the
purchaser or grantee shall be liable for any unpaid assessments against the condominium unit together with
interest, costs, fines, late charges, and attorney feesincurred in the collection thereof.

History: 1978, Act 59, Eff. July 1, 1978;00 Am. 2000, Act 379, Imd. Eff. Jan. 2, 2001.

559.212 Renting or leasing condominium unit; disclosure; review of lease form; notice;
compliance required; action by association upon noncompliance; notice of arrearage;
deduction of arrearage and future assessments from rental payments.

Sec. 112. (1) Before the transitional control date, during the development and sales period the rights of a
co-owner, including the developer, to rent any number of condominium units shall be controlled by the
provisions of the condominium documents as recorded by the developer and shall not be changed without
developer approval. After the transitional control date, the association of co-owners may amend the
condominium documents as to the rental of condominium units or terms of occupancy. The amendment shall
not affect the rights of any lessors or lessees under a written lease otherwise in compliance with this section
and executed before the effective date of the amendment, or condominium units that are owned or leased by
the developer.

(2) A co-owner, including the developer, desiring to rent or lease a condominium unit shall disclose that
fact in writing to the association of co-owners at least 10 days before presenting a lease or otherwise agreeing
to grant possession of a condominium unit to potential 1essees or occupants and, at the same time, shall supply
the association of co-owners with a copy of the exact lease for its review for its compliance with the
condominium documents. The co-owner or developer shall aso provide the association of co-owners with a
copy of the executed lease. If no lease is to be used, then the co-owner or developer shall supply the
association of co-owners with the name and address of the lessees or occupants, along with the rental amount
and due dates of any rental or compensation payable to a co-owner or developer, the due dates of that rental
and compensation, and the term of the proposed arrangement.

(3) Tenants or nonco-owner occupants shall comply with al of the conditions of the condominium
documents of the condominium project, and all leases and rental agreements shall so state.

(4) If the association of co-owners determines that the tenant or nonco-owner occupant failed to comply
with the conditions of the condominium documents, the association of co-owners shall take the following
action:

(&) The association of co-owners shall notify the co-owner by certified mail, advising of the alleged
violation by the tenant. The co-owner shall have 15 days after receipt of the notice to investigate and correct
the alleged breach by the tenant or advise the association of co-owners that a violation has not occurred.

(b) If after 15 days the association of co-owners believes that the alleged breach is not cured or may be
repeated, it may institute on its behalf or derivatively by the co-owners on behalf of the association of
co-owners, if it is under the control of the developer, an action for both eviction against the tenant or
nonco-owner occupant and, simultaneously, for money damages against the co-owner and tenant or
nonco-owner occupant for breach of the conditions of the condominium documents. The relief provided for in
this section may be by summary proceeding. The association of co-owners may hold both the tenant and the
co-owner liable for any damages to the general common elements caused by the co-owner or tenant in
connection with the condominium unit or condominium project.

(5) When a co-owner is in arrearage to the association of co-owners for assessments, the association of
co-owners may give written notice of the arrearage to a tenant occupying a co-owner's condominium unit
under alease or rental agreement, and the tenant, after receiving the notice, shall deduct from rental payments
due the co-owner the arrearage and future assessments as they fall due and pay them to the association of
co-owners. The deduction does not constitute a breach of the rental agreement or lease by the tenant. If the
tenant, after being notified, fails or refuses to remit rent otherwise due the co-owner to the association of
co-owners, then the association of co-owners may do the following:

(a) Issue a statutory notice to quit for non-payment of rent to the tenant and shall have the right to enforce
that notice by summary proceeding.

Rendered Friday, September 19, 2014 Page 30 Michigan Compiled Laws Complete Through PA 281 of 2014

O Legislative Council, State of Michigan Courtesy of www.legislature.mi.gov



(b) Initiate proceedings pursuant to subsection (4)(b).
History: 1978, Act 59, Eff. July 1, 1978;00 Am. 1982, Act 538, Imd. Eff. Jan. 17, 1983;00 Am. 2000, Act 379, Imd. Eff. Jan. 2, 2001;
0 Am. 2002, Act 283, Imd. Eff. May 9, 2002.

559.213 Financing.
Sec. 113. A developer, residential builder, or sales agent shall not require that a prospective purchaser of a
condominium unit obtain financing from a specific financia institution exclusively.

History: 1978, Act 59, Eff. July 1, 1978;00 Am. 2000, Act 379, Imd. Eff. Jan. 2, 2001.

559.214 Homestead exemption.
Sec. 114. The laws of this state relating to the exemption of homestead property from levy and execution
shall be applicable to condominium units occupied as homesteads.

History: 1978, Act 59, Eff. July 1, 1978.

559.215 Action by person or association adversely affected by violation of or failure to
comply with act, rules, agreement, or master deed; costs; violation of MCL 559.121 or
559.184a; liability.

Sec. 115. (1) A person or association of co-owners adversely affected by aviolation of or failure to comply
with this act, rules promulgated under this act, or any provision of an agreement or a master deed may bring
an action for relief in a court of competent jurisdiction. The court may award costs to the prevailing party.

(2) A developer who offers or sells a condominium unit in violation of section 21 or 84ais liable to the
person purchasing the condominium unit for damages.

History: 1978, Act 59, Eff. July 1, 1978;00 Am. 1982, Act 538, Imd. Eff. Jan. 17, 1983.

559.221 Mobile home condominium project; establishment, operation, and regulation;
compliance.

Sec. 121. The establishment, operation, and regulation of mobile home condominium projects shall comply
with this act, rules promulgated under this act, and with the following:

(a) A mobile home located on a mobile home condominium site shall be contained entirely within that site.
The mobile home condominium master deed shall set forth the minimum and maximum size of a mobile
home that may be |ocated on the mobile home condominium site.

(b) The association of co-owners may remove a mobile home from a mobile home condominium site if the
mobile home does not conform to the reasonable standards set forth by the association of co-owners in the
bylaws.

(c) Upon completion of foreclosure of a lien of the association of co-owners for nonpayment of
assessments on a condominium unit pursuant to section 108, the association of co-owners may remove a
mobile home and other personal property from the condominium unit and cause the mobile home and other
personal property to be stored at the expense of the co-owner of the mobile home.

(d) Except as provided in section 127, the mobile home commission shall not act for the purpose of
regulating mobile home condominiums that are not located within a mobile home park, except as relates to
the business, sales, and service practices of mobile home dealers, and the business of maobile home installers
and repairers, or the setup and installation of mobile homes, as provided in the mobile home commission act,
Act No. 419 of the Public Acts of 1976.

History: 1978, Act 59, Eff. July 1, 1978;00 Am. 1982, Act 538, Imd. Eff. Jan. 17, 1983.

559.222 Mobile home condominium project; disclosure.

Sec. 122. The developer of a mobile home condominium project shall disclose to a prospective mobile
home condominium purchaser, in a manner and form to be promulgated by rule of the administrator, an
affiliation between the developer and the seller of skirting and the seller of the mobile home, if the purchaser
as a condition to buying a site must also purchase a mobile home or skirting from the developer or an affiliate
of the developer. The administrator may prohibit required purchases of skirting from the developer or a source
designated by the developer, as prescribed in Act No. 419 of the Public Acts of 1976, being sections 125.1101
to 125.1147 of the Michigan Compiled Laws.

History: 1978, Act 59, Eff. July 1, 1978;0 Am. 1982, Act 538, Imd. Eff. Jan. 17, 1983.

559.222a Mobile home conversion condominium project; notification of tenants; termination
of tenancy.
Sec. 122a. The developer of a mobile home conversion condominium project shall notify each existing
Rendered Friday, September 19, 2014 Page 31 Michigan Compiled Laws Complete Through PA 281 of 2014
O Legislative Council, State of Michigan Courtesy of www.legislature.mi.gov



tenant of any mobile home in the proposed mobile home conversion condominium project that the mobile
home park is proposed to be converted to a condominium project. The notice shall be physically delivered or
sent by first class mail to each unit addressed to the tenant. Except as provided in section 122b, atenancy in a
mobile home that is proposed to be a conversion condominium, whether month to month or otherwise, shall
not be terminated without cause until 1 year after receipt of the notice required under this section, or until
termination of the lease, whichever islater.

History: Add. 1982, Act 42, Imd. Eff. Mar. 16, 1982;0 Am. 1984, Act 356, Eff. Mar. 29, 1985.

559.222b Extended lease arrangement.

Sec. 122b. (1) A developer shall notify each existing qualified senior citizen, at the same time notice is
given under section 122a, of the right to elect an extended |ease arrangement for the lot on which the senior
citizen's mobile home is located, and the terms and conditions of an extended lease arrangement. A qualified
senior citizen shall, within 60 days after receipt of notice under this subsection, communicate the election of
an extended |ease arrangement to the devel oper.

(2) An extended lease arrangement shall be in writing and shall provide for all of the following:

(a) A written lease for the lot on which the senior citizen's mobile home is located, renewable from year to
year for the number of years specified in subsection (3).

(b) That the number of years for which a lease subject to an extended lease arrangement may be renewed
shall be measured from the date on which the election of an extended lease arrangement is communicated to
the devel oper.

(c) That any increase in the rent during the time the mobile home lot is a restricted mobile home lot will
not be an unreasonable increase beyond the fair market rent for a comparable mobile home lot.

(d) That upon request of the lessee of a restricted mobile home lot, the lessor shall disclose all information
used in determining a reasonable rent increase based upon the standard in subdivision (c).

(3) The number of years for which a qualified senior citizen may renew alease subject to an extended lease
arrangement shall be determined by his or her age on the date of receipt of the notice required under
subsection (1), asfollows:

(a) A person who is hot less than 65 years of age and not more than 69 years of age may renew year to year
for 4 years.

(b) A person who is not less than 70 years of age and not more than 74 years of age may renew year to year
for 6 years.

(c) A person who is hot less than 75 years of age and not more than 79 years of age may renew year to year
for 7 years.

(d) A person who is 80 years of age or more may renew year to year for 10 years.

(4) A developer who enters into an extended lease arrangement or the developer's successor shall notify
both of the following of each extended lease arrangement:

(@) The Michigan state housing development authority of each qualified senior citizen who elects an
extended lease arrangement as soon as practicable after the election is communicated to the devel oper.

(b) The office of services to the aging created in section 5 of the older Michiganians act, Act No. 180 of
the Public Acts of 1981, being section 400.585 of the Michigan Compiled Laws, 18 months before the
expiration of the extended lease arrangement for a qualified senior citizen who is in the age categories
described in subsection (3)(c) and (d).

(5) A lease subject to an extended lease arrangement shall not be assigned, devised, subleased, or
transferred by the qualified senior citizen.

(6) A lease subject to an extended lease arrangement shall terminate automatically upon the death of the
qualified senior citizen. However, a surviving spouse of a qualified senior citizen who is 65 years of age or
older at the time the qualified senior citizen dies shall have the right to execute a lease under an extended
lease arrangement subject to the right of renewal, and other conditions, that applied to the deceased. A
surviving spouse who does not qualify for an extended lease shall have 6 months in which to vacate the
mobile home lot, during which time the conditions of the deceased spouse's extended lease shall apply, except
for the right of renewal.

(7) A lessor who violates the rental restrictions of subsection (2)(c) shall be liable to the qualified senior
citizen in an amount equal to 3 times the amount by which the rental payments exceed the fair market rent, to
be recovered in acivil action.

(8) The lessor in an extended |ease arrangement may recover possession of a restricted mobile home lot for
nonpayment of rent or other grounds for recovery of possession under chapter 57 of the revised judicature act
of 1961, Act No. 236 of the Public Acts of 1961, being sections 600.5701 to 600.5759 of the Michigan
Compiled Laws.

Rendered Friday, September 19, 2014 Page 32 Michigan Compiled Laws Complete Through PA 281 of 2014

O Legislative Council, State of Michigan Courtesy of www.legislature.mi.gov



(9) A restricted mobile home lot may be transferred to any person by the lessor in an extended lease
arrangement, subject to the extended | ease arrangement.

(10) Asused in this section:

(a) “Qualified senior citizen” means an individual who is all of the following:

(i) On the date that notice is given under subsection (1), the owner and resident of a mobile home in a
mobile home conversion condominium project containing 6 or more mobile homes.

(if) A party to an oral or written agreement providing for the rental of the lot on which a mobile home
described in subparagraph (i) islocated.

(iii) Sixty-five years of age or older on the date that notice is given under subsection (1).

(b) “Rent” means the total monthly amount payable to the lessor for the mobile home ot and utilities.

(c) “Resident” means an individual who uses his or her mobile home as a primary residence to which he or
sheintends to return whenever absent.

(d) “Restricted mobile home lot” means a mobile home lot that is subject to an extended |ease arrangement
as provided in subsection (2).

(12) This section does not apply to a developer of a mobile home conversion condominium project if the
developer was issued a permit to sell before the effective date of this section.

History: Add. 1984, Act 356, Eff. Mar. 29, 1985.

559.223 Mobile home condominium project; leasing agreements.

Sec. 123. A developer or an affiliate of a developer shall not develop a mobile home condominium project
which involves, as a condition of sale, leasing agreements covering the recreational facilities, amenities, other
common elements, or mobile home condominium sites.

History: 1978, Act 59, Eff. July 1, 1978.

559.224 Title to mobile home condominium site; undivided interest in common elements;
removal of mobile home; sale of site.

Sec. 124. (1) A mobile home condominium co-owner shall receive good and marketable title to his
particular mobile home condominium site together with an undivided interest in the common elements.

(2) A mobile home condominium co-owner may remove a mobile home from the mobile home
condominium site, and sell his rights and interest in the mobile home condominium site, but may not remove
any of the common elements.

History: 1978, Act 59, Eff. July 1, 1978.

559.225, 559.226 Repealed. 1982, Act 538, Imd. Eff. Jan. 17, 1983.

Compiler's note: The repealed sections pertained to spacing of mobile homes, minimum green space, compliance with local
ordinance, and rules.

559.227 Compliance by developer of mobile home condominium; prohibited requirements.

Sec. 127. A developer of a mobile home condominium shall comply with Act No. 419 of the Public Acts
of 1976, being sections 125.1101 to 125.1147 of the Michigan Compiled Laws. The administrator shall not
impose requirements relating to density, zoning, layout, or construction inconsistent with rules regarding
density, zoning, layout, or construction promulgated under Act No. 419 of the Public Acts of 1976.

History: 1978, Act 59, Eff. July 1, 1978;00 Am. 1982, Act 538, Imd. Eff. Jan. 17, 1983.

559.231 Special assessments and property taxes.

Sec. 131. (1) Special assessments and property taxes shall be assessed against the individual condominium
units identified as units of the condominium subdivision plan and not on the total property of the project or
any other part of the project, except for the year in which the condominium project was established
subsequent to the tax day. Taxes and specia assessments which become a lien against the property in that
year subsequent to the establishment of the condominium project shall be expenses of administration of the
project and paid by the co-owners as provided in section 69. The taxes and special assessments shall not be
divided or apportioned on the tax roll any provision of any law to the contrary notwithstanding.

(2) Special assessments and property taxes in any year in which the property existed as an established
condominium project on the tax day shal be assessed against the individual condominium unit,
notwithstanding any subsequent vacation of the condominium project. Condominium units shall be described
for such purposes by reference to the condominium unit number of the condominium subdivision plan and the
caption of the plan together with the liber and page of the county records in which the approved master deed
is recorded. Assessments for subsequent real property improvements to a specific condominium unit shall be
assessed to that condominium unit description only. For property tax and special assessment purposes, each
Rendered Friday, September 19, 2014 Page 33 Michigan Compiled Laws Complete Through PA 281 of 2014

O Legislative Council, State of Michigan Courtesy of www.legislature.mi.gov



condominium unit shall be treated as a separate single unit of real property and shall not be combined with
any other unit or units and no assessment of any fraction of any unit or combination of any unit with other
units or fractions of any unit shall be made, nor shall any division or split of the assessment or taxes of any
single condominium unit be made notwithstanding separate or common ownership of the unit.

(3) A restricted unit as defined in section 104b shall be exempt from any increase in ad valorem taxes on
real property attributable to an increase in the true cash value of the restricted unit that is due to the
conversion condominium project in which the restricted unit is located. For purposes of applying this
exemption, the total assessment of a restricted unit shall not exceed the total assessment for the tax year
preceding the tax year in which the master deed for the property constituting the conversion condominium
project was recorded, multiplied by the percentage of value of the restricted unit. The exemption provided in
this subsection shall terminate for the tax year following the termination of tenancy in the restricted unit.

History: 1978, Act 59, Eff. July 1, 1978;00 Am. 1980, Act 283, Imd. Eff. Oct. 10, 1980.

559.232 Construction lien; limitations.

Sec. 132. A construction lien otherwise arising under the construction lien act, 1980 PA 497, MCL
570.1101 to 570.1305, is subject to the following limitations:

(a) Except as provided in this section, a construction lien for work performed upon a condominium unit or
upon a limited common element may attach only to the condominium unit upon which the work was
performed or to which the limited common element is appurtenant.

(b) A construction lien for work authorized by the developer, residential builder, or principal contractor
and performed upon the common elements may attach only to condominium units owned by the developer,
residential builder, or principal contractor at the time of recording of the statement of account and lien.

() A construction lien for work authorized by the association of co-owners may attach to each
condominium unit only to the proportionate extent that the co-owner of the condominium unit is required to
contribute to the expenses of administration as provided by the condominium documents.

(d) A construction lien may not arise or attach to a condominium unit for work performed on the common
elements not contracted by the developer, residential builder, or principal contractor or by the association of
CO-OWNErs.

History: 1978, Act 59, Eff. July 1, 1978;00 Am. 2000, Act 379, Imd. Eff. Jan. 2, 2001.

559.233 Eminent domain.

Sec. 133. (1) If any portion of the common elements is taken by eminent domain, the award therefor shall
be allocated to the co-owners in proportion to their respective undivided interests in the common elements.
The association of co-owners, acting through its board of directors, may negotiate on behalf of al co-owners
for any taking of common elements and any negotiated settlement approved by more than 2/3 of co-owners
based upon assigned voting rights shall be binding on all co-owners.

(2) If a condominium unit is taken by eminent domain, the undivided interest in the common elements
appertaining to the condominium unit shall thenceforth appertain to the remaining condominium units, being
alocated to them in proportion to their respective undivided interests in the common elements. The court shall
enter a decree reflecting the reallocation of undivided interests produced thereby, and the award shall include,
without limitation, just compensation to the co-owner of the condominium unit taken for his undivided
interest in the common elements as well as for the condominium unit.

(3) If portions of a condominium unit are taken by eminent domain, the court shall determine the fair
market value of the portions of the condominium unit not taken. The undivided interest for each condominium
unit in the common elements appertaining to the condominium units shall be reduced in proportion to the
diminution in the fair market value of the condominium unit resulting from the taking. The portions of
undivided interest in the common elements thereby divested from the co-owners of a condominium unit shall
be reallocated among the other condominium units in the condominium project in proportion to their
respective undivided interests in the common elements. A condominium unit partially taken shall receive the
reallocation in proportion to its undivided interest as reduced by the court under this subsection. The court
shall enter a decree reflecting the reallocation of undivided interests produced thereby, and the award shall
include just compensation to the co-owner of the condominium unit partially taken for that portion of the
undivided interest in the common elements divested from the co-owner and not revested in the co-owner
pursuant to subsection (4), aswell as for that portion of the condominium unit taken by eminent domain.

(4) If the taking of a portion of a condominium unit makes it impractical to use the remaining portion of
that condominium unit for a lawful purpose permitted by the condominium documents, then the entire
undivided interest in the common elements appertaining to that condominium unit shall thenceforth appertain
to the remaining condominium units, being alocated to them in proportion to their respective undivided
Rendered Friday, September 19, 2014 Page 34 Michigan Compiled Laws Complete Through PA 281 of 2014

O Legislative Council, State of Michigan Courtesy of www.legislature.mi.gov



interests in the common elements. The remaining portion of that condominium unit shall thenceforth be a
common element. The court shall enter an order reflecting the reallocation of undivided interests produced
thereby, and the award shall include just compensation to the co-owner of the condominium unit for the
co-owner's entire undivided interest in the common elements and for the entire condominium unit.

(5) Votesin the association of co-owners and liability for future expenses of administration appertaining to
a condominium unit taken or partially taken by eminent domain shall thenceforth appertain to the remaining
condominium units, being allocated to them in proportion to the relative voting strength in the association of
co-owners. A condominium unit partially taken shall receive a reallocation as though the voting strength in
the association of co-owners was reduced in proportion to the reduction in the undivided interests in the
common elements.

History: 1978, Act 59, Eff. July 1, 1978.

559.234 Recreational facilities and other amenities; compliance.

Sec. 134. Recreationa facilities and other amenities, whether on condominium property or on adjacent
property with respect to which the condominium has an obligation of support, shall comply with requirements
prescribed by the administrator, to assure equitable treatment of all users.

History: 1978, Act 59, Eff. July 1, 1978;00 Am. 1982, Act 538, Imd. Eff. Jan. 17, 1983.

559.235 Successor developer.

Sec. 135. (1) Asused in this section, “successor developer” means a person who acquires title to the lesser
of 10 units or 75% of the units in a condominium project, other than a business condominium project, by
foreclosure, deed in lieu of foreclosure, purchase, or similar transaction.

(2) A successor developer shall do both of the following:

(a) Comply with this act in the same manner as a developer before selling any units.

(b) Except as provided in subsection (3), assume all express written contractual warranty obligations for
defects in workmanship and materials undertaken by its predecessor in title. A successor developer shall not
be required to assume, and shall not otherwise be liable for, any other contractual obligations of its
predecessor in title.

(3) A successor developer shall not be required to comply with subsection (2)(b) with respect to any
express written contractual warranty obligations for defects in workmanship and materials, if either of the
following is maintained with respect to units for which such a warranty was undertaken by the predecessor in
title:

(&) An insurance policy, in a form approved by the insurance bureau, that is underwritten by an insurer
authorized to do business in this state. The insurance policy shall provide coverage for express written
contractual warranty obligations for liability for defects in workmanship and materias.

(b) An aggregate escrow account with an escrow agent which contains not less than 0.5% of the sales price
of each unit. If the escrow account described in this subdivision is initiated by a developer before a successor
developer acquires title, 0.5% of the sales price of each unit in the project shall be deposited by the devel oper
in the aggregate escrow account periodically upon the sale of each unit. If the escrow account described in
this subdivision is initiated by a successor developer after acquisition of title, a total amount equal to 0.5% of
the sales price of al units for which the warranty period plus 6 months has not expired shall be deposited by
the successor developer in the aggregate escrow account, and 0.5% of the sales price of each unit shall be
deposited by the successor developer in the aggregate escrow account periodically upon the sale of each
remaining unit. Funds in an escrow account described in this subdivision shall not be released for a unit until
6 months after the expiration of the warranty period for that unit.

(4) A successor developer that acquires title to the lesser of 10 business condominium units or 75% of the
business condominium units in the condominium project shall not be required to assume, and shall not
otherwise be liable for, any contractual obligations of its predecessor in title.

(5) A residential builder who neither constructs nor refurbishes common elements in a condominium
project and who is not an affiliate of the developer shall not be required to assume and be liable for any
contractual obligations of the developer under this section, and shall not be considered a successor devel oper
or acquire any additional developer obligations or rights in the absence of a specific assignment of those
obligations or rights from the developer. However, a residential builder that sells a condominium unit shall
deliver to the purchaser of that condominium unit the condominium documents that the developer is required
to deliver to the purchasers under section 84a(1). This subsection applies only to condominium projects
established on or after the effective date of the amendatory act that added this subsection.

History: 1978, Act 59, Eff. July 1, 1978;00 Am. 1982, Act 538, Imd. Eff. Jan. 17, 1983;0 Am. 2000, Act 379, Imd. Eff. Jan. 2, 2001;
0 Am. 2002, Act 283, Imd. Eff. May 9, 2002,

Rendered Friday, September 19, 2014 Page 35 Michigan Compiled Laws Complete Through PA 281 of 2014

O Legislative Council, State of Michigan Courtesy of www.legislature.mi.gov



559.236 Repealed. 1982, Act 538, Imd. Eff. Jan. 17, 1983.
Compiler'snote: The repealed section pertained to assumption of written contractual obligations by successor developer.

559.237 Obligations of developer not affected by transfer of interest.

Sec. 137. The obligations of the developer to condominium unit purchasers and to the association of
co-owners shall not be affected by the transfer of the devel oper's interest in the condominium project.

History: 1978, Act 59, Eff. July 1, 1978.

559.238 Repealed. 1982, Act 538, Imd. Eff. Jan. 17, 1983.
Compiler'snote: The repealed section pertained to reporting change in mortgagee to administrator.

559.239 Complaint for nonpayment of assessments; answer; set off.

Sec. 139. A co-owner may not assert in an answer, or set off to a complaint brought by the association for
non-payment of assessments the fact that the association of co-owners or its agents have not provided the
Sservices or management to a co-owner(s).

History: 1978, Act 59, Eff. July 1, 1978.

559.240 Reproduction of document; certified reproduction or certification as evidence.

Sec. 140. (1) Upon request and at such reasonable charges as it prescribes, the administrator shall furnish
to a person a reproduction pursuant to the records media act, certified under the seal of office if requested, of
a document that is retained as a matter of public record. The administrator shall not charge or collect a fee for
areproduction of a document furnished to public officials for usein their official capacity.

(2) In ajudicia or administrative proceeding or prosecution, if a reproduction in a medium pursuant to the
records media act or a reproduction consisting of a printout or other output readable by sight from such a
medium is certified as provided in subsection (1), that reproduction is prima facie evidence of the contents of
the document certified and may be used for al purposesin place of the original.

(3) If the administrator is charged with the legal custody of a paper, document, record, or application and if
an officer or employee of the administrator certifies that a diligent search was made in the files for the paper,
document, record, or application, and the paper, document, record, or application does not exist, the
certification is prima facie evidence of the facts so certified in al causes, matters, and proceedings in the same
manner and with the like effect as if the officer or employee personally testified to the facts so certified in the
court or hearing.

History: 1978, Act 59, Eff. July 1, 1978;0 Am. 1992, Act 208, Imd. Eff. Oct. 5, 1992.

559.241 Law, ordinance, or regulation of local unit of government; limitations.

Sec. 141. (1) A condominium project shall comply with applicable local law, ordinances, and regulations.
Except as provided in subsection (2), a proposed or existing condominium project shall not be prohibited nor
treated differently by any law, regulation, or ordinance of any local unit of government, which would apply to
that project or development under a different form of ownership.

(2) Except asto a city having a population of more than 1 million persons, a local unit of government is
preempted by the provisions of this act from enacting a law, regulation, ordinance, or other provision, which
imposes a moratorium on conversion condominiums, or which provides rights for tenants of conversion
condominiums or apartment buildings proposed as conversion condominiums, other than those provided in
this act.

History: 1978, Act 59, Eff. July 1, 1978;00 Am. 1980, Act 283, Imd. Eff. Oct. 10, 1980;00 Am. 1980, Act 513, Imd. Eff. Jan. 26, 1981

559.242 Promulgation of rules, forms, and orders; definition of terms.

Sec. 142. The administrator may promulgate rules, forms, and orders as are necessary to implement this act
or which are necessary for the establishment of unusual forms of condominium projects; and may define any
terms necessary in administration of the act. The rules and definition of terms shall be promulgated pursuant
to Act No. 306 of the Public Acts of 1969, as amended, being sections 24.201 to 24.315 of the Michigan
Compiled Laws.

History: 1978, Act 59, Eff. July 1, 1978.

Administrativerules: R 451.1301 et seq. and R 559.101 et seq. of the Michigan Administrative Code.

559.244 Contract to settle by arbitration; execution; option; period of limitations; allocation
of costs; conduct; appointment of arbitrator; procedures; rules; arbitration award as

Rendered Friday, September 19, 2014 Page 36 Michigan Compiled Laws Complete Through PA 281 of 2014
O Legislative Council, State of Michigan Courtesy of www.legislature.mi.gov



binding.

Sec. 144. (1) A contract to settle by arbitration may be executed by the developer and any claimant with
respect to any claim against the devel oper that might be the subject of acivil action.

(2) At the exclusive option of a purchaser, co-owner, or person occupying a restricted unit under section
104b, the developer shall execute a contract to settle by arbitration any claim that might be the subject of a
civil action against the developer, involves an amount less than $2,500.00, and arises out of or relates to a
purchase agreement, condominium unit, or project.

(3) At the exclusive option of the association of co-owners, the developer shall execute a contract to settle
by arbitration any claim that might be the subject of a civil action against the developer, arises out of or
relates to the common elements of a condominium project, and involves an amount of $10,000.00 or less.

(4) The period of limitations prescribed by law for the bringing of a civil action applies to the execution of
acontract to settle by arbitration under this section.

(5) All costs of arbitration under this section shall be alocated in the manner provided by the arbitration
association.

(6) A contract to settle by arbitration under this section shall specify that the arbitration be conducted by
the arbitration association.

(7) The arbitrator or arbitrators of an arbitration under this section shall be appointed as provided by
reasonable rules of the arbitration association.

(8) Arbitration under this act shall proceed according to the uniform arbitration act. The procedures of the
uniform arbitration act may be supplemented by reasonable rules of the arbitration association.

(9) An arbitration award entered in an arbitration under this section is binding on the parties to the
arbitration.

History: Add. 1982, Act 538, Imd. Eff. Jan. 17, 1983;00 Am. 2012, Act 369, Eff. July 1, 2013.

559.245 Complaint copy to developer; notice of available remedies.

Sec. 145. Upon receipt of an ora or written complaint with respect to a developer of a condominium
project, the administrator shall forward a copy of the complaint to the affected developer, and shall mail a
notice of the available remedies to the complainant. The notice of available remedies shall include all of the
following, at a minimum:

(a) Theright to bring an action under section 115.

(b) The right to arbitration under section 144.

(c) Theright to lodge a complaint pursuant to article 5 of the occupational code, sections 501 to 522 of Act
No. 299 of the Public Acts of 1980, being sections 339.501 to 339.522 of the Michigan Compiled Laws.

(d) Theright to initiate an investigation or bring an action under the Michigan consumer protection act, Act
No. 331 of the Public Acts of 1976, being sections 445.901 to 445.922 of the Michigan Compiled Laws.

(e) The right to notify the appropriate enforcing agency of an aleged violation of the state construction
code, other applicable building code, or construction regulations. As used in this subdivision, “enforcing
agency” has the meaning ascribed to that term in the state construction code act of 1972, Act No. 230 of the
Public Acts of 1972, being sections 125.1501 to 125.1531 of the Michigan Compiled Laws.

History: Add. 1982, Act 538, Imd. Eff. Jan. 17, 1983,

559.250 Discretionary powers of administrator; exercise.

Sec. 150. The discretionary powers granted to the administrator under sections 151 to 156 shall be
exercised only with respect to actions which materially endanger or have endangered the public interest or the
interest of condominium co-owners, as enumerated in section 154.

History: Add. 1982, Act 538, Imd. Eff. Jan. 17, 1983.

559.251-559.255 Repealed. 1982, Act 538, Eff. Jan. 18, 1986;—1988, Act 109, Imd. Eff. Apr. 11,
1988.

Compiler's note: The repealed sections pertained to investigations of, and actions for, violations of the act or rules promulgated
pursuant thereto.
Asto validity of enactment of “sunset provision” under Const 1963, art 4, § 24, see OAG, 1987-1988, No 6438 (May 21, 1987).

559.256 Prohibited representations.

Sec. 156. A person may not represent that the fact that an application under this act is filed or a permit is
granted congtitutes a finding by the administrator that a document filed under this act is true, complete, or not
misleading. A person may not represent that the administrator passed upon the merits or qualifications of, or
recommended or gave approval to, a person, developer, transaction, or condominium project.

Rendered Friday, September 19, 2014 Page 37 Michigan Compiled Laws Complete Through PA 281 of 2014
O Legislative Council, State of Michigan Courtesy of www.legislature.mi.gov



History: 1978, Act 59, Eff. July 1, 1978.
559.257 Repealed. 1982, Act 538, Eff. Jan. 18, 1986;—1988, Act 109, Imd. Eff. Apr. 11, 1988.

Compiler's note: The repealed section pertained to show cause orders and hearings concerning violations of the act or rules
promulgated pursuant thereto.
Asto validity of enactment of “sunset provision” under Const 1963, art 4, § 24, see OAG, 1987-1988, No 6438 (May 21, 1987).

559.258 Prohibited conduct as misdemeanor; penalty; violation as separate offense;
consecutive terms of imprisonment; aggregate fines; action by prosecuting attorney or
department of attorney general.

Sec. 158. A person who wilfully authorizes, directs, or aids in the publication, advertisement, distribution,
or circulation of a statement or representation concerning a condominium project which misrepresents the
facts concerning the condominium project as set forth in the recorded master deed; a person who, with
knowledge that an advertisement pamphlet, prospectus, or letter concerning a condominium project contains a
written statement that is false or fraudulent, issues, circulates, publishes, or distributes the advertisement,
pamphlet, prospectus, or letter; or a person who represents or causes or permits the representation of any
property as a condominium project when the property was not recorded as a condominium project under the
terms of this act, is guilty of a misdemeanor and shall be punished by a fine of not more than $10,000.00, or
imprisonment for not more than 1 year, or both. Each violation constitutes a separate offense, the terms of
imprisonment may run consecutively, and the fines may be aggregated. An action under this section shall be
brought by the prosecuting attorney of the county in which the property is located, or by the department of
attorney general.

History: 1978, Act 59, Eff. July 1, 1978;00 Am. 1982, Act 538, Imd. Eff. Jan. 17, 1983.

559.259 Injunction.

Sec. 159. In addition to any other penalty or remedy, the prosecuting attorney of the county in which the
property is located or the department of attorney general may bring an action in a court of competent
jurisdiction against a person to enjoin the person from engaging or continuing in aviolation of this act.

History: 1978, Act 59, Eff. July 1, 1978;0 Am. 1982, Act 538, Imd. Eff. Jan. 17, 1983.

559.260 Repealed. 1982, Act 538, Imd. Eff. Jan. 17, 1983.
Compiler'snote: The repealed section pertained to action under MCL 559.258 or MCL 559.259.

559.270 Effect of act and 1982 amendatory act; consummation of proceedings; continuation
or institution of proceedings.

Sec. 170. (1) This act does not impair or affect any act done, offense committed or right accruing, accrued,
or acquired, or aliability, penalty, forfeiture, or punishment incurred before this act takes effect, but the same
may be enjoyed, asserted, and enforced, as fully and to the same extent as if this act had not been passed.
Proceedings may be consummated under and in accordance with Act No. 229 of the Public Acts of 1963, as
amended, being sections 559.1 to 559.31 of the Michigan Compiled Laws. Proceedings pending at the
effective date of this act and proceedings instituted thereafter for any act, offense committed, right accruing,
accrued or acquired, or liability, penalty, forfeiture or punishment incurred before the effective date of this act
may be continued or instituted under and in accordance with Act No. 229 of the Public Acts of 1963, as
amended.

(2) The 1982 amendatory act which added this subsection does not impair or affect any act done, offense
committed, or right accruing, accrued, or acquired, or aliability, penalty, forfeiture, or punishment incurred
before this 1982 amendatory act takes effect, but the same may be enjoyed, asserted, and enforced, as fully
and to the same extent asif this 1982 amendatory act had not taken effect. Proceedings may be consummated
under and in accordance with the provisions of Act No. 59 of the Public Acts of 1978, being sections 559.101
to 559.272 of the Michigan Compiled Laws, that were in effect 1 day before the effective date of this 1982
amendatory act. Proceedings pending at the effective date of this 1982 amendatory act and proceedings
instituted thereafter for any act, offense committed, right accruing, accrued, or acquired, or liability, penalty,
forfeiture, or punishment incurred before the effective date of this 1982 amendatory act may be continued or
instituted under and in accordance with the provisions of Act No. 59 of the Public Acts of 1978, that were in
effect 1 day before the effective date of this 1982 amendatory act.

History: 1978, Act 59, Eff. July 1, 1978;0 Am. 1982, Act 538, Imd. Eff. Jan. 17, 1983.
559.271 Repeal of MCL 559.1 to 559.31.

Sec. 171. Act No. 229 of the Public Acts of 1963, as amended, being sections 559.1 to 559.31 of the
Rendered Friday, September 19, 2014 Page 38 Michigan Compiled Laws Complete Through PA 281 of 2014
O Legislative Council, State of Michigan Courtesy of www.legislature.mi.gov



Compiled Laws of 1970, is repeal ed.
History: 1978, Act 59, Eff. July 1, 1978.

559.272 Effective date; requirements for disclosure statement.
Sec. 172. This act shall take effect July 1, 1978. Requirements for the disclosure statement shall not take
effect until October 1, 1978.

History: 1978, Act 59, Eff. July 1, 1978.

559.273 Applicability of amendatory act; applicability of certain subsections.

Sec. 173. (1) This act applies to a condominium project or condominium unit as follows:

(a) For a condominium project for which a permit to sell has been issued on or before March 18, 1983, the
developer may elect to comply with 1 or more of the following requirements in lieu of the specified
provisions:

() Inlieu of section 31, 32, 33, 52, or 66, or any combination of these sections, the developer may elect to
comply with the terms of the master deed in effect as of March 18, 1983.

(i) In lieu of sections 66(2)(j), 66(4), 84(3), 84(4)(a), (c), and (e), and 103b, the developer may elect to
deposit al funds paid by a purchaser on or after January 17, 1983 into an escrow account pursuant to an
escrow agreement the terms of which were approved by the administrator on or before March 18, 1983. The
funds escrowed under this subdivision in excess of any amount or percentage of the escrowed funds that had
been required to be escrowed by the administrator or a condominium document pursuant to former section
103 to cover the cost of construction of recreational facilities and other common elements, shall be released
only upon conveyance of the condominium unit to that purchaser and issuance of a certificate of occupancy if
required by local ordinance. Appropriate funds retained in escrow to cover the cost of construction of
recreational facilities and other common elements shall be released to the developer upon completion of each
recreational facility or other common element. The escrow agent shall be a bank, savings and loan
association, or title insurance company, or person designated to act as the agent of a title insurance company,
licensed or authorized to do businessin this state.

(b) For a condominium project for which a permit to sell has been issued on or before March 18, 1983, the
developer may elect to exempt the project from the application of sections 84(4)(d), 144, and 145(b).

(c) For promotional material filed with the administrator on or before March 18, 1983, the developer may
elect to exempt the promotional material from the application of section 8la. For promotional material that
has not been filed with the administrator on or before March 18, 1983 and that relates to a condominium
project to which section 66 does not apply, the developer shall comply with section 8la as if section 66 was
applicable to the condominium project.

(2) Sections 104a, 104b, and 104d and former section 104c apply to all condominium projects that on
October 10, 1980 complied with the definition of qualified conversion condominium project provided in
section 104b.

(3) Subsection (1)(a)(ii) and (b) does not apply to any phase or convertible area of a condominium project
if the phase is established or the convertibility option is exercised after March 18, 1983 and that establishment
or exercise results in the addition of units to the condominium project or the creation of afacility intended for
common use.

History: Add. 1982, Act 538, Imd. Eff. Jan. 17, 1983;0 Am. 1983, Act 113, Imd. Eff. July 12, 1983;0 Am. 2002, Act 283, Imd. Eff.
May 9, 2002.

559.274 Repealed. 2002, Act 283, Imd. Eff. May 9, 2002.
Compiler'snote: The repealed section pertained to request to administrator to act on specific application or request.

559.275 Powers of administrator.

Sec. 175. Notwithstanding any other provision of this act, prior laws, or condominium documents, the
administrator after the effective date of this section, shall have no authority to review any condominium
project or condominium documents or any amendments thereto, or to issue any approval or disapproval
concerning any condominium project in this state, whenever established, nor shall it exercise other powers
with respect to condominium projects, except that the administrator shall retain, until January 1, 1984,
authority to review and approve, at the request of a condominium association, amendments offered by such
condominium association to documents for a project approved under Act No. 59 of the Public Acts of 1978, if
such approval is determined by the administrator to be necessary for the efficient operation of the project or
essential to the viability of the project, and where such approval would not reduce or adversely impact the
consumer protection provisions of this act. The administrator shall also retain its rule making and related
powers under section 142 and its enforcement powers specifically authorized under sections 150, 151, 152,
Rendered Friday, September 19, 2014 Page 39 Michigan Compiled Laws Complete Through PA 281 of 2014

O Legislative Council, State of Michigan Courtesy of www.legislature.mi.gov



153, 154, 155, and 157 while those sections are in effect.
History: Add. 1983, Act 113, Imd. Eff. July 12, 1983.

559.276 Statute of limitations.

Sec. 176. (1) The following limitations apply in a cause of action arising out of the development or
construction of the common elements of a condominium project, or the management, operation, or control of
a condominium project:

(a) If the cause of action accrues on or before the transitional control date, a person shall not maintain an
action against a developer, residential builder, licensed architect, contractor, sales agent, or manager of a
condominium project later than 3 years after the transitional control date or 2 years after the date on which the
cause of action accrued, whichever occurs later.

(b) If the cause of action accrues after the transitional control date, a person shall not maintain an action
against a developer, residentia builder, licensed architect, contractor, sales agent, or manager of a
condominium project later than 2 years after the date on which the cause of action accrued.

(2) Subsection (1) applies only to condominium projects established on or after the effective date of the
amendatory act that added this subsection.

History: Add. 2000, Act 379, Imd. Eff. Jan. 2, 2001;,0 Am. 2002, Act 283, Imd. Eff. May 9, 2002.

Rendered Friday, September 19, 2014 Page 40 Michigan Compiled Laws Complete Through PA 281 of 2014
O Legislative Council, State of Michigan Courtesy of www.legislature.mi.gov



	AGENDA
	CITIZEN COMMENTS AND QUESTIONS
	ITEMS OF BUSINESS
	Street Program Tax Levy
	Map-Pay As You Go
	Five year pay as you go
	Tax levy informational materials
	Norton Shores Ballot Proposal
	Grosse Pointe Ballot Proposal
	Marquette Township Ballot Proposal
	Alma Ballot Proposal
	Charlotte Ballot Proposal


	Osburn Lakes Subdivision
	Osburn Lakes Master Deed with amendment
	Osburn Lakes brokerage proposal 
	Michigan Condominium Act-59-of-1978
	Act 59 of 1978 Statute&&&&CONDOMINIUM ACT - Act 59 of 1978
	559.101 Section&&&&559.101 &&&&Short title.
	559.102 Section&&&&559.102 &&&&Meanings of words and phrases.
	559.103 Section&&&&559.103 &&&&Definitions; A to C.
	559.104 Section&&&&559.104 &&&&Definitions; C.
	559.105 Section&&&&559.105 &&&&Definitions; C.
	559.106 Section&&&&559.106 &&&&Definitions; C to G.
	559.107 Section&&&&559.107 &&&&Definitions; L to M.
	559.108 Section&&&&559.108 &&&&“Master deed” defined.
	559.109 Section&&&&559.109 &&&&Definitions; P.
	559.110 Section&&&&559.110 &&&&Definitions; R to T.
	559.111 Section&&&&559.111 &&&&Offering residential condominium for sale; compliance with occupational code required.
	559.115 Section&&&&559.115 &&&&Construction or interpretation of act.
	559.121 Section&&&&559.121 &&&&Offering condominium unit or project for sale; liabilities and penalties; duties of developer; compliance by association of co-owners.
	559.131 Section&&&&559.131 &&&&Condominium project containing convertible area; contents of master deed.
	559.132 Section&&&&559.132 &&&&Expandable condominium project; contents of master deed.
	559.133 Section&&&&559.133 &&&&Contractable condominium project; contents of master deed.
	559.134 Section&&&&559.134 &&&&Leasehold condominium project; lease terms; required contents of master deed; termination of co-owner's leasehold interest by lessor prohibited.
	559.135 Section&&&&559.135 &&&&Easements; creation; description; contents.
	559.136 Section&&&&559.136 &&&&Addition of undivided interests in land as common elements; tenancy of co-owners; condominium unit on lands prohibited; description in master deed.
	559.137 Section&&&&559.137 &&&&Allocation to condominium unit of undivided interest in common elements proportionate to percentage of value assigned; statement, table, exhibit, or schedule in master deed; formula; basis of reallocation; allocating percentage of value to convertible space; alteration of undivided interest in common elements; partition of common elements.
	559.138 Section&&&&559.138 &&&&Creation of condominium units within convertible or additional lands; allocation of interests in common elements; amended master deed and condominium subdivision plan; revised schedule.
	559.139 Section&&&&559.139 &&&&Assignment and reassignment of limited common elements; application; amendment to master deed.
	559.140 Section&&&&559.140 &&&&Easement for encroachment.
	559.141 Section&&&&559.141 &&&&Conversion of convertible area into condominium units or common elements; amendment; identifying number; allocating portion of undivided interest; description of limited common elements.
	559.143 Section&&&&559.143 &&&&Expansion, contraction, or conversion of land or space; time of occurrence; consolidating master deed.
	559.144 Section&&&&559.144 &&&&Transferable easement as to common elements for purpose of making improvements.
	559.145 Section&&&&559.145 &&&&Offices, model units, and other facilities; maintenance; costs; restoration of facilities.
	559.146 Section&&&&559.146 &&&&Restrictions and covenants.
	559.147 Section&&&&559.147 &&&&Improvements or alterations by co-owners.
	559.147a Section&&&&559.147a &&&&Persons with disabilities; improvements or modifications by co-owner to facilitate access or movement; alleviation of hazardous conditions.
	559.148 Section&&&&559.148 &&&&Relocation of boundaries between adjoining condominium units.
	559.149 Section&&&&559.149 &&&&Subdivision of condominium units.
	559.150 Section&&&&559.150 &&&&Termination of condominium project or amendment of master deed by developer.
	559.151 Section&&&&559.151 &&&&Termination of condominium project by agreement of developer and unaffiliated co-owners.
	559.152 Section&&&&559.152 &&&&Advisory committee of nondeveloper co-owners; establishment; meeting with condominium project board of directors; cessation; right to elect directors; formula; recording consolidating master deed; copy; “units that may be created” defined; time of sale to nondeveloper co-owner.
	559.153 Section&&&&559.153 &&&&Bylaws governing administration of condominium project; amendments; recording.
	559.154 Section&&&&559.154 &&&&Bylaws; mandatory provisions; allocation of votes; dispute, claim, or grievance; applicability of subsections (8), (9), and (10).
	559.155 Section&&&&559.155 &&&&Voiding service contract and management contract.
	559.156 Section&&&&559.156 &&&&Bylaws; permissible provisions.
	559.156a Section&&&&559.156a &&&&Displaying United States flag on condominium unit; applicability of section.
	559.157 Section&&&&559.157 &&&&Books, records, contracts, and financial statements; examination; audit or review; opt-out of requirements of subsection (2).
	559.158 Section&&&&559.158 &&&&Acquisition of title by foreclosure of first mortgage; liability for assessments.
	559.159 Section&&&&559.159 &&&&Submission of property with mortgage of record.
	559.160 Section&&&&559.160 &&&&Action on behalf of and against co-owners.
	559.161 Section&&&&559.161 &&&&Condominium unit as sole property.
	559.162 Section&&&&559.162 &&&&Ownership of condominium unit.
	559.163 Section&&&&559.163 &&&&Rights of co-owner.
	559.164 Section&&&&559.164 &&&&Conveyance and other instruments affecting title to condominium unit; description of unit; recordation.
	559.165 Section&&&&559.165 &&&&Compliance with master deed, bylaws, rules, and regulations.
	559.166 Section&&&&559.166 &&&&Condominium subdivision plan; preparation; signature and seal; contents; recording; structures and improvements to be completed by developer.
	559.167 Section&&&&559.167 &&&&Changes in condominium project; amendment; replat of condominium subdivision plan; right of withdrawal.
	559.168 Section&&&&559.168 &&&&Availability of condominium documents.
	559.169 Section&&&&559.169 &&&&Assessment of common expenses; contribution of co-owner.
	559.170 Section&&&&559.170 &&&&Repealed. 1982, Act 538, Imd. Eff. Jan. 17, 1983.
	559.171 Section&&&&559.171 &&&&Notice of proposed action.
	559.171a Section&&&&559.171a &&&&Rules applicable to condominium project not served by public water and public sewers; submission of plan to department of public health; approval or rejection.
	559.172 Section&&&&559.172 &&&&Establishment of condominium project; sale of condominium unit before master deed recorded prohibited; exception; substantial failure of master deed to comply with act; marketability of title.
	559.172a Section&&&&559.172a &&&&Recordation of master deed; creation of time-share unit; amendment of documents as material alteration.
	559.172b Section&&&&559.172b &&&&Air space over fee.
	559.173 Section&&&&559.173 &&&&Recordation of master deed and amendment; certification by treasurer; filing copy of master deed with local supervisor or assessing officer; filing architectural plans and specifications or affidavit with local unit of government.
	559.174 Section&&&&559.174 &&&&Delivery and retention of condominium subdivision plan; recordation of consolidating master deed.
	559.181 Section&&&&559.181 &&&&Service of process.
	559.181a Section&&&&559.181a &&&&Promotional material; labeling structure or improvement “need not be built.”
	559.182 Section&&&&559.182 &&&&Repealed. 1982, Act 538, Imd. Eff. Jan. 17, 1983.
	559.183 Section&&&&559.183 &&&&Preliminary reservation agreement; use; condominium buyer's handbook; placing payment in escrow; cancellation of agreement; refund; treating payment as if made under purchase agreement.
	559.184 Section&&&&559.184 &&&&Section inapplicable to business condominium unit; withdrawal from signed purchase agreement; depositing and retaining funds in escrow; contents of purchase agreement; waiver of right of withdrawal; form.
	559.184a Section&&&&559.184a &&&&Providing copies of listed documents to prospective purchaser of condominium unit; amendment to purchase agreement and condominium documents; signature on form as evidence; providing prospective purchaser of business condominium unit copy of recorded master deed; misleading statements; violation.
	559.185 Section&&&&559.185 &&&&Liquidated damages in case of default; actual damages; receipt of escrowed funds.
	559.186, 559.187 Section&&&&559.186, 559.187 &&&& Repealed. 1982, Act 538, Imd. Eff. Jan. 17, 1983.
	559.188 Section&&&&559.188 &&&&Offering for sale and entering into purchase agreement with respect to condominium unit proposed to be included within additional land of expandable condominium or within convertible land without recording amended master deed.
	559.189 Section&&&&559.189 &&&&Repealed. 1982, Act 538, Imd. Eff. Jan. 17, 1983.
	559.190 Section&&&&559.190 &&&&Amendment of condominium documents; consent; void provision superseded by subsection (2); reservation of right to amend; notice of proposed amendments; costs and expenses; master deed amendment; affirmative vote.
	559.190a Section&&&&559.190a &&&&Voting procedures.
	559.191 Section&&&&559.191 &&&&Recording of amendment to recorded condominium document required; copy to co-owner.
	559.192, 559.193 Section&&&&559.192, 559.193 &&&& Repealed. 1982, Act 538, Imd. Eff. Jan. 17, 1983.
	559.194 Section&&&&559.194 &&&&Title insurance policy.
	559.195 Section&&&&559.195 &&&&Revision of condominium subdivision plan; altering percentage of value; revisions in percentage of value per condominium unit.
	559.201-559.203 Section&&&&559.201-559.203 &&&& Repealed. 1982, Act 538, Imd. Eff. Jan. 17, 1983.
	559.203a Section&&&&559.203a &&&&Repealed. 1983, Act 113, Imd. Eff. July 12, 1983.
	559.203b Section&&&&559.203b &&&&Section inapplicable to business condominium unit; release of deposits or amounts retained in escrow; conditions; substantial completion; furnishing escrow agent with evidence of adequate security in place of retaining funds; certificate; notice to developer; release of interest paid on amounts escrowed; escrow agent deemed independent party; liability; certification by licensed professional architect or engineer; “licensed professional engineer or architect” defined.
	559.204 Section&&&&559.204 &&&&Conversion condominium project; notice; termination of tenancy.
	559.204a Section&&&&559.204a &&&&Terminating tenancy of certain persons without cause prohibited; criteria; notice.
	559.204b Section&&&&559.204b &&&&Definitions; applicability of section; notice of right to elect extended lease arrangement; election; extended lease arrangement provisions; number of years lease renewable; notice by developer entering into restricted lease arrangement; assignment, device, sublease, or transfer of lease by qualified senior citizen or person with disabilities prohibited; automatic termination of lease; liability of lessor violating rental restrictions; recovery of possession of restricted unit; transfer of restricted unit.
	559.204c Section&&&&559.204c &&&&Repealed. 1985, Act 183, Imd. Eff. Dec. 18, 1985.
	559.204d Section&&&&559.204d &&&&Developer not required to offer extended lease arrangement; conditions; compliance.
	559.204e Section&&&&559.204e &&&&Legislative intent; examination of relevant information; recommendation.
	559.205 Section&&&&559.205 &&&&Reserve fund.
	559.206 Section&&&&559.206 &&&&Default by co-owner; relief.
	559.207 Section&&&&559.207 &&&&Action to enforce terms and provisions of condominium documents; action for injunctive relief or damages.
	559.208 Section&&&&559.208 &&&&Assessment lien; priority; foreclosure; bid; actions; receiver.
	559.209 Section&&&&559.209 &&&&Liability for torts.
	559.210 Section&&&&559.210 &&&&Repealed. 1982, Act 538, Imd. Eff. Jan. 17, 1983.
	559.211 Section&&&&559.211 &&&&Sale or conveyance of condominium unit; payment and statement of unpaid assessments; liability for unpaid assessments.
	559.212 Section&&&&559.212 &&&&Renting or leasing condominium unit; disclosure; review of lease form; notice; compliance required; action by association upon noncompliance; notice of arrearage; deduction of arrearage and future assessments from rental payments.
	559.213 Section&&&&559.213 &&&&Financing.
	559.214 Section&&&&559.214 &&&&Homestead exemption.
	559.215 Section&&&&559.215 &&&&Action by person or association adversely affected by violation of or failure to comply with act, rules, agreement, or master deed; costs; violation of MCL 559.121 or 559.184a; liability.
	559.221 Section&&&&559.221 &&&&Mobile home condominium project; establishment, operation, and regulation; compliance.
	559.222 Section&&&&559.222 &&&&Mobile home condominium project; disclosure.
	559.222a Section&&&&559.222a &&&&Mobile home conversion condominium project; notification of tenants; termination of tenancy.
	559.222b Section&&&&559.222b &&&&Extended lease arrangement.
	559.223 Section&&&&559.223 &&&&Mobile home condominium project; leasing agreements.
	559.224 Section&&&&559.224 &&&&Title to mobile home condominium site; undivided interest in common elements; removal of mobile home; sale of site.
	559.225, 559.226 Section&&&&559.225, 559.226 &&&& Repealed. 1982, Act 538, Imd. Eff. Jan. 17, 1983.
	559.227 Section&&&&559.227 &&&&Compliance by developer of mobile home condominium; prohibited requirements.
	559.231 Section&&&&559.231 &&&&Special assessments and property taxes.
	559.232 Section&&&&559.232 &&&&Construction lien; limitations.
	559.233 Section&&&&559.233 &&&&Eminent domain.
	559.234 Section&&&&559.234 &&&&Recreational facilities and other amenities; compliance.
	559.235 Section&&&&559.235 &&&&Successor developer.
	559.236 Section&&&&559.236 &&&&Repealed. 1982, Act 538, Imd. Eff. Jan. 17, 1983.
	559.237 Section&&&&559.237 &&&&Obligations of developer not affected by transfer of interest.
	559.238 Section&&&&559.238 &&&&Repealed. 1982, Act 538, Imd. Eff. Jan. 17, 1983.
	559.239 Section&&&&559.239 &&&&Complaint for nonpayment of assessments; answer; set off.
	559.240 Section&&&&559.240 &&&&Reproduction of document; certified reproduction or certification as evidence.
	559.241 Section&&&&559.241 &&&&Law, ordinance, or regulation of local unit of government; limitations.
	559.242 Section&&&&559.242 &&&&Promulgation of rules, forms, and orders; definition of terms.
	559.244 Section&&&&559.244 &&&&Contract to settle by arbitration; execution; option; period of limitations; allocation of costs; conduct; appointment of arbitrator; procedures; rules; arbitration award as binding.
	559.245 Section&&&&559.245 &&&&Complaint copy to developer; notice of available remedies.
	559.250 Section&&&&559.250 &&&&Discretionary powers of administrator; exercise.
	559.251-559.255 Section&&&&559.251-559.255 &&&& Repealed. 1982, Act 538, Eff. Jan. 18, 1986;—1988, Act 109, Imd. Eff. Apr. 11, 1988.
	559.256 Section&&&&559.256 &&&&Prohibited representations.
	559.257 Section&&&&559.257 &&&&Repealed. 1982, Act 538, Eff. Jan. 18, 1986;—1988, Act 109, Imd. Eff. Apr. 11, 1988.
	559.258 Section&&&&559.258 &&&&Prohibited conduct as misdemeanor; penalty; violation as separate offense; consecutive terms of imprisonment; aggregate fines; action by prosecuting attorney or department of attorney general.
	559.259 Section&&&&559.259 &&&&Injunction.
	559.260 Section&&&&559.260 &&&&Repealed. 1982, Act 538, Imd. Eff. Jan. 17, 1983.
	559.270 Section&&&&559.270 &&&&Effect of act and 1982 amendatory act; consummation of proceedings; continuation or institution of proceedings.
	559.271 Section&&&&559.271 &&&&Repeal of MCL 559.1 to 559.31.
	559.272 Section&&&&559.272 &&&&Effective date; requirements for disclosure statement.
	559.273 Section&&&&559.273 &&&&Applicability of amendatory act; applicability of certain subsections.
	559.274 Section&&&&559.274 &&&&Repealed. 2002, Act 283, Imd. Eff. May 9, 2002.
	559.275 Section&&&&559.275 &&&&Powers of administrator.
	559.276 Section&&&&559.276 &&&&Statute of limitations.




	NEXT MEETING
	BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS OPENINGS
	ADJOURNMENT

